Legal and Governance

N\iddles@cﬁjgh

moving forward

HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL

Date: Tuesday 22nd September, 2020
Time: 4.00 pm
Venue: Virtual meeting

AGENDA

Please note: this is a virtual meeting.

The meeting will be live-streamed via the Council’s Youtube
channel at 4.00 pm on Tuesday 22nd September, 2020

1. Declarations of Interest

To receive any declarations of interest.

2. Apologies for Absence
3. Minutes - Health Scrutiny Panel - 21 July 2020 3-8
4, Covid-19 Update 9-34

Mark Adams, Director of Public Heath (South Tees) and Craig
Blair, Director Of Commissioning, Strategy and Delivery at
Tees Valley Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) will be in
attendance to provide an update on Covid-19 and the local
Public Health / NHS response.

Recommendation: Panel notes the information provided.

5. South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Quality Account 35-222
2019/20
Representatives from ST NHS FT will be in attendance to

discuss the key performance outcomes for 2019/20, as
detailed in the Quality Account document.

Page 1


https://www.youtube.com/user/middlesboroughcouncil
https://www.youtube.com/user/middlesboroughcouncil

6. Regional Health Scrutiny Update
The panel is requested to consider an update on the work
recently undertaken by the regional Joint Health Scrutiny
Committee:-

Tees Valley Joint Health Scrutiny Committee - 18 September
2020

Recommendation: That the update provided be noted.

7. Chair's OSB Update

8. Minutes - Health Scrutiny Panel - 10 March 2020 223 - 226

Charlotte Benjamin
Director of Legal and Governance Services

Town Hall
Middlesbrough
Monday 14 September 2020

MEMBERSHIP

Councillors J McTigue (Chair), D Coupe (Vice-Chair), B Cooper, A Hellaoui, B Hubbard,
T Mawston, D Rooney, M Storey and P Storey

Assistance in accessing information
Should you have any queries on accessing the Agenda and associated information

please contact Caroline Breheny, 01642 729752,
caroline_breheny@middlesbrough.gov.uk

Page 2



Agenda Item 3

Health Scrutiny Panel 21 July 2020

HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL

A meeting of the Health Scrutiny Panel was held on 21 July 2020.

PRESENT: Councillors D P Coupe (Vice-Chair), A Hellaoui, B A Hubbard, T Mawston, D
Rooney, M Storey, P Storey and M Saunders (substitute for S Hill)

ALSO IN Mark Adams - Director of Public Health (South Tees)

ATTENDANCE: Craig Blair - Director Of Commissioning Strategy and Delivery (Tees Valley CCG)

OFFICERS: S Bonner, C Breheny and J Dixon

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE Councillor S Hill and Councillor McTigue (Chair).

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS

There were no declarations of interest at this point in the meeting.

1

MINUTES - HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL - 11 FEBRUARY 2020

The minutes of the Health Scrutiny Panel meeting held on 11 February 2020 were approved
as a correct record.

MINUTES - HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL - 10 MARCH 2020

The minutes of the Health Scrutiny Panel meeting held on 10 March 2020 were to be
considered at the Panel's next meeting.

OVERVIEW OF SERVICE AREAS

The Director of Public Health (South Tees) and the Director of Commissioning, Strategy and
Delivery at Tees Valley Clinical Commissioning Group (TV CCG) were in attendance to
provide the Panel with an overview of the key areas of work undertaken by Public Health
South Tees and TV CCG.

The Director of Public Health (South Tees) advised that the aspect he wished to focus on at
today's meeting was the relationship between the Local Authority's Public Health function and
the NHS. The view was expressed that in some ways this had been a missed opportunity and
was an area of work that required further development.

It was explained that there was a memorandum of understanding in place between Public
Health (South Tees) and South Tees CCG, which needed to be refreshed in light of the
establishment of TVCCG and the core offer included six key area's of work-

e  Strategic Public Health advice for healthcare and supporting commissioning;

e Identification of current and future health needs(coordinating the development of the
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) with partners);

e  Supporting priority setting and decision making;

e  Supporting prevention activity through the identification of effective and efficient
interventions;

e Analysis and interpretation of population and health information and;

e  Supporting, evaluation, review and redesign of services and pathways.

It was explained that the current memorandum of understanding talked about areas of work in
specific parts of the health service including:-

e Work programmes around sexual health (the bulk of the commissioning
responsibilities for these serviceslay with the Public Health teams in Local Authorities).
The sexual health services currently provided in South Tees were delivered by Virgin
Care, as part of a collaborative commissioning arrangement between the four Local
Authorities across Tees, the CCG and NHS England, all had slightly different

Page 3



Health Scrutiny Panel 21 July 2020

responsibilities for sexual health.

e There was some specific actions concerning reviewing abortion statistics and looking
at the prevalence of sexually transmitted diseases, which the Local Authority
waslooking to work with the CCG on. Cardiovascular Disease was another area of
focus, Diabetes, Respiratory Diseases, Muscular Skeletal conditionsand Mental
Health.

e Another critical area of work involved working with the NHS to address health
inequalities and a discussion had been held at the most recent meeting of the Tees
Valley CCG Governing Body, where it wasagreed that more work was needed in this
area. That piece of work was currently being progressed with the Directors of Public
Health throughout the Tees Valley. It involved considering how to make primary care
more accessible for some of Middlesbrough's most deprived communities.

e Work continued in respect of the vulnerable persons model, which involved bringing
some services in-house across substance misuse, homelessness and domestic abuse
and commissioning other services to provide a more integrated model for people who
were often affected by more than one of these issues. Mental Health was often also
closely associated with substance misuse and there was a need to understand how
the local authority's new vulnerable persons model could connect with Mental Health
Services.

e Health Visiting and School Nursing was commissioned by the Local Authority and was
currently commissioned from Harrogate and District NHS Foundation Trust. There
wasalready an established Maternal, Infant and Child Health Partnership (MICH) that
worked across the Local Authority, local Midwifery service, and other local NHS
services to understand how the first 1001 days could help achieve the best start in life
for Middlesbrough Children and Families and work in this area was due to continue.

e The COVID recovery group had established key lines of enquiry, against which work
was being undertaken and consideration was also being given to how Public Health
(South Tees) and local NHS commissioners and providers could work better, as well
as differently as a result of the pandemic.

The Director of Commissioning, Strategy and Delivery at TV CCG provided the panel with a
brief update on the TVCCG's current position, as well as its prioritiesfor 2020/21.

In terms of the current position in respect of COVID-19 it was explained the NHS had
developed a four phase approach to responding to COVID-19 asfollows:-

e Phase 1 - March - May 2020 - Escalation

e Phase 2 - April - September 2020 - Consolidation

e Phasse 3 - July 2020 - March 2021 - Recovery of urgent and routine electives(current
focus)

e Phase 4 - April 2021 onward - New reset

It was explained that TV CCG had been working very closely with its partners across the
Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) including to consider how the system could respond to
COVID-19 and how services could be resumed within a safe environment now that the first
wave of COVID-19 had started to subside. Parntership working had been undertaken by the
Tees Local Resilience Forum (LRF) and the North East and North Cumbria Strategic Health
Coordinating Group.

It was explained that one of the really positive areasin which local partnership working had
been demonstrated wasin relation to Personal Protective Equipment (PPE). The working
relationships across the system had ensured that all of the available PPE resources were
distributed appropriately across all partners. This had been a real benefit of having a joined up
Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) approach across the Tees Valley.

Another area of development had been in relation to the use of digital technology, for
example, there had been much greater use of digital technology to support GP consultations.
It was emphasised that it wasnow really important to lock in some of the developments and
innovations adopted, as well as relaunch services that had been suspended. Patients were
now able to dial into web based consultations with a Consultant or Specialist Nurse in a
hospital setting, who could review their case, review diagnostic tests and provide advice,

Page 4



Health Scrutiny Panel 21 July 2020

guidance, support and even prescribe remotely to reduce the number of people needing to
travel to a hospital site.

Mutual support had also been developed to ensure that ensure that Consultants working at
James Cook University Hospital (JCUH) had been able to move around the region and
similarly Consultants at North Tees and County Durham and Darlington NHS Foundation
Trust had been able to work at JCUH.

In terms of COVID-19 it was highlighted that TV CCG's priorites were asfollows:-

e Development of recovery roadmap
e Acute and Community Activity baseline planning
e Capital requirements, regional focus on;

o  Critical Care

o  A&E and Front of House

o Diagnostics

It was noted that NHS England was looking to provide support through the provision of
additional capital funding.

The Tees Valley Integrated Care Partnership's (ICP) Covid recovery prioritiesfocussed on;

e Improving hospital flow
e Increasing theatre capacity
e Increase diagnostics capacity

In terms of next stepsTV CCG was focussing its attention on the implementation of ‘Talk
before you walk’, roll out of the mass flu vaccination programme, maintaininig Covid
pathways and capacity, as well as continued recovery of routine/planned care services. It
was advised that NHS Guidance in relation to Phase 3 (July 2020 - March 2021) recovery of
urgent and routine elective was imminently awaited.

The Director of Commissioning, Strategy and Delivery at TV CCG advised that owing to the
fact that there had not been the level of routine and planned surgery that would have ordinarily
have taken place there were significant waiting list pressures. TVCCG was currently examining
how better use could be made of the independent sector in order to reduce those backlogs. It
was also acknowledged that there could be further peaks of COVID whilst the NHS was
dealing with the normal challenges presented by winter.

During the subsequent discussion the following points were made:-

e  Staffing would continue to be an issue for the foreseeable future and COVID-19 had
placed a significant burden on staff. The importance of digital technology in providing
solutions was highlighted, however, the importance of recognising that not all
residentsin the Town had accessto digital technology and there wasa need to ensure
that existing health inequalities were not further widened as a result.

e The importance of building resilience in communities could not be over emphasised.

e Inresponse to a query in respect of the availability of flu vaccines it was confirmed
that the number of vaccines available for 2020/21 had been increased significantly.

e Concerns were raised in respect of the poor accessibility of dental care services
during lockdown and it was advised that although TV CCG did not have responsibility
for commissioning dental care services these concerns would be raised with the
relevant commissioners.

The panel was also advised that efforts were currently being made to establish a wellbeing
netowrk to provide lower level mental health support (beneath the le vel of provision currently
provided by TEWYV) to build up people's resilience and help people to help themselves.

AGREED that the information presented be noted and used to assist the panel in selecting its
review topics for 2020/21.

Page 5



Health Scrutiny Panel 21 July 2020

4

SETTING THE SCRUTINY PANEL'S WORK PROGRAMME 2020/2021

The Democratic Services Officer advised that the purpose of the item was to invite the
scrutiny panel to consider its work programme for 2020/21.

Information and views had been obtained from a number of sources and a list of topics, which
were anticipated to be of particular interest to the scrutiny panel, were detailed in the
submitted report.

Members were advised that the topic of 'Opioid Dependency: Where do we go next?' had
been carried over from last year, and it was envisaged that the scrutiny panel would receive
its final evidence, in respect of that review at the earliest opportunity.

The submitted report proposed topical issues for the scrutiny panel's consideration, such as:

Inclusive growth - alignment of town regeneration and health goals;
The first 1001 days;

Diabetes support for BAME communities;

Arthritis support for young people;

PFI scheme at James Cook Hospital;

Prison Release and

Women's health and infant feeding.

Members were advised that updates on previous reviewsthat had been undertaken by the
Panel were required in including an update on Vulnerable and Fragile Health Services and
Breast Radiology Diagnostic Services.

Members were advised that the topics outlined were merely suggestions and the content of
the scrutiny panel's work programme was entirely a decision for the scrutiny panel to make.

An aid had been attached at Appendix 1 of the submitted report to assiist Members in
prioritising issues where scrutiny could make an impact, add value or contribute to policy
development.

It was recommended that the scrutiny panel identified two topics it would like to include in its
work programme. It was commented that those topics would then submitted to the Overview
and Scrutiny Board for approval.

A Member commented that when discussing the work programme, it was important for the
scrutiny panel to select those topics whereby scrutiny could have the biggest impact.

In light of the issues discussed, the Democratic Services Officer confirmed the topics that had
been agreed.

AGREED

That the topics listed below be submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny Board for approval and
inclusion in the work programme of the Health Scrutiny Panel for 2020/2021:

Full Review:
e Opioid Dependency: An emerging issue (carried over from 2019/2020);
e Inclusive Growth - Alignment of Town Regeneration and Health Goals; and
e The First 1001 Days.

Short Review:

e PFI Scheme at The James Cook University Hospital.

PROPOSED SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS - 2020/2021 MUNICIPAL YEAR

Page 6



Health Scrutiny Panel 21 July 2020

The proposed schedule of Health Scrutiny Pa nel meetings for the Municipal Year 2020/21
were approved by the panel.

6 OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY BOARD - UPDATE
The Chair advised that:-

e On 21 May 2020, the Overview and Scrutiny Board had considered the draft
COVID-19 Recovery Plan and an update from Children's Services.

e On 11 June, the Board had considered an update on the COVID-19 Response and
Recovery Plan, an update from the Executive Member for Environment and an update
on COVID-19 recovery plans for Environment and Infrastructure.

e On 2 July, the Board had considered an update from the Mayor; the Covid-19 -
Response, Recovery and Local Outbreak Plans and a Covid-19 Update on Health,
Adult Social Care and Public Health.

NOTED

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Middlesbrough

Middlesbrough

Covid-19 Cases Summary
22"d September 2020

6 abed

¥ way| epuaby

'I‘).',
~ NNEmEEE ~ o« l’l-’:';;
i LT o Reds?

middlesbrough.gov.uk



Cases by Week

Middlesbrough COVID Cases Tested Weekly Cases by week show the
160 significant reduction in
140 cases during May and

low numbers during June

. and July before and
§ increase in the beginning
80 .
o of August where the first
Os0
new outbreaks were
v 5 2 reported and continuing
s I I I 08 s g o8 to increase during
0 [ | . e BN
& DD N

September.

& @ & & Q ¢ N vs’\ fs"« FSFFEFS&E
s & o \ N \ SR

middlesbrough.gov.uk Middlesg??agh




North East Region Summary

TT obed

North East LA COVID Cases - Tested in Current 7 & Previous 7 Day Periods
Cases tested up to 19th September 2020

North East LA cur:f;:fta Tig:rs::md prev;:uhuﬁ- Zz?geifrlw % Change Total Cases

Number Rate Number Rate Rate Number Rate
South Tyneside 219 145.1 145 96.0 51.0% 1,499 993
Newcastle upon Tyne 369 121.9 207 68.4 78.3% 2,419 799
Sunderland 287 103.3 241 86.8 19.1% 2,576 928
Gateshead 202 100.0 172 85.1 17.4% 1,852 917
North Tyneside 160 77.0 109 52.4 46.8% 1,318 634
Northumberland 208 64.5 87 270 | 1304% | 2,040 633
County Durham 269 50.7 225 42.4 19.6% 4,175 788
Hartlepool 47 50.2 54 57.7 -13.0% 802 856
Middlesbrough 60 42.6 55 39.0 9.1% 1,289 914
Stockton-on-Tees 70 35.5 64 324 9.4% 1,219 618
Redcar & Cleveland 38 27.7 34 24.8 11.8% 865 631
Darlington 28 26.2 25 23.4 12.0% 692 648

middlesbrough.gov.uk

Middles%gh

moving forward




Cases Previous 21 Days

Middlesbrough COVID Cases by Specimen Test Date - Previous 21 Days
EE Daily Cases === 3 Day Average The rOIIIng 3 day

20 average shows daily
previous 4 days.

cases have remained
A lag in cases being
2 I I I I added may be the cause
0 of the drop in the last
& & 'B' °f

increasing over the

steady before
n‘*’n"’u”"a"‘&’ﬁqqa -s.w.x ’\'\.N"‘b"‘p day

s e

;.
1‘

middlesbrough.gov.uk N\iddlesl:; ough



Pillar 2 Testing Rates

Data up to 18th September 2020

Rate of | Rate of "
. .. % Positive
Local Authority Postivies | Tests per .. Tests
Positive | Tests
per 100k | 100k

South Tyneside 100.7 1,515 6.6% 152 2287
Newcastle upon Tyne 100.4 1,613 6.2% 304 4886
Sunderland 87.9 1,683 5.2% 244 4674
@Uateshead 85.6 1,526 5.6% 173 3083
Rorth Tyneside 67.3 1,699 4.0% 140 3533
ﬁgrthumherland 51.8 1,681 3.1% 167 5419
ﬁoartlepnol 45.9 1,836 2.5% 43 1720
County Durham 41.5 1,740 2.4% 220 9225
Middlesbrough 33.3 1,641 2.0% 4] 2313
Stockton-on-Tees 25.8 1,506 1.7% 51 2972
Redcar and Cleveland 24.1 1,471 1.6% 33 2017
19.7 1,472 1.3% 21 1572

Darlingtnn

middlesbrough.gov.uk

The table below shows the LA
ranks for rate of positive Pillar
2 tests per 100,000 population.

Data covers the previous 7 days
up to 18t September.

Middlesbrough ranks 44t
highest for rate of positive
tests however the rate of tests
per 100,000 shows
Middlesbrough is ranked 34t
highest nationally.

Middleslg?g}ugh

moving forward



Ethnicity

Data shows cases by ethnic group over the previous 6 weeks. The proportion of cases

affecting Asian residents in Middlesbrough was high during the first half of August but
this changed to mostly affecting White British residents.

All Known ethnicity only

19

38 50 75 40 35 19 37 49
:.:-
[ 6% | o | 20% e
-U 2'1;'.!_ b ] i
Q g0
(m A 0L FOL
w &« " &L 70
o
'-\‘A
809
c
S
) ~
& 4
o

= 8§ &5 8 2 = ° § & 8 2 =

. a a a . a a a

E) ] 2 8 3 8 ] ] E) 3 g $
Week

Ethnic group White . Asian Other Unknown

middlesbrough.gov.uk

Middlesmjgh

moving forward



Age

Data shows that cases in the most recent 14 days affected young people and those in
the 30-49 age group, with much fewer cases in the older age groups, however we are
starting to see cases in the older age groups increasing.

Middlesbrough Cases by Age Group

20:
19%
18
. 16%
145 14%
& _ 13% 13% 4%
cli 11%
1671 9%
7
6% y
b=

) I I I
0%

0-19 20-29 30-39 40-49 50-59 60-69 70-79

19%

W Last 7 Days (7th-20th Sep) ®All

ST 1

middlesbrough.gov.uk




[v] Middlesbrough COVID Cases

@
[] Count by LSOA Area
Count

<0

<1

<4

middlesbrough.gov.uk

COVID Cases Map — Previous 7 Days.

Tested between 13t Sep — 19t Sep
2020.

Positive COVID cases in the
previous 7 days (red) and the count
by LSOA area (shading).

Total of 66 cases that tested
positive

Middlesbrough
moving forward



Briefing Note

Middlesbrough Covid-19
Cases Summary

22" September 2020

Alistair Stewart

Public Health Intelligence Specialist
Public Health South Tees
alistair_stewart@middlesbrough.gov.uk

01642 728 758

—~<EEEEE

this is

Midd@%gh Redcar & Cleveland



North East Region Summary
The table below shows the number and rate of cases for each LA based on the date of test for the current

7 day period and the previous 7 day period beforehand. Also included is the percentage change in the rate
of cases between the two periods.

Morth East LA COVID Cases - Tested in Current 7 & Previous 7 Day Periods
Cases tested up to 19th September 2020

Current 7-Day Period | Previous 7-Day Period
North East LA (23th - 15th ) (th- 12t Sep) * {;:at;ge Total Cases

Number Rate Number Rate MNumber Rate
South Tyneside 219 145.1 145 96.0 51.0% 1,499 993
Newcastle upon Tyne 369 121.9 207 68.4 78.3% 2,419 799
Sunderland 287 103.2 241 8b.8 19.1% 2,576 o238
Gateshead 202 100.0 172 85.1 17.4% 1,852 017
MNorth Tyneside 160 77.0 109 £2.4 46.8% 1,318 634
Northumberland 208 64.5 &7 27.0 - 2,040 633
County Durham 269 50.7 225 42.4 19.6% 4,175 788
Hartlepool a7 50.2 54 Lr.7 -13.0% 802 856
Middlesbhrough 60 42.6 55 39.0 9.1% 1,289 914
Stockton-on-Tees 70 35.5 64 32.4 0.4% 1,219 618
Redcar & Cleveland 38 217 34 24.8 11.8% 865 631
Darlington 28 26.2 25 23.4 12.0% 692 643

Cases by Week
Cases by week show the significant reduction in cases during May and low numbers during June and July

before and increase in the beginning of August where the first new outbreaks were reported and continuing
to increase during September.

Middlesbrough COVID Cases Tested Weekly

34
26
19 20 25
10 9
I I 4 4 8 6 8
0\\\\
-6‘

160

140

120 111
100
80
60 48
40 I
20
6
o M

PR S S Sy A OIS o SRR

vsab": 5”’@?9‘5,9 vg‘u \\g :"b 5‘& 5@ 5, x\?@\\:}-\éé& 6}'5\\065‘\0*“\\}6@3%@*0@*0@6}@@ ‘(,é?
W o

'\‘9\'1?}0, h@'\/’\i\&‘-&'&"ﬁ' 'S(?"D"'b \'1‘\"”*'&'\‘)’\?"?'\\’&

Page 18



Cases Previous 21 Days
The most recent increase in cases began at the end of August. The rolling 3 day average shows daily cases
have remained steady before increasing over the previous 4 days. A lag in cases being added may be the
cause of the drop in the last day.

Middlesbrough COVID Cases by Specimen Test Date - Previous 21 Days

20

18

16

14

12

10

I Daily Cases

2 R R R R R R R R R R R LR
c'ﬁl 6"5? 6’"‘% o“‘s’z Q"ﬁz e“’# 6"4’ é"‘,@ e“"’z -5"‘? '»""‘,@ 'C"'* 's’,""’z

Pillar 2 Testing Rates
The table below shows the LA ranks for rate of positive Pillar 2 tests per 100,000 population. Data is covering
the previous 7 days up to 18" September. Middlesbrough ranks 44" highest for rate of positive tests
however the rate of tests per 100,000 shows Middlesbrough is ranked 34" highest nationally.

Data up to 18th September 2020

=@=3 Day Average

Rate of | Rate of .
. .. % Positive
Local Authority Postivies | Tests per e Tests
per 100k 100k Positive | Tests
South Tyneside 100.7 1,515 6.6% 132 2287
Mewcastle upon Tyne 100.4 1,613 6.2% 304 4886
Sunderland 87.9 1,683 5.2% 244 4674
Gateshead 85.6 1,526 5.6% 173 3083
Morth Tyneside 67.3 1,699 4.0% 140 3533
Morthumberland 51.8 1,681 3.1% 167 5419
Hartlepool 45.9 1,836 2.5% 43 1720
County Durham 41.5 1,740 2.4% 220 9225
Middlesbrough 33.3 1,641 2.0% a7 2313
Stockton-on-Tees 25.8 1,506 1.7% 51 2972
Redcar and Cleveland 24.1 1,471 1.6% 33 2017
Darlington 19.7 1,472 1.3% 21 1572

Page 19



Ethnicity

Data shows cases by ethnic group over the previous 6 weeks. The proportion of cases affecting Asian
residents in Middlesbrough was high during the first half of August but this changed to mostly affecting
White British residents.

Known ethnicity only
100§
6™ -
B gE—o=n
§ i
B &0
.
20
u - -~ (=] = L] =
2 B T T T TS N B I
Week
Ethnic group . White . Asian Other . Unknown
Age

Data shows that cases in the most recent 14 days affected young people and those in the 30-49 age group,
with much fewer cases in the older age groups, however we are starting to see cases in the older age groups
increasing.

Middlesbrough Cases by Age Group

25%
20%
20% 19% 15% 19%
16%
14% 14%
15% 13% 13% 4%
11%
10% 9%
o 7%
5%
5% I I :
0% I
0-19

20-29 30-39 40-49 50-59 60-69 70-79 80+

W Last 7 Days (7th-20th Sep) mAll

Page 20



COVID Cases Map — Previous 7 Days.

Tested between 13" Sep — 19" Sep 2020. The map below shows the positive COVID cases in the previous

21 days (red) and the count by LSOA area (shading). There was a total of 66 cases that tested positive during
the period.

Middlesbrough COVID Cases
L]

Count by LSOA Area
Count

<0

=]

<2

=3

=4

North
Ormesby

Newport

Brambl.es &
Thorntree

Berwick Hills
& Pallister

Longlands &

Park End &
Beechwood

Beéckfield

® :
Hemlington

Stainton &
Thornton

Nunthorpe

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Tees Valley

Clinical Commissioning Group

COVID-19 Virtual Ward

(COIVD Care@Home)

gz abed

Dr Janet Walker




Background

The Tees Valley has seen some of the highest infection
rates in the country; with Middlesbrough having one of
the highest infection and death rates

Some patients were presenting late,

Some had ‘silent hypoxia’- low oxygen levels with
patients not realising how unwell they were,

« Some can be very sick by the time they present in
hospital, and those presenting late have a poorer
prognosis.

o P2Zéhed

NHS

Tees Valley
Clinical Commissioning Group




« Tees Valley CCG chosen as one of 3 NHSE Vanguard
sites

+ Implemented home monitoring to detect deterioration of
& ‘silent hypoxia’ and enable earlier intervention to improve
& outcomes
* QOur COVID Virtual Ward — ‘COVID Care@Home
« Evaluation ongoing before national roll out
= \ [of Jo, e




Our COVID Virtual Ward — ‘COVID
Care@Home

Provided by alliance of the 3 GP federations (ELM Alliance,
Hartlepool & Stockton Health, Primary Healthcare Darlington)
Service delivered 7 days per week

Clinician supervised, nurse led monitoring

Pulse oximetry and physiological remote monitoring - using digital
app (for up to 14 days)

* App has inbuilt safety netting, so that if a patient enters deteriorating
saturations it automatically generates advice around action required,
including 999 or 111 for in and out of hours as needed in addition to
the telephone monitoring, and face to face assessments where
approprlate

WTL krﬁ = 17

=

9c abed

NHS

Tees Valley
Clinical Commissioning Group

ol PR H



Referral Source

« GP COVID-19 Hot clinics — primary care access clinics
Emergency Departments/Urgent Treatment Centres
On discharge from Hospital

After paramedic assessment

Test and Trace — COVID-19 positive patients can self
refer

Care homes

o /2 90€d,

NHS

Tees Valley

Clinical Commissioning Group

%ﬁ} 'uqh‘ $ _
L\//\ ‘H‘E"[\i’? [ T

— 11?1_1:1_1;;.3 \
T m—— i
VYN ——t_ | ]




Referral Criteria

Adult patients registered with Tees Valley CCG practice

Symptomatic COVID-19 positive patients or suspected
COVID-19 suitable for home monitoring

8z abgd

Referral criteria for pilot are very broad to gather data to
determine whom to monitor. The referral criteria will be

reviewed post evaluation in September.

\\\

S (e #

NHS

_4,_7,,—-» T Tees Valley
;:',: \ [ N \ Clinical Commissioning Group

!"



Exclusion Criteria

Children (under 18)

6¢ 9bed

Patients with chronic hypoxia, ( lower than ‘normal’
oxygen saturation level related to another respiratory or
other long term condition)

« Emergency health care plan in place where care would
not be escalated to hospital admission

NHS

Tees VaIIey
Clinical Commissioning Group

N / 8
\\// N 'ﬂWL pﬁ =
Lo = L

i 8 S \ ‘
) |
AW [




The Challenges

Changing incidence of covid infection

Complexity to identifying patients testing positive

Delays in test results reaching GP practices

Data Sharing — developed a data sharing agreement
with Public Health England

Communications — using the right words to describe the
service to encourage people to come forward, developed
leaflets in top 9 languages across the Tees Valley,
developed Easy Read leaflets

_* Low number of referrals (29 as of 17/9/2020)

S " \\LH i v

W A = L J

NN\ H Ot INHS
o & 7 —

Tees Valley

Clinical Commissioning Group

€ sbed

]?
U
>

— ey,



Patient Story

My name is Jessica, I'm 30 and I'm from Redcar. | live
with my husband and step daughter.

| never felt poorly, but track and trace contacted me after
a visit to a local restaurant. 4 days later my symptoms
started and | went for a test. The results came back by
email and text and | was positive. Self-isolating hasn’t
been too bad really as | have a few home based hobbies

to keep me busy.

T¢ obed,

NHS

Tees Valley
Clinical Commissioning Group




Patient story

* | ended up going to the Covid Clinic In
Middlesbrough and they referred me to the
Virtual ward. It was easy to join and | have
remembered to do all my readings easily.

The app and the equipment are simple to use,
and it has been a good experience for me. It was
very reassuring and | needed that.

* | had a couple of questions and the nurse got
pack to me very quickly. It made a difference
because It was very scary at first in isolation but

Z< ofeéed




Percelved Benefits

* Provides patient reassurance and safety

« Offers innovative approach for good clinical care in the
community.

« Earlier detection of deterioration, allowing earlier
0 . . . .
& Intervention, that gives better patient outcomes.
D
&

Embraces digital technology that enables clinicians to
focus on the patients most in need of input

« Expected to reduce length of stay in hospital.

* Reduces pressure on Emergency Departments, primary
care and secondary care with patients self caring at

NHS

Tees Valley
Clinical Commissioning Group




Any
Questions?

v abed

S ieaL

Tees Valley

f f | o \ Clinical Commissioning Group

T

AN



NHS

South Tees Hospitals
NHS Foundation Trust

Quality Accounts
2019-2020

Version 5, 16™ September 2020



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

PART ONE - Statement on Quality from the Chief Executive................... 4
PART TWO - Priorities for Improvement and Statements of Assurance
from the BOard ......cooooee e 8
Priorities fOr IMPrOVEMENT ... ....ii i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e reeaeeeeeennnes 8
Review of progress with the 2019/20 quality priorities. ............ccccuvvimiiiiiimiiiiiiiiiiiiiineee 8
PatieNt SAFELY ....ccoiieieiiii e 9
Statements of Assurance from the Board ... 65
REVIEW OF SBIVICES ... utttiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiitebbiebbb bbb ssssssssssnsssssnnnnnes 65
Participation in CliniCal AUIt ..........ccooiiiiiiie e e 65
Table 7: Local Clinical AUdit REPOIMS .......cccoeiiiiiiiiie e e e e e 76
Getting it Right First Time Programme (GIRFT) ..o, 77
CliNICAI RESEAITN ... .o 87
Patient ENQAGEMENT ... e e e e e e e e e 88
Goals Agreed with Commissioners — use of the CQUIN Payment Framework........... 88
Care Quality Commission COMPIANCE ..........uciiiiieeiiiiiice e 89
NHS number and general medical practice code validity.............cccccuvmimiiiiiiiiiiiininnnn. 94
Information Governance (IG) toolkit attainment levels ..., 94
ClINICAI COAING ... 95
Learning from DEALNS .........uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii bbb 95
Staff who ‘Speak Up’ (Including Whistleblowers)..............ccc 97
Reporting against Core iINAICATONS ........coiiiiiii i e e aa e eens 99
Domain 2 - Enhancing quality of life for people with long-term conditions................ 101

Domain 3 - Helping people to recover from episodes of ill health or following injury 102

Re-admission WIithin 28 daysS ..........oiiiiiiiiii e 103
Domain 4 - Ensuring people have a positive experience of care.............cccceeeeeeeennn. 104
Domain 5 - Treating and caring for people in a safe environment and protecting them
from avoidable NArM ... . ... 106
PART THREE — Other information ...........cccooviiiiiiii e 109

An overview of the quality of care based on performance in 2019/20 against indicators.109

PatieNt SAfELY .....ccoiiiiiiiiie e e e aaaaaaaa 109
F N0 [0 RS- 1{=To [0 F= 1 o [T T 112

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 36 PAGE 2



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Children’s Safeguarding .........cooooeiiiiooe 113
ClNICAl EffECHVENESS ... et e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeanannn s 114
SEVEN DAY SEIVICES ...uiieeiiiiieiiei ettt ettt e e e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e eeeeeanannnes 121
NHS Doctors and Dentists in TraiNiNg .......cocuuuuuiiiiiie e e e e e e e e eeennns 122
PatiENt EXPEIIENCE. ....uiiiiii et e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e e eaeeeeenae 123
Complaints and PALS ... e 123
Friends and Family TeSt (FFT) ...uuiiiiii e e e e 124
National NHS Staff Survey, 2019 .......ccoooiiiiiiiee e e e e 127
Performance against key national prioritieS ..o 146

Annex 1: Statements from Clinical Commissioning Groups and

Healthwatch and Scrutiny of Health Committee..............cc.coeiiiiennn. 148
Annex 2: Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the

(o TU = 1LY (=10 Lo 1 o 150
Annex 2: Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the

(o TU = 1LY (=10 Lo o 150
Annex 3: How to provide feedback on the accounts ...............ccevveee. 152
Annex 4: Glossary Of teIMS ... e 153

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 37 PAGE 3



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

PART ONE - Statement on Quality from the Chief
Executive

| am delighted to introduce the 2019/2020 Quality Report as Chief Executive of South Tees
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust.

Patient safety and quality remains integral to everything we do and we are committed to
ensuring our resources are used effectively in order to provide safe services and deliver

high standards of care for our patients.

In this report we have outlined our key achievements and successes against the quality
priorities that we identified for 2019/20 and also describe the quality priorities that we have
set for 2020/21.

Our clinicians are amongst the best in the country. They’re well trained and provide the best
care they can but they haven’t always been listened to when it comes to the way services

should be organised.

This was something hospital watchdogs told us in the summer of last year (2019) that we

needed to fix.

Since the autumn, the trust has undergone a number of significant changes. We're now
empower our clinicians to take the decisions about how we manage our resources and

deliver care across our hospitals and services.

That same clinically-led approach is the way they have worked together to meet the COVID-

19 challenge:

. In just 12 short weeks, as our clinicians separated our hospitals into COVID and non-
COVID units and began the gradual process of re-establishing services, they
delivered 3,400 theatre operations and provided a tenfold increase in virtual

outpatient appointments.

. Our laboratory colleagues were amongst the first in the country to develop round the
clock on-site testing for COVID-19 and moved mountains to quickly set up a service
to test patient and staff swabs 24 hours a day, seven days a week — working
continuously to improve turnaround times which rapidly decreased from over 24

hours to less than six hours.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 38 PAGE 4



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

. At the height of the pandemic, our critical care team was providing care to 26 patients
with COVID, as well as critically ill patients with other conditions. Throughout this
period the critical care and theatre teams worked together to ensure urgent non-

COVID-related surgery could continue.

. This work helped to ensure that more than 130 patients were able to be admitted

electively from theatres to critical care between 2 March and 4 May alone.

. Our cancer physicians worked with cardiothoracic surgeons and other clinical
colleagues to deliver more stereotactic radiotherapy to treat early stage lung cancer

as an alternative to cancer surgery due to the risks associated with COVID.

. Community nurses continued to visit their most vulnerable patients to deliver vital
care in their own homes, including those who had tested positive for coronavirus.

This meant changing the way care was delivered.

. At the Friarage, colleagues who came together on the Ainderby and Mowbray wards
enabled non-critical COVID-19 patients from across the Dales and elsewhere to

receive inpatient care, closer to home.

. And our procurement team sourced and delivered a staggering 5.3 million items of
personal protective equipment — including 600,000 items to neighbouring hospitals

and local care providers.

Every member of the South Tees family - nurses, midwives, doctors, allied health
professionals, scientific teams, administrative, support staff and volunteers — has done so

much for each other, our patients and our communities.

Moving forward, the delivery of safe patient care remains of paramount importance to our
clinicians, who work tirelessly to provide the very best care day in and day out. In the last
year they have delivered more than 2.7 million patient contacts across our services and we

know the vast majority have received excellent care.

Colleagues are now actively encouraged to report incidents and when a Never Event occurs,
clinicians carry out a thorough investigation of the incident to determine the cause and put

in place steps to reduce any re-occurrence.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 39 PAGE 5



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Reducing gram negative blood stream infections (GNBSI) is a national priority with the aim
of a 50% reduction in healthcare associated GNBSI by 2021. The burden, particularly of
E.coli, is challenging and requires reliable auditing to establish the potential multiple causes
of GNBSI’'s. During 2019/2020, the trust reported a total of 632 cases of the three GNBSI
organisms which are part of national surveillance (E.coli 468; Klebsiella species 117;
Pseudomonas aeruginosa 47). Of these, 130 cases were classed as trust-apportioned
(20.5%) as defined by the Department of Health definition. This is a 12.3% decrease in total

cases compared to 2018/19.

The Trust is committed to ensuring that patients have a positive experience of the Trust and
that patient feedback is acted upon to inform service improvements. The 1000 Voices
programme has allowed for the capture of ‘real time’ data at ward level and includes FFT
feedback. The Trust has utilised Meridian software to roll this out electronically via the use
of ipads that are available on wards and departments for completion by patients, carers,
relatives and parents. During 2019/20 a total of 7541 responses were received and patients
gave the Trust an overall rating of 9.03 out of 10. Ninety seven per cent of patients surveyed
described their experience of our service as very good or good.

The Trust is committed to improving the patient experience within the Outpatient setting. A
Task and Finish Group was established in October 2019 and a detailed action plan has been

developed and implemented, this is monitored via the Patient Experience Sub Group.

A review of working practices within the Ophthalmology OPD administration team has been

undertaken and new working practices implemented.

There was a programme of monthly Governor Drop-in sessions arranged for 2019/20 to all
outpatient departments however due to COVID-19 Pandemic these visits have been
suspended for the time being but will re-commence once guidance is received to allow this.
The Mystery Shopper initiative has been developed and was due to be launched in the
outpatient departments during patient experience week, but was cancelled due to COVID
19. The Mystery Shopper will be launched in September 2020.

The Trust is also participating in the ‘Moving to Good’ programme that is a collaborative
improvement programme organised by NHSE/I and is also in the process of re-launching

the STAQC ward accreditation programme.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 40 PAGE 6



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Despite challenging financial pressures on our services, and the NHS as a whole, we have

seen some significant improvements this year which we are immensely proud of.
To the best of my knowledge, the information contained in this Quality Account is accurate.
Sue Page

Chief Executive

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 41 PAGE 7



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

PART TWO - Priorities for Improvement and Statements
of Assurance from the Board

Priorities for improvement

Review of progress with the 2019/20 quality priorities.

In last year’s Quality Account we identified the following as our quality priorities for 2019/20:

Quality Priorities 2019/20

Clinical Effectiveness

Patient Experience

Improve recognition and
reporting of patient safety
incidents and ensure lessons
learnt are embedded across
the Organisation (including
pressure ulcers and
medication safety)

Ensure patients have a safe,
effective and timely discharge

Develop the patient
experience programme using
the Meridian system to
increase patient feedback
including ‘hard to reach’
groups

Reduce harm from HCAI with
a focus on Gram-negative
bacterial bloodstream
infections

Ensure there is recognition
and appropriate management
of patients who are clinically
deteriorating, including
compliance with the escalation
pathway

Review the way complaints
are investigated and
standardise complaint
responses

Reduce the occurrence of
‘Never Events’ and ensure
there is a focus in safe
surgical practice

Ensure that patients’ pain is
managed appropriately and
effectively

Improve the OPD experience
(via Governor drop-ins, secret
shopper and better
communication via all
channels)

Agree and implement the ‘End
of Life Care’ Strategy

Quality Report 2019-20

Page 42

PAGE 8




SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Patient Safety

Priority: Improve recognition and reporting of patient safety incidents and ensure lessons
learnt are embedded across the organisation (including pressure ulcers and medication
safety)

Rationale

Patient safety incidents are any unintended or unexpected incident which could have, or did,
lead to harm for one or more patients receiving healthcare. Reporting incidents supports the
NHS to learn from mistakes and to take action to keep patients safe.

The fair or just treatment of staff supports a culture of fairness, openness and learning in the
NHS by making staff feel confident to speak up when things go wrong, rather than fearing
blame. This allows us to have open, honest and transparent communication with our patients

and their families.

Supporting staff to be open about mistakes allows valuable lessons to be learnt so the same
errors can be prevented from being repeated. We recognise feedback is a valuable contribution
to the development of better quality healthcare and are therefore committed to identifying
lessons learned from incidents and near misses to ensure services across our organisation can
be improved.

e Serious Incidents will be identified and reported to our commissioners within the

mandated timeframes
o Development of standardised incident report form
¢ Establishment of a Datix user group, terms of reference and minutes of meetings.

¢ Implement Datix champions in all staff groups

Agreed Actions
A robust incident reporting action plan will be developed describing specific actions which will
include:

. Completion of a comprehensive review of incident management process including
discussing with staff at all levels and all staff groups to understand barriers to
reporting by end Q1 2019/20

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 43 PAGE 9



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Undertake review of different reporting mediums offered by our current software
provider, Datix by end Q2 2019/20.

Review of the ‘Incident Reporting Policy (G60) to ensure that it reflects agreed
processes as well as best practice by end Q1 2019/20.

Develop and implement a standardised incident report form on Datix for use across
the Trust as well as short forms that can feed into the main system by end Q2
2019/20.

All new starters receive a session on incident reporting at Trust Induction March)
evaluate effectiveness in Q2.

Focused work on wards/departments to ensure staff have the skills and knowledge to
recognise, report and investigate incidents in a timely manner. A work programme will
be developed to support this by end Q1 2019/20.

Outstanding incidents are reviewed on a weekly basis as part of the Patient Safety
wall.

A weekly review of open harm events with QBP’s (Quality Business Partners) and
patient safety will commence with the aim of closing down incidents within the week
that they are reported. This will be fully embedded across all centres by end Q2
2019/20.

Measures

of Success
Approval of the revised ‘Incident Reporting’ Policy

Implementation of improved system for reporting incidents — worked with TVN’s
(Tissue Viability Nurses) and ED and Clinical & Diagnostics

Increase in the number of Incidents reported — including Near Miss reporting in
groups of historically “low reporting” staff

Serious Incidents will be identified and reported to our commissioners within the
mandated timeframes

Development of standardised incident report form

Establishment of a Datix user group, terms of reference and minutes of meetings.

Implement Datix champions in all staff groups

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 44 PAGE 10




SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Progress

Completion of a comprehensive review of incident management process including
discussing with staff at all levels and all staff groups to understand barriers to reporting by
end Q1 2019/20

This piece of work has been undertaken in all clinical areas by the Quality Business Partners (QBP’s)

with groups of staff providing feedback on barriers including:

. Fear

. Not enough time

. Time consuming to complete
. Don’t get any feedback

Project leads (Patient Safety and Legal Services Lead and one of the QBP’s) will be meeting with
the Director of Education and Research to review how their training tools can be used to support

some of the work required on improving culture.

There is a Patient Safety section on Trust induction every month for all new Trust staff which covers

elements of incident reporting and culture.

Undertake review of different reporting mediums offered by our current software provider,
Datix by end Q2 2019/20.

The Trust continues to work towards the procurement of the Datix Cloud system which includes a
Voice Recognition incident reporting Application. Work continues to streamline coding structure and
the layout of the Incident Reporting form.

Review of the ‘Incident Reporting Policy (G60) to ensure that it reflects agreed processes as
well as best practice by end Q1 2019/20.

The Incident Reporting Policy (G60) was approved at Patient Safety Sub Group (PSSG) in
September 2019 and was presented to the Operational Management Board (OMB) in October 2019
for ratification. The Policy has now been ratified and uploaded onto the staff Intranet and re-
distributed.

Policy G60b relating to the management of Serious Incidents (SI's) is currently being reviewed to

reflect the impending changes nationally.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 45 PAGE 11



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Develop and implement a standardised incident report form on Datix for use across the Trust

as well as short forms that can feed into the main system by end Q2 2019/20.

Due to the lack of a Datix facilitator since April 2019, this task has not been completed but is in
progress. A Datix facilitator is however now in post and has developed a short form for pressure

ulcer reporting for the Emergency Department.

All new starters receive a session on incident reporting at Trust Induction (March)-evaluate

effectiveness in Q2

Incident reporting has increased from April 2019 to February 2020. Due to COVID-19 incident
reporting numbers decreased in March and April 2020, however appears to be starting to increase
again in the last 2 weeks of April.

Increase number of incidents reported on Datix

There were 21,020 incidents reported on Datix in 2019/20 compared with 16,369 in the previous
year. This represents a 28% increase and demonstrates significant progress in developing a positive

reporting culture.

2500
2180

2093”,,0\\\
2000

1756 18743 -
1978 1926 1581
1500 — 1434 1736

1558 1542

1453

1000

500

2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020
o4 o5 06 o7 o8 09 10 11 12 o1 o2 (e )=]

Figure 1: Number of Incidents Reported during 2019/20

The table below shows the number of incidents reported by staff group during 2019/20, with 77% of

incidents being reported by nursing staff.

Total Percentage
AHP 1708 8
Blood Transfusion 36 >1
Practitioner
Medical 675 3.2

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 46 PAGE 12



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Total Percentage

Nurse 16265 77

Other 1995 9

Private Company 1 >1
Scientific 187 >1

Student 21 >1
Technical 247 1.2

Trainee 97 >1

Total 21232

Table 1: Number of incidents reported by Staff Group 2019/20

More progress continues to be required around medical staff reporting on Datix, achieving 0.1% of
an increase of reporting numbers over the year from 3.1 to 3.2% of all incidents logged on Datix.
The introduction of a reporting Application is expected to improve this with the implementation of

the Datix cloud software in the coming months.

Focused work on wards/departments to ensure staff have the skills and knowledge to
recognise, report and investigate incidents in a timely manner. A work programme will be
developed to support this by end Q1 2019/20.

This has been delayed due to lack of Datix support staff. Some work has been undertaken by QBP’s

in this respect. This action is continuing.

Responding to Incidents training commenced in January. A review meeting was held on 17 March

2020. The training was well received but due to COVID-19 this was suspended.

Outstanding incidents are reviewed on aweekly basis as part of the Patient Safety and Quality

wall.

This is embedded practice and has helped secure an improvement in the number of historic open
incidents that can be closed down. A process for managing corporate incidents is being established.
A threshold of incidents that are expected to be open at any given time for each particular centre is

being developed, as there will always be a proportion of ‘open’ incidents.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 47 PAGE 13



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

A weekly review of open harm events with QBP’s (Quality Business Partners) and patient
safety will commence with the aim of closing down incidents within the week that they are

reported. This will be fully embedded across all centres by end Q2 2019/20.
This process has been embedded across the centres.
Approval of the revised ‘Incident Reporting’ Policy

The Policy has been approved at PSSG and ratified. As per previous comment, the updated G60b

policy is currently being reviewed in light of changes nationally that are taking place.

Serious Incidents will be identified and reported to our commissioners within the mandated

timeframes

Medical staff engagement in this area has improved with the patient safety manager being informed
verbally of incidents that have occurred that may be serious incidents/ never events, prior to these
being reported through the formal process, implying that staff are becoming more aware of potential

SI's and reporting these as soon as these are identified.

Establishment of a Datix user group, terms of reference and minutes of meetings.

This has been delayed due to a delay with the launch of Datix Cloud and also due to COVID-19.
Implement Datix champions in all staff groups

This action will be picked up as part of the establishment of a Datix user group and will either combine

with or be linked with the Patient Safety champions.
Pressure Ulcer Incidents

The Datix reporting form for pressure damage has been amended following staff feedback and the
launch of national reporting guidelines.

The changes include
o Alignment with NHS England guidance relating to pressure ulcer definitions.
o Prompt questions within the investigator section to strengthen learning.

e Introduction of reporting of pressure damage on first skin assessment (within Emergency
Department)

e Process review for determining if harm has acquired.

In addition reporting pressure damage was also included in the tissue viability link nurse training.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 48 PAGE 14



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Medication Incidents

Any serious medication incidents are shared across the organisation via the
safety@southtees alerts system or via learning templates

Common themes or significant incidents lessons learnt are shared with nursing staff across

the organisation in ‘Monthly Pharmacy focus’ which commenced in January 2019

Local education and training is provided to clinical teams across the organisation - ‘learning

from errors and incidents’ is delivered by the ward based clinical pharmacy teams

All lessons learnt from pharmacy medication incidents are shared at the departmental weekly
huddle and via email and included in the minutes from the huddle.

Priority: Reduce harm from HCAI (Healthcare Acquired Infections) with a focus on Gram-
negative bacterial bloodstream infection

Rationale
Reducing gram negative blood stream infections (GNBSI) is a national priority with the stated
aim of a 50% reduction in healthcare associated GNBSI by 2022/2023.

Progress

Conduct robust surveillance and review of cases of GNBSI to have a targeted approach for
interventions that specifically aim at preventing the most common sources of GNBSIs-
Thematic analysis on-going. Surveillance processes are in place to ensure accurate data is
entered and submitted to the IPCT and Public Health England databases

Implement interventions targeted at reducing common sources of GNBSI -Audits and
initiatives are on-going

Ensure prompt identification of people who are at risk of developing an infection so that they
receive appropriate treatment as part of surveillance and thematic analysis

To identify issues with continence that may lead to patients developing GNBSIs-Through on-
going audits and collaborative working with the continence group

Provide training tailored towards preventing device related infections and GNBSI-ANTT 95%

training completion targeted for end of Quarter 4

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 49 PAGE 15



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

The three GNBSI organisms which are part of national surveillance include Escherichia Coli (E. coli),
Klebsiella and Pseudomonas aeruginosa (P.aeruginosa). The trust has demonstrated reductions in

E. coli bacteraemia figures for 2019/20 compared with 2018/19 as follows:

Organism 2018/19 2019/20 % difference
E.coli 128/517 (25%) 81/468 (17%) -6%
Klebsiella 37/135 (27%) 34/117 (29%) +2%
P. aeruginosa 11/37 (30%) 15/47 (32%) +2%

Table 2: Percentage comparison of GNBSIs for 2018/19 and 2019/20

During 2019/2020, the trust reported a total of 632 cases of the three GNBSI organisms which are
part of national surveillance (E.coli 468; Klebsiella species 117; Pseudomonas aeruginosa 47). Of
these, 130 cases were classed as trust-apportioned (20.5%) as defined by the Department of Health
definition. This is a 12.3% decrease in total cases compared to 2018/19.

Collaborative working continues with the wider community as part of the Tees-wide collaborative
which supports a number of initiatives within the community setting. In addition a detailed
retrospective audit of 5 sets of notes per month continues to build up a significant dataset to
potentially enable correlations with patient-related contributory themes in the challenge to identify

causes of E. coli infections.

Gram negative cases - source of bacteraemia summary (Oct - Mar
2020)

80
70

67

o))
pey

50

=
¢

30 23 23
20 12
6 5 3 2 2
10
0 . . . - N s e e .
=z 2 E o2 w8298 § 3Tz Z., B
3 2 Z s 39,3235 535 2 552 &g 2
5 = S 2fpgSSS85%5%2% 32 B32saE 37
2 3 S 323EB828FZpSZ5RY% 8= [ pERrToc e =T
= <= 223822885287 52 20822355 =i
= g = o S8 oz S 5% gz =5
2 g £< @SB 34 g T =% g3 =
- i  dm -8 ° o [SI] = =
Figure 2: GNBSI source of bacteraemia
Interventions and ongoing actions:
1. Urinary Tract Infections (UTI’'s) remain the leading cause of GNBSIs. In response to the

ambition of a 50% reduction in healthcare associated GNBSI by 2022/2023, the trust has a

Quality Report 2019-20 PAGE 16

Page 50



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

GNBSI annual plan with initiatives and reduction strategies to reduce rates of GNBSIs
including promotion of hydration (for staff and patients), central venous catheter care and
training and education for staff through ward toolbox teaching and Aseptic Non-Touch
Technique (ANTT).

. Hydration awareness stalls were in place in June 2019, July 2019 and in October 2019 to
improve staff and public hydration awareness.

. Hydration stations are actively promoted for staff within clinical areas.

. Urine matrix and colour charts distributed to clinical areas in September 2019 to aid

assessment of hydration status.

In working collaboratively with the Trust special interest continence group, measures to reduce the
number of urinary catheter insertions have been implemented including promotion of the use of
bladder scanners; a catheter point prevalence audit was conducted at South Tees in May 2019. All
patients who had catheters were audited for compliance with the catheter pathway, appropriate use
of the urine bag, diagnosis and treatment of UTI and management of continence.

The catheter pathway informs appropriate reasons for catheterisation, plans for removal of catheters

according to clinical need to prevent unnecessary prolonged catheterisation, associated urinary tract

infections and subsequent bacteraemia.

65%
60%
50%
A40%
30% 2596
- 22%
20%
" = . =
- - -
0%
| NA ves | No ‘ NA

Yes | MNo

The catheter care pathway is in place and filled
in correctly including the insertion record

The reason for insertion is clearly documented
and corresponds to clinical plans

Figure 3: Point prevalence catheter pathway audit (May 2019)

The catheter pathway was found to be widely used in patients who had catheters (62%) in May 2019.
In order to gain assurance of appropriate continence management and plans that are put in place
for patients who are being discharged with catheters, staff were surveyed to see if they were familiar
with the continence formulary and if they were aware of the discharge arrangements for patients
who had urinary catheters. 62% of staff advised they were familiar with the continence formulary and
99% of staff knew the appropriate arrangements required for patients who were being discharged

with urinary catheters (Figure. 3).

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 51 PAGE 17



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

120%

1009

80%

B60%

40%%

20%

0%

99%

W Yes

Mo

Are you aware and familiar Can you tell me when it is Can you tell me what discharge
with the continence formulary appropriate to use procedure arrange ments should be made
sheets for patients with catheters

Figure 4: Staff survey of continence management and discharge plans for patients who

have urinary catheters

Catheter prevalence audits are set to continue in 2020/21 led by the Frailty team.

ANTT is a set of principles designed to reduce the risk of infections during an invasive
procedure and is fundamental in reducing GNBSIs associated with line/catheter and wound

infections.

A trust wide targeted programme has been developed to cascade ANTT training which
commenced in March 2019 to ensure appropriate management of invasive procedures; with

an increased focus on critical care areas where patients have a variety of invasive devices.

In April 2019 an external review of ANTT practices focussing on cannula management was
carried out at South Tees which has enabled a targeted educational approach including a
‘glove awareness’ initiative. The Trust target of 95% ANTT training delivered has been
achieved in critical care areas. Trust-wide ANTT training compliance is around 80%. An
ANTT audit programme will be in place in 2020/21 to enable continued surveillance of

practice.

Critical care patients are recognised to be at higher risk of GNBSIs because of invasive
devices which are known to increase infection risk in patients. In April 2019 the 'Blue Pillow
Initiative' trial was initiated in critical care areas aimed at reducing line infections through the
use of a dedicated pillow for the head (reducing risk of inadvertently placing a pillow that may
have been used to assist in positioning near a central ‘neck line’ and increasing risk of

contaminating the neck line). Although there was no reduction in cases of GNBSIs in blue

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 52 PAGE 18



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

pillow areas by the end of March 2020, the use of blue pillows demonstrates good practice
that has now been embedded into practice.

3. A “traffic-light” system of water jug lids was devised and piloted on a general gerontology
ward to improve recognition and management of reduced fluid intake. This project was led
by clinicians and supported by infection prevention and control team by identifying priority
areas for rolling out the project; in terms of high catheter use and a higher incidence of GNBSI
areas. The pilot received good feedback; with results shared in September 2019 and planned
for roll out across the organisation. Hydration champions will be identified within clinical areas

to assist with the roll out.

The ambition to reduce GNBSI by 50% by 2022/23 is on-going. The next step would be for the trust
to set local realistic targets of around 6-10% reduction year on year with focussed efforts based on

thematic analysis.

Priority: Reduce the occurrence of ‘Never Events’ and ensure there is a focus on safe
surgical practice

Rationale

Never Events are considered unacceptable and eminently preventable incidents. Harm free
compassionate care in the operating theatre should be a fundamental element of the Trust’s
operating theatres vision. All healthcare staff involved in clinical practice in a patients’ theatre
journey have a common goal which is to prevent harm and deliver safe patient care to the
highest standards. Although Never Events are rare, two recent events both occurring in the
operating theatres on the James Cook Hospital site have identified several factors that

contributed to these Never Events in December 2018 and January 2019.

Following the detailed investigation reports it is apparent that work is required to strengthen the
use of the World Health Organisation (WHQO) Theatre Checklist to ensure effective team
communication, verification of the correct operation and correct site surgery. As a result the
Time Out Checklist needs to be underpinned by standards and training, it requires full
engagement from all disciplines in the theatre multi-disciplinary team as it will not work in

isolation.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 53 PAGE 19



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

A review of the contributing human factors identified that there are team factors to be taken into
account and addressed, including leadership, culture and behaviours as well as clarity of

individual roles and accountability in relation to the “Time out’.

Staff should feel empowered to use the ‘Stop’ phrase to raise concerns. All theatres now have a
‘STOP, I am not happy’ phrase visible within each operating theatre. A ‘Sign out’ phase has
been included on the swab count board to ensure compliance by the theatre scrub team.
Incident forms also need to be completed as soon as an error is detected. Staff allocation has
now been amended to clearly identify the lead in each theatre on a daily basis and that the Safer
Surgery SOP/LocSSIP (Local Safety Standard for Invasive Procedures) needs to be available in
each theatre and the Safer Surgery Policy also requires review.

Actions
All of the above and compliance with all aspects of safer surgery processes should be therefore

reassessed across all staff groups through the establishment of an MDT (multi-disciplinary team)
Safer Surgery Group to formulate the required actions and learning to improve safer surgery
compliance. The following lessons learnt have been identified:-

Ensure everyone is aware who the senior theatre team member is and who is in charge day to
day.

Operating surgeon responsibility — the operating surgeon should always perform the safer
surgery ‘Time out’. 100% compliance with formal time out/sign out.

Concerns should be raised or escalated immediately to senior theatre staff so that a timely
decision can be made and guidance given.

The introduction of a ‘nurse educator role’ within theatres similar to ICU (intensive care unit) is
currently being explored since this is currently lacking and would provide some assurance that
all staff are trained appropriately to their roles.

All new members of staff from the MDT should have completed their local induction (inclusive of
safer surgery presentation) — this could be overseen by the above Nurse Educator for
Anaesthesia.

Promoting an open and honest culture of reporting incidents when errors have been identified.
In addition, through the establishment of the MDT Safer Surgery Group, there should be a
renewed focus on the safety critical sign out process in accordance with existing Trust LocSSIP
standards of practice. The team should also be focused on the ‘Sign Out’ phase which should be
fully observed and performed after the final count is performed and before the patient is woken

from anaesthesia with all medical staff present. This is included in the Trust’s annual audit plan.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 54 PAGE 20



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

The observational audit is undertaken weekly in one theatre, and all theatres are covered within

the audit throughout the year.

Measures of success
e Zero tolerance with Never Events

¢ 100% compliance with required time-outs
e 100% compliance with completion of the WHO Surgical Checklist
e 100% compliance with the ‘Sign Out’ process

e LocSSIP’s available and embedded in all areas

Progress

Consistent with the Trust’'s improved safety and reporting culture, in 2019/20 there were eight Never
Events reported meeting the serious incident criteria, where potential harm was identified. Four of
these related to surgical or anaesthetic practice. The Trust agreed that Safer Surgery would be a
Trust Quality Priority and this report sets out the work and the learning that has taken place to
implement safer surgery practices across the Trust with the aim of eliminating ‘Never Events’ by 31st
March 2022. The Trust is also participating in the ‘Moving to Good’ Programme’ organised by NHSE
and NHS Improvement for Organisations rated by the Care Quality Commission as ‘requiring

improvement’.

During the last 12 months there have been two audit mornings held which focused on safety. A
multidisciplinary representation of those teams involved in recent Never Events presented to a wide
audience of colleagues including theatre staff, surgeons and anaesthetists. As a result of this a
Safer Surgery Oversight Group has now been established to implement safer surgery practices
across the Trust working towards eliminating Never Events. The group has developed a ‘Safer
Surgery Improvement Plan’ which is a comprehensive working document that outlines actions
required, by whom, expected dates of completion and evidence to support completed actions and
sustained improvements to monitor and track that risks have been reduced. The plan outlines four
main themes which have been identified through the learning following the eight Never Events:

. Organisational Factors (addressed through the Trust’s improvement plan and renewed focus

on empowering clinical leadership since October 2019)

. Team Factors
. Sharing and Learning and Training
. Human Factors

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 55 PAGE 21



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

The Safer Surgery Oversight Group was led by one of the Medical Directors with group membership
made up of key clinical and patient safety personnel and meets fortnightly to maintain focus and
momentum. Terms of reference have been established which set out the purpose and connectivity
of the group into the wider organisation. It also identifies the members, frequency, and the overall
aims and objectives of the Group.

The Clinical Director in Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery has been identified as the Human Factors
lead and alongside other anaesthetic consultant colleagues has rolled out a programme of training
sessions on Human Factors. These have been well attended by theatre staff, with 64 staff attending
the training so far. Initially the focus has been on anaesthetic and surgical colleagues undertaking
the training. Staff feedback has been excellent; all staff completed an evaluation to provide evidence
and a summary of the session. The Human Factors training has also identified additional factors

relating to patient safety to consider within the improvement plan.

The Safer Surgery Improvement Plan was developed following an external review by NHS England
and NHS Improvement during the period of 1st January 2018 to 30th November 2019 of surgically
related Never Events. A visit to the operating department by senior nursing leaders in January 2020
identified similar themes to the external review. In addition to this, NHSE and the Trust commissioned
an external review by Airedale NHS Trust which took place on the 24™ February to support our
improvement plan around safer surgery. It had been identified by all stakeholders that this review
would provide significant benefit to the trust by gaining an understanding of the current systems and
processes of Never Events. This would also determine whether or not there were additional common
factors not already identified in our own internal analysis processes and to identify any additional
improvement actions, beyond those already in place that the Trust should consider to minimise the
risk of recurrence of similar Never events. We are awaiting the report from Airedale and this is

anticipated to be received within the next few months.

A Local Safety Standards for Invasive procedures (LocSSIP) Group within the trust has been
established and is developing LocSSIP’s across a range of procedures. The trust LocSSIP group is
made up of clinicians from across the trust and has been meeting since November 2018. Progress
on the development of LocSSIP’s is outlined in the Safer Surgery Improvement Plan tracked under
Organisational Factors and progress reviewed through the oversight group. All LocSSIP’s will be

audited on an 18 month rolling programme with the outcomes being published on the trust intranet

page.

The safer surgery improvement plan is a 2 year project therefore work will continue on this priority.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 56 PAGE 22



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Priority: Ensure patients have a safe, effective and timely discharge

Rationale
Unnecessarily prolonged stays in hospital are bad for patients. Tackling long stays in hospital will

reduce the risk of patient harm, disability and unwarranted cost. Congestive hospitals struggle to
deliver the best care, reduced bed occupancy through improved flow greatly improves the working
and care environment. (NHS Improvement 2018)

Every day in hospital is a precious day away from home. We want to embed a home first mind
set across our health and social care system, the aim is to do everything we can so that our
patients, especially older people, can continue to enjoy their lives in their own home environments.
For the few that cannot go home from hospital we should endeavour to minimise delays as patients

move to a location most suited to meeting their needs.

Patients with a length of stay over seven days are defined as ‘stranded’ and patients with a length

of stay over twenty one days are defined as ‘long stay’ patients.

A ‘delayed transfer of care’ (DToC) occurs when a patient is ready to leave a hospital or similar
care provider but is still occupying a bed. Delays can occur when patients are being discharged
home or to a supported care facility, such as a residential or nursing home, or are awaiting transfer

to a community hospital or hospice. (Please note this terminology is no longer used)

The benefits of reducing the time that a patient occupies an acute hospital bed are clear, but
achieving this has proven difficult, particularly in the winter period. Long stay patients account for
about 8% of overnight admissions generally and have an average length of stay of 40 days
nationally (NHS Improvement).

The term ’patient flow’ refers to the ability of a health care system to manage patient effectively
and with minimal delays as they move through stages of care. The consequences of poor flow

are known:
e ED becomes crowded, stressful and unsafe.
o Patients are admitted as outliers to areas that are not best suited to manage their care.
e Ambulatory care services may fill with patients waiting for ward admission.

¢ In patients are shuffled between wards to make capacity for newcomers.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 57 PAGE 23



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

e Staff are over stretched and routine activity slowed down dramatically.

o Clinical outcomes are measurably worse, particularly for frail older people who may suffer

more harm events and may decondition due to the extended stay in hospital beds.

e Patient and carers time is wasted due to delays and slow care process and their experience

is adversely affected.

Reasons for delays relate very much to the communication and interface between the acute
provider and social or continuing health care. Delays can also be classified using a national
‘Clinical Utilisation Review’ (CUR) tool which measures and monitors patient need for an acute

bed. The main delay categories associated with ‘CUR not met’ are;

¢ Awaiting assessments
¢ Medications and intravenous therapies
e Access to diagnostics

e Access to therapies

The average CUR ‘not met’ in the acute setting in 2018/19 was 34.0%.

These delays can be compounded if internal processes are not robust, specifically our Model
Ward approach based on SAFER principles (NHSI, 2017):

S — Senior review. All patients will have a senior review before midday by a clinician able to make
management and discharge decisions.

A — All patients will have an expected discharge date and clinical criteria for discharge. This is set
assuming ideal recovery and assuming no unnecessary waiting.

F — Flow of patients will commence at the earliest opportunity from assessment units to inpatient
wards. Wards that routinely receive patients from assessment units will ensure the first patient
arrives on the ward by 10 am.

E — Early discharge. 33% of patients will be discharged from base inpatient wards before midday.
R — Review. A systematic multi-disciplinary team review of patients with extended lengths of stay
(>7 days — ‘stranded patients’) with a clear ‘home first’ mindset.

The CUR ‘not met’ reasons, the need to further embed SAFER principles along with the need for
optimal communication with local authority and clinical commissioning group colleagues form the

basis of the improvement action required:

Actions

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 58 PAGE 24



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Implement the use of the discharge care plan as part of the new nursing documentation
pack on all adult in patient wards by end May 2019.

Regular review of delayed discharge and length of stay metrics and associated actions put
in place. This will take place operationally at a weekly ‘discharge wall’ and strategically at
a monthly meeting attended by key staff members of the acute Trust, local authorities and
the CCG.

Increase focus on the increasing population of frail patients; pilots of multidisciplinary frailty

team approaches to planning transfers and discharge.

Implement criteria led discharge on three wards by the end of Q2 and eight wards by the
end of Q4.

Implement a robust model of working for the Patient Resource and Flow Team. By end
Q2.

Ensure improvement plans in place for CUR ‘not met’ categories are in place by end Q2
(Awaiting assessments, medications and intravenous therapies, access to diagnostics,

access to therapies).

Embedded frailty screening for all people aged over 65 within all admission routes to

enable earlier targeted assessment and intervention by end Q3.

Implement engagement programme with Clinical Directors (CD) to optimise the use of
SAFER principles via a new CD forum by end Q2.

Measures of Success

Decreasing rate of delayed transfers of care to below the 3.5% upper threshold.

Decreasing average length of stay in the acute setting — individual directorates to set own
targets by end Q2 relative to baseline to achieve either top quartile or top decile against

national benchmarks.
Decreased number of discharge related PALS and patient complaints.

Improving trend of discharges before 12 midday, towards the Trust target of 35% by the
end of Q4 with a stepped target of 25%.

Set baseline and improvement trajectories for decreasing length of stay in patients with

clinical frailty by end Q1.

Decreasing levels of harm in patients with frailty. Baseline and improvement targets to be

set by end Q2 and monitored via Datix and the frailty dashboard.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 59 PAGE 25




SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Progress

Implement the use of the discharge care plan as part of the new nursing documentation
pack on all adult in patient wards by end May 2019.

e The new nursing documentation pack has been developed and rolled out which includes a
discharge care plan that is initiated at the point of admission to enable safe and effective
discharge. We have supplemented this with a pilot of a “STOP” initiative on four wards which
ensures the nurse in charge has the final oversight of the discharge of their patients and the
patient has the information to empower them to challenge any aspects of their discharge
arrangements. This pilot will be evaluated and scaled up across wider parts of the
organisation through 2020/21. There will continue to be improvements made such as
including clear discharge pathways in the documentation to enable effective discharge

planning.
STOP Initiative

NHS

South Tees Hospitals

HH% Fourdatian Trust

Has a nurse
completed your
discharge checklist?

Information about my medical Inforrmation albout my future Aryy medications
condition or treatrment has been care needs has been disoussed | need have been
explainad to me. with me or mry carer. Fo) given and explained.

© .. 10
! -
-~ cd o 6
| have been informed 1 All canrulas and neadies

® o
that & better will ba L - hawe been remaoved.
sent to my GP on
discharge. vou can ask o o
hi

for a copy of this.

1 hawe an advice leaflet advising
mea what o doon my return
home, induding contact

numbers for the ward'Dept.
| have appropriate dothes Hmhers e

to oo horme inand any
waluables induding
equipment hawe been

returmed to me.

HOmE arrangements are
in place such as groceries,
heating and transport.

Quality Report 2019-20

Page 60

PAGE 26



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Regular review of delayed discharge and length of stay metrics and associated actions put
in place. This will take place operationally at a weekly ‘discharge wall’ and strategically at a
monthly meeting attended by key staff members of the acute Trust, Local Authorities and the
CCaG.

A weekly “Where best next?” group has been established that brings together senior management,
the patient flow team and clinical matrons to identify opportunities for improvement and lead change
to reduce the length of stay for patients including improving discharge processes. A strategic group
has been established that meets monthly that includes the acute Trust, Local Authorities and CCG.

Increase focus on the increasing population of frail patients; pilots of multidisciplinary frailty
team approaches to planning transfers and discharge.

A new frailty liaison team has been established to identify patients with frailty and support ward

teams to expedite timely and safe discharges.
Implement criteria led discharge on 3 wards by end Q2 and 8 wards by end Q4

We realised with the implementation of the “Where best next?” Group that the focus needed to be
on embedding the SAFER principles to then enhance this with Criteria Led Discharge during
2020/21.

Implement a robust model of working for the Patient Resource and Flow Team by the end of

Q2

Clinical leadership has been established as an integral element of the patient flow team to inform

effective decision making relating to right time, right place, right patient that is clinically determined.

Ensure improvement plans in place for Clinical Utilisation Review (CUR) ‘not met’ categories
are in place by end Q2 (Awaiting assessments, medications and intravenous therapies,

access to diaghostics, access to therapies)

An improvement plan has been developed to address the reasons for delay within the CUR ‘not met’
categories. A discharge delays escalation process has been developed to manage delays on a
continuous basis. Daily automated reports from Medworxx (a clinician decision-making support tool)

have been developed that are circulated to managers where action is required to reduce delays.

Embedded frailty screening for all people aged over 65 within all admission routes to enable
earlier targeted assessment and intervention by end Q3.

Frailty screening is in place.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 61 PAGE 27



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Implement engagement programme with Clinical Directors (CD’s) to optimise the use of

SAFER principles via a new CD forum by end Q2

The Clinical Policy Group has engaged with discussions relating to SAFER principles and
opportunities to improve patient flow. Regular updates and discussions will continue with the group

to inform the patient flow improvement plan.
Measures of success:
Decreasing rate of delayed transfers of care to be below the 3.5% upper threshold

Whilst we have not consistently achieved the upper threshold of 3.5%, the organisation has
progressed actions to reduce the number of delayed transfers of care. An organisation wide
improvement plan ‘getting back to our best’ has been developed that includes improving patient flow

and discharge.

There has been a focus on implementing SAFER, improvements around repatriation processes,
implementing the choice policy and timely discharge. The Clinical Utilisation Review (CUR) system

Medworxx is a key tool for identifying delays and tracking improvements following intervention.

Decreasing average length of stay in the acute setting — individual directorates to set own
targets by end Q2 relative to baseline to achieve either top quartile or top decile against

national benchmarks

Medworxx reports are circulated to identify patients in a hospital bed who are ready for discharge
and those waiting over 14 days to support the clinical review of patients to reduce the length of stay

for patients where appropriate.

One example of an initiative is that the Trust implemented a Diagnostic Virtual Ward from mid -
January 2020 which enables a patient to be discharged home but have a test within an inpatient
timescale which reduces their length of stay in hospital. A co-ordinator then tracks the appointment,

attendance and result to inform the patient’s consultant.
Decreased number of discharge related PALS and patient complaints

Numbers look consistent with last year with no significant decrease in numbers. We will continue to
work on further discharge initiatives that improve patient experience and safety such as the “STOP”

project.

Improving trend of discharges before 12 midday, towards the Trust target of 35% by the end
of Q4, with a stepped target of 25%.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 62 PAGE 28



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

A list of potential discharges for the day and next day is shared with the clinical matrons and the
patient flow team on a daily basis. Wards are encouraged to use the discharge lounge and plan for
discharge the day before a planned discharge so that patients can be discharged before 12 midday,
when appropriate. Further action is ongoing to focus on any delays in requesting and processing
medications as well as timely discharge letters to facilitate discharge before midday.

Set baseline and improvement trajectories for decreasing length of stay in patients with
clinical frailty by end Q1

Throughout 2019-20 we have increased frailty screening across the organisation on all appropriate
wards. We have also implemented a daily frailty report linked to the daily transfers of care report.
Frailty scores are now displayed on all our patient status at a glance boards and this information
follows the patient between wards. The daily report has replaced the frailty dashboard and contains
details relating to length of stay and services accessed in the community i.e. falls and therapy. These
features within the report enable it to be used by ward teams during discharge planning. In addition,
a new frailty liaison team has been commissioned and this team will from March 2020 use the report
to target patients with frailty, supporting ward teams to expedite timely and safe discharges. This
work remains ongoing and we anticipate demonstrable gains in length of stay in Q1 & Q2 of 2020-

21 once the team is in place.

Decreasing levels of harm in patients with frailty. Baseline and improvement targets to be

set by end Q2 and monitored via Datix and the frailty dashboard

Decreases in the levels of harm in patients with frailty have not been seen as expected. The end of
year position is anticipated to be very similar to 2018-19. Our work to better understand harms in
this group has confirmed that prolonged hospital stays, deconditioning and the management of new
confusion greatly increases the risk of harm. In light of these findings we can focus the function of
the new frailty liaison team to reduce lengths of stay in those patients they see and as a consequence

impact on rates of harm.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 63 PAGE 29



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Clinical Effectiveness

Priority:
Ensure there is recognition and appropriate management of patients who are
clinically deteriorating, including compliance with the escalation pathway

Rationale

Early recognition of patients who are deteriorating is essential to enable appropriate intervention
and prevent further deterioration to the point of requiring resuscitation and avoidable admission
to a Critical Care unit. Early recognition aims to reduce the risk of patients needing to stay longer

in hospital, not recovering fully or dying.

The Trust has utilised an electronic system to record physiological observations since October
2014.

VitalPAC is a suite of platforms that focuses on timely and appropriate physiological

observations using the NEWS 2 model.

Progress

Monitoring of physiological observations / e-observations

The e-observation solution VitalPAC continues to be used to monitor observations, the frequency
determined by the acuity of iliness. The performance side has become more challenging over the
year as compliance of physiological observations cannot be easily viewed by ward based clinicians
to drive improvement in practice. The contract for VitalPAC is coming to an end and therefore we
are embarking on a tendering process. There is a requirement to have a monitoring solution that
provides information readily available on physiological observation performance, escalation and

response in line with the ‘Recognition and response to patient deterioration’ algorithm.

Adult in patient audit of acuity of illness and level of care
In March, 2020 an annual point prevalence study was conducted to determine the acuity of illness
and the level of clinical burden of each adult patient within the organisation. The following data
collected,

e Level of care (ICS)

e Frequency of observations — appropriateness to level of acuity

e NEWS2 score —Scale 1/2

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 64 PAGE 30



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

e Recognition of acute illness

e Escalation in line with the recognition and response to deterioration algorithm
e Response to the recognition and response algorithm

e Stratified Treatment Escalation Plan (STEP) form completed

¢ DNARCPR (Do Not Attempt Cardio Pulmonary Resuscitation) forms completed

This audit requires presenting and sharing at appropriate forums however this was delayed due to

Covid-19 but the audit has now been shared.

G136 Recognition & Management of the Acutely Ill & Deteriorating Patient Policy Update
The Trust policy related to the recognition and response to the deteriorating patient has been
reviewed and updated to reflect national guidance and recommendations.

Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN)

One of the confirmed CQUIN measures for 2020/21 is to report on the recording and compliance of
NEWS2, recognition, escalation and response time for unplanned Critical Care admissions. In the
future it is planned for the sepsis nurses role to become more generic in order for us to deliver on
data collection, reporting and service improvement. This will support the achievement of the

deteriorating patient CQUIN measure.

Call for Concern (C4C) — Patient and relative activated Critical Care Outreach (CCO)

C4C has been approved via the Acutely Il Patient Group and the Nursing and Midwifery forum with
an implementation plan detailing a phased approach with commencement date of April 2020. An
awareness campaign has been supported by Public Relations with readiness to implement. The

phases are as follows;

. Phase 1 - Patients discharged from Critical Care and patients admitted with a Learning
Disability

. Phase 2 — Patients that have been reviewed by Critical Care Outreach

. Phase 3 — All adult inpatients

Community / Acute Interface NEWS2 — update

A successful application attracted funding from Academic Health Science Network (AHSN) to
undertake a service evaluation to enhance the use of NEWS2 (a tool to measure patient
deterioration) across the patient pathway from community settings to acute. The National Early
Warning Score 2 (NEWS2) has been implemented in selected areas in the primary care setting and

across the North East Ambulance Service. This was with the intent to enable a quantifiable

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 65 PAGE 31



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

physiological assessment of a patient’s clinical condition at any point in the patient pathway and
provide a commonality of language when escalating an acutely unwell patient. The quarter 4 report
is due in June, followed by a project end evaluation.

Agreed Objectives

* Embark on tendering process to attract an e-observation solution that can be easily
adopted by clinical staff and provides real time information on compliance of physiological
observations, escalation and response to the deteriorating patient

» Share findings of the adult in patient audit of acuity of illness and level of care

* Systems have been put in place to respond to the collection of data and reporting post
COVID

» Activate plan to introduce C4C post COVID

e Community / Acute Interface NEWS2 — update

Priority: Ensure that patients’ pain is managed appropriately and effectively in the patient

setting

Rationale

Good pain management improves patient experience and outcomes. It is a marker of good care
and clinical effectiveness in all age groups.

In older adults and those with clinical frailty pain can be a contributing factor to delirium.
Development of delirium frequently impacts on length of stay and contributes to delayed
transfers of care (DToCs) and patient harm.

Effective pain management is reliant on:

o Timely and appropriate prescribing
¢ Regular assessment of pain using an appropriate and validated tool

e Safe administration

o Evaluation of analgesia using an appropriate and validated tool

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 66 PAGE 32



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Progress

Achieved

Algorithms of referral reviewed in line with the Specialist Palliative Care (SPC) Team and
Pain Management Team, circulated again as refresher and both are available on the
Intranet for staff to access.

Pain assessment of patients through the Quality Indication Collection (QIC) audit across all
inpatient areas, particularly relating to reassessment of pain, to be reported through clinical
standards.

Preceptorship — Elements of pain management are covered throughout the programme, also
there is a dedicated session as part of this.

Meridian IT system implemented with report access and utilisation increased with user
participation in all centres demonstrating improvement in patient experience regarding Pain
Management.

Work completed with the Quality Business Partners regarding collation of complaints/PALS
(Patient Advice and Liaison Service) etc. around specific pain management criteria and
lessons learned shared

Pain management is one of the measurements included in the ‘real Time’ patient feedback
and scores for this are included in the monthly quality report. During the last 3 months of
2020/21 the pain management score from patients was 9.54 in January, 9.52 in February
and 9.50 in March therefore confirming that patients consider their pain to have been
managed appropriately.

Within ED Intentional Rounding is undertaken to provide assurance to the Directorate to
ensure that patients are receiving high quality care, patient centred care and key themes are
discussed at the daily communication huddle.

Learning from complaints, compliments, incident reporting and quality metrics are
triangulated to ensure safety of the service and these are discussed at the weekly centre
oversight meeting and information is displayed for team dissemination.

Intentional Rounding in the Emergency Department has been successfully implemented and
embraced by the team around pain management, re-assessment remains a challenge
Frailty team pilot established with Band 7 lead and x1 Band 6 due to commence in post in

March, further B6 post unfilled to liaise regarding frailty

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 67 PAGE 33



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Partially Achieved — Further Development Required

e Training Needs Analysis against a Gap Analysis has been deferred to 2020/21 as this has
not been completed with conflicting priorities, particularly within the acute pain team and lack
of resources. The Pain team keep a database of all attendance at their training and this is
shared with individual ward managers.

e Liaison with Acute Pain Team regarding development of ‘Toolbox Teaching’ as a roll out
programme from the pain team across all Centres, then to attend Leadership Day/
Safety@SouthTees to launch. Pain team currently only cover a cluster of wards that ‘pay’
into their service so we do have disparities.

e The plan for 2020/21 is to review strategic direction of acute pain team once establishment
completed to provide service across trust site.

o Liaison with the Consultant Nurse for Critical Care regarding VitalPAC and the future
developments and how this may support pain assessment — awaiting confirmation from
Company and direction of travel from Trust.

e On-going review of collation of data regarding bespoke training, further discussions
required regarding centralisation of this.

¢ On-going work around the national audits within the Emergency Department relating to
both Paediatrics and fractured neck of femur. These continue to require improvements in
respect of pain management.

¢ Review of interface with SPC team and Acute pain team - Initial discussions regarding

some integrated working around pathways and training.

Progress with Agreed Objectives

. Review referral process for the pain team to ensure service meets clinical need — Completed
. Undertake a centre / ward level training needs analysis to identify training needs in relation
to pain by end Q4. This has been deferred to 2020/21 as resource within the pain team is

currently being reviewed.

. Respond and focus training activity of the pain team in response to training needs analysis.
This will be completed in 2020/21.

. Integrate pain management training within preceptorship training — Completed

. Increase focus on the use of specialist guidance such as older adults prescribing guidance.

This includes correct use of pain assessment chart; QIC has been partially completed and
will continue in 2020/21. Initial work to embed within QIC has started — further work re frailty

and pain to be considered.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 68 PAGE 34



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Development of frailty team has been delayed due to recruitment and impact of COVID-19.
Explore opportunities to integrate pain assessment and evaluation within VitalPAC — this will
continue in 2020/21.

Implementation of the Meridian system in May 19 will facilitate triangulation of patient

experience data with quality indicator compliance — Completed

Clinical Effectiveness

Priority: Ensure that patients who are at the end of life and their families receive high

quality care in their preferred place.

Rationale

South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust places great emphasis upon preventing avoidable
deaths however when preventing death is no longer an option we will continue to treat and
support our patients throughout their last months and weeks of life. To achieve our strategy we

have been guided by three key national documents:

Ambitions for Palliative and End of Life Care- a framework for local action 2015-2020 (National
Palliative and End of Life Care Partnership: 2015) and One Chance to get it right (Leadership
Alliance for the Care of Dying People: 2014) and the NHS Long Term Plan (2019).

The ambitions document proposes six ambitions. The trust is committed to ensuring that as an
organisation that we make the ambitions a reality, through strong leadership commitment and

empowerment. The six ambitions are:

Each person is seen as an individual
Each person has fair access to care
Maximising comfort and well being
Care is coordinated

All staff members are prepared to care

Each community is prepared to help

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 69 PAGE 35



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Progress
Agree and implement the ‘End of Life’ Care Strategy

The Trust has an ‘end of life’ care strategic group with a work programme which was started in 2018
and extends to 2022. The work programme reflects the key strategic intents of the Trusts ‘end of life’
strategy for adults. The strategy has been developed over the last 10 months in collaboration with
key stakeholders and is currently going through the ratification process however this has been
delayed due to Covid-19.

A consultant in palliative medicine in the acute service is currently being recruited to. Itis recognised

that the medical consultant position in the organisation will be pivotal to the success of the strategy.

Have a robust system in place for identifying complaints that relate directly to end of life care

and set improvement trajectory by end Q2.

Systems are now in place to categorise complaints. These are fed back to the end of life strategy
group on a bi monthly basis. There are very few complaints relating to end of life care. In the last
quarter there were 490 deaths and 3 complaints. Themes are used to focus training provided by the
specialist palliative care team and will form the basis for the palliative and ‘end of life’ care champions

training. The patient experience team managed complaints through the Trust’s complaints process.

Define baseline of number of dying patients assessed by the Specialist Palliative Care Team
by the end of Q1 and set increasing targets for Q2, Q3 and Q4.

A baseline has not been defined. The community team in particular has faced significant workforce
challenges however Hospital Mortality Monitoring data for the numbers of patients reviewed by the
team during inpatient settings has increased. This data looks at how many patients who died in

hospital received care from the specialist palliative care team.

Have a system in place to gather specific feedback on the patients and family’s experience
of end of life care provided by the Trust by end Q2 (current system focusses on the

bereavement service at the point of registration of death).

The medical examiners speak to all families of patients who die in an acute ward. They obtain verbal
feedback and refer on any concerns to the respective clinical teams or through the PALs/complaints
process. Inthe Hambleton and Richmondshire locality a bereavement survey is sent out to families

with their consent of those who have used the services of the end of life care co-ordination team. In

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 70 PAGE 36



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

addition discussions are ongoing regarding establishment of a robust bereavement survey across
the organisation in partnership with the patient experience team.

Review of documentation used in the care of patients in the last days of life is being undertaken.
This includes the medical treatment summary and also the care plan for ‘end of life’ care (care plan
25) and is being undertaken in partnership with the North of England Clinical Network Supportive,
Palliative and End of Life Care Group. This will form the basis for new documentation to be

introduced in the organisation and incorporated into any electronic record keeping templates.

Participation in the National Audit of the Care of the Dying (NACEL) will demonstrate

improvements in the documented evidence of individualised care planning.

The NACEL audit was completed in 2018 & 2019. The results of the audit are below. Review of
documentation used in the care of patients in the last days of life is being undertaken. This includes
the medical treatment summary and also the care plan for ‘end of life’ care (care plan 25) and is
being undertaken in partnership with the North of England Clinical Network Supportive, Palliative
and End of Life Care Group. This will form the basis for new documentation to be introduced in the
organisation and incorporated into any electronic record keeping templates which are introduced in

the trust to replace current paper medical records.

An action plan is currently being developed for the 2019 results which have only recently been
received into the trust. This will be presented at the next ‘end of life’ strategy group meeting as

subsequent meetings were cancelled due to Covid-19.

The environment in which care is provided to the dying in the acute hospitals will improve.

This includes bereavement and mortuary services.

A ‘task and finish’ group is in place working on improving the environment following the Fresh Eyes
visit from hospice UK team. The dragonfly logo has been embedded as a recognisable symbol in
the trust for ‘end of life’ care and bereavement. This has been incorporated into signage; leaflets will
be used by clinical ward teams to indicate that there is a patient dying on the ward in order to improve
the patients and their families’ privacy and dignity. In addition improvements are nearing completion
in the mortuary viewing room and light boxes have been installed in the corridor which leads to the
mortuary. This has improved the lighting and ambiance for families and staff who use the corridor.
There are now rooms on ward 37/15/Medical assessment unit for private discussions with the family.
The relative rooms in A&E, the chapel and ablution rooms have been refreshed and updated. New

prayer mats have been purchased and signage is being improved.

Comfort packs have been rolled out to the Friarage. Children’s bags are in use in James Cook

University Hospital. Some progress has been achieved with the Friarage site however this has been

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 71 PAGE 37



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

delayed due to the public consultation (which has now concluded) as there was uncertainty around
emergency care provision. There is however a robust action plan in place for taking the changes
forward to create a secret garden area for families, provision of overnight accommodation for
families, updating the relative’s rooms and ensuring the chapel is available for all to use. A meeting
of the ‘task and finish’ group was convened at the end of February with the Friarage team review

plan and progress. A Bereavement service has now commenced at the Friarage.

Expansion of the Specialist Palliative Care Team to provide face to face assessments 7 days
a week and reach groups of patients who currently do not receive consistent access to

assessments

This has not been achieved due to workforce changes and resource. The team is currently
undergoing a full service review. Seven day working is one of the objectives to be progressed as

part of the review process. No date has been agreed for the seven day service to commence.

Demonstrable increasing use of Internet and intranet websites that provide guidance for staff

and patients/families regarding end of life care.

The intranet and intranet web pages are currently being updated. The webpages had the following

number of views:

Palliative medicine: 1,315 (compared to 1,119 in 2018)
End of Life: 619 (compared to 521 in 2018)

South Tees team: 1,638

James Cook team: 1,036

Hambleton & Richmondshire team: 692

The intranet only pulls monthly statistics but for January 2020 the palliative page had 278 views (247
in Jan 2019) and End of Life had 365 (314 in Jan 2019).

The Trust will have a range of polices to support staff in the provision of palliative and end

of life care.

The trust policies have been updated as they had reached their review date. The policies have been
updated based upon national guidance. Care in the last days of life and after death (Adult) policy
and Registered Nurse and Allied Health Professionals (Advanced Critical Practitioners) Verification
of Expected Adult Death (No G154) have both been reviewed and updated.

All staff employed by the Trust will have access to training in end of life care.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 72 PAGE 38



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Training for staff. Significant progress has been made however this still requires further work. To
date we have achieved: -

¢ Induction: there is a 15 minute session for all staff new to the organisation

e Basic life support training: there is a short session on end of life care

e Preceptorship training: there is a 2 hour session on end of life care

e E-learning: priority training modules on the e-ELCA will be made available on the new
STRIVE website. The recommended modules need to be completed in every 5 year cycle.
The intention that this will be linked to ESR however due to technical difficulties with the
platform this has not yet been achieved and no date has been agreed for this to be
completed.

e Advance care planning workshops: led by the Consultant in Palliative Care. 2 workshops
held ( 7 consultants, 7 GP’s and 7 senior nurses attended)

e Training delivered for paramedics within Yorkshire Ambulance Service and North East
Ambulance Service

e The specialist palliative Care team has an education group which meets regularly and the
group is actively recruiting palliative and end of life champion roles within clinical areas.

e Dying matters conference on the 15th May 2020. This is open to all clinical teams within
South Tees and within the Tees valley area. Due to COVID-19 this has been postponed.

e External funding has not been secured for a palliative and ‘end of life’ care educator in the
trust. Trusts which appear to be doing well with the National Audit of Care at the end of life
(NACEL) and Care Quality Commission assessments have established education facilitators
which helps to support embedding of new practice and implementation of tools to support
excellent care. Discussions are starting with the hospice to look at putting in a joint bid to
Macmillan Cancer Support for funding.

e Meeting held with Health Education England representatives. They are approaching
Teesside University to refresh the ‘end of life’ care workbook and make this available on line.

This is suitable for unregistered staff in the clinical and non-clinical setting.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 73 PAGE 39



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Trust participation in “dying matters” week and general awareness raising of end of life care.

In 2019 the Specialist palliative care team had a stall in the atrium of James Cook hospital each day
during the dying matters week which provided information for the public, our patients and our staff.
A community nursing team in Bedale also held a drop in session for the public with information on
end of life care. This year the trust had ambitious plans to participate in the dying matters week which
was scheduled for the 11"-17"" May. The theme this year was to be ‘Dying to be heard’. An end of
life care conference was planned for the 15" May in South Tees Research, Innovation and Education
Centre (STRIVE). This was being hosted by the specialist palliative care team. A market place event
was being hosted in the Atrium at JCUH on the 12" May and in the Friarage Hospital on the 13™
May. The plan included a number of different stalls with the theme of advance care planning. In
addition the trust was also involved in supporting a Tees Dead Good Festival (based on the festival
held in York each year). This is a programme of events where the aim is to raise the profile of death
and dying and includes visits to mortuary’s, crematoriums, films, death cafes, talks etc. Unfortunately
due to the Covid 19 outbreak these events have been postponed. It is uncertain at this time whether
these events will be able to go ahead later in the year or will be postponed to next year.

Summary

There has been partial achievement of this priority. The specialist palliative care team does not have
a 7 day service however there is a consultant on call Out of Hours (OOH) available to provide advice

to professionals. The intention is to establish a 7 day service as part of the service review.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 74 PAGE 40



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Proportion of deaths with palliative care coding

50
(rolling year)
— i
%0 —.<».7F4—(.—* e
. P ——
g T
Bo | = o
o
o
o
<
o
£20 -
3 a==ENGLAND
g =@—South Tees
S =@—North Tees
= CDD
EI == North Cumbria
£ S : NEQOS Hi ital Mortality Moniforing: R rt 46 Gateshead
= ourc;ec. Q ospita orlq/d){ onitoring: Repo B Newcastle
8 Data from NHS D contextual indicatorg, August 2020 &= Northumbria
=#=S. Tyneside & Sunderland
0 T T T T T T T T T T T
A A A > N N > S W) W) &) Q
OQ"» eQ\, & k(‘,&' (\Q"» Q,Q\’ & ‘(‘9\’ Qe:\’ Q,Q\’ & @@'
\\) ) Q @,b \0 ) Q th \0 ) Q @'b

Rolling year - end point

Figure 5: Proportion of deaths with palliative care coding

Recognising the possibility of | n/a n/a n/a
imminent death

Communication with the dying | 6.6 5.4 7.8
patient

Communication with families and | 5.3 5.3 6.9
others

Needs of families and others n/a n/a 6

Quality Report 2019-20

Page 75

PAGE 41




SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Individual plan of care 5.2 6.5 7.2
Families and others experience of | No submission No submission 7
care

Workforce and provision of | 6.3 3.8 7.4
specialist palliative care

Table 3: National Audit of the Care o

f the Dying (NACEL) 2019 results.

The table below details the key recommendations from the audit.

Recommendations

Trust Position

1. | Improve documentation of
specific aspects of care
proposed and discussed at

end of life

Review the templates used for documentation of the
medical team plans and related communication for the

dying person

2. | Gather the perceptions of the
bereaved about the care
delivered to their deceased

family member

Explore the possibility of assessing this through more
formally documented capture of feedback from next of kin
that is already obtained by the Medical Examiners.

In addition conduct a survey of experience of bereaved

persons in partnership with the patient experience team

3. | Provide mandatory/priority
training to all staff related to

end of life care

Underway as a priority item of the End of Life Strategic

Group work plan

4. | Provide opportunity for face to
face assessment of the dying
patient 9-5 seven days per
week by specialist palliative

care team

Underway as a priority item of service development/review

for the Integrated Specialist Palliative Care service

5. | Provide opportunity  for
communication skills training

for staff

Explore the potential for this through the Education group of

the Integrated Specialist Palliative Care Team

Table 4: Draft key recommendations

Quality Report 2019-20

Page 76 PAGE 42




SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Patient Experience

Priority: Develop the Patient Experience Programme using the Meridian System to
increase patient feedback including ‘hard to reach’ Groups

Rationale
The Trust is committed to ensuring that patients have a positive experience of the Trust and
patient feedback is obtained to inform service improvements.

The 1000 Voices programme has allowed for the capture of ‘real time’ data at ward level and
includes FFT feedback. The ‘real time’ data provides feedback on issues identified for
improvement. It has been recognised that further work is needed to expand on the work that is

currently taking place to ensure feedback from ‘hard to reach’ groups is captured.

FFT data shows that patients are generally satisfied with the care they receive however the

Trust response rates are very low and well below the national average.

Actions
A robust Patient Experience action plan will be developed by the end of May 2019 highlighting
specific actions which will include:

e Implementation of the Meridian IT system across the Trust

e Use Meridian to increase the FFT response rates

o Use of Meridian to increase the reporting of ‘real time’ feedback specifically within
inpatients

¢ Re-launch the FFT programme within Outpatients

e Implement a system to identify specific ‘hard to reach’ groups utilising Meridian

e Use of the Patient Experience Facilitators to facilitate feedback from the ‘hard to reach
groups
e Waork with TEWV (Tees, Esk and Wear Valley) mental health services to capture

feedback from patients who have mental health diagnosis in the acute setting

¢ Implementation of a feedback questionnaire following closure of complaints to identify

service improvements

o Review of processes in the Trust to gain patient feedback in relation to Trust and local

objectives

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 77 PAGE 43



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

e More focused work and triangulation of available data to inform a robust programme to

support service improvement

e Ensure the Patient Experience Subgroup sets the strategic direction for patient

experience

Measures of success
¢ Roll out of Meridian with increased responses (Q1)

¢ Increased FFT reporting to a statistically significant number of responses

e Ultilisation of patient/service users in the core construction of any evaluative and

improvement initiatives
¢ Demonstrable evidence of improvement initiatives as a result of patient feedback
o FFT Programme implemented in OPD and increase response rates including A&E
¢ Feedback obtained from identified ‘hard to reach’ groups
¢ Improve patient experience for patients with mental health diagnosis
e Feedback from complaints closure survey

¢ Increase the number of ‘real time’ feedback responses to 800 a month across inpatient

areas (currently c360)

o Established and effective Patient Experience Subgroup and service user forum (Q1)

Progress

The Meridian programme has been rolled out utilising iPads for inpatient surveys and these are
available on all wards and departments, for completion by patients, carers, relatives and parents.
Additional support to complete the survey is provided by the Therapeutic Care Team for patients
who are unable to complete the surveys independently however patients, carers, relatives and
parents are encouraged to complete the survey to ensure the patient’s unbiased experience is given.
The Meridian programme is also utilised to send text messages to patients attending for emergency
treatment, radiological procedures, and out-patient appointments or patients receiving care in their

own home.

The data from the surveys informs the Domains held on the Meridian programme and is utilised by
Ward and Departmental Managers who are able to review the feedback they receive and share this
with their teams. This provides information which will empower them to make real time

improvements based on their patients’ experience of the care and treatment.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 78 PAGE 44



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

The information is also shared with the Patient Experience Sub Group which identifies and targets
service improvement related to the patient experience. Figure 6 shows the scores across all domains
Trust wide in 2019/20. This enables Wards and Departments to implement local improvements at
ward or department level using patient feedback. Patient stories are identified through the Meridian
system and patients are invited to share their experience at the Trust Board and the Patient
Experience Sub Group.

INHS |

South Tees Hospitals
NHS Foundation Trust

Trust

How do patients rate us
out of 10...7

Consistency & Tre
coordination Kindness and

olvement Good Doctors Good Nurses  Noise at night comp assion Cleanliness Hand Hygiene Medicines Pain control

of care

Q0OPQAQAOQQ0G

!!

In 2019/20 patients gave us an overall rating of... 9 . 03 out of 10

% of patients surveyed describing 0, No of patients on new No of respondents
their experience of our service as 97 /0 medication 4006 7541

very good or good

o Excellence in Patient Qutcome and Experience
~

Figure 6: Domain scores 2019/20

To ensure the surveys are user friendly sentiment analysis (faces depicting happy to sad faces) have
been added to ensure children, young people and patients who have a learning disability, understand
the response they are providing. Collaborative working with the multidisciplinary team, such as the
Learning Disabilities Specialist Nurse and external organisations, such as Healthwatch has taken
place, to gain feedback from ‘hard to reach groups’.

Priority: Review the way complaints are investigated and standardise complaint
responses

Rationale

Our values are to deliver high quality care that puts the patient and their families first and to have
open, honest and transparent communication with patients at all times. It is our belief that

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 79 PAGE 45



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

everyone has a right to have their views heard, acted upon and resolved quickly and
professionally. This reflects our behavioural standards, in that we want our patients and their

families to feel safe, cared for and confident in their treatment.

Our staff will ensure patients and their families and carers who give any type of feedback regarding
their treatment will receive and be treated according to their clinical needs and their care will not
be compromised in any way. Equally, families and carers will not be treated in a negative way

because they have raised concerns or made a complaint.

The patient remains the focus of the complaints process and the Trust aims to ensure that
concerns and complaints are handled thoroughly without delay and with the aim of satisfying the
complainant whilst being fair and open with all those involved. We recognise feedback is a
valuable contribution to the development of better quality healthcare and are therefore committed
to identifying lessons learned from complaints so that services across our organisation can be

improved.

Actions

A robust complaints management action plan will be developed by the end of May 2019
highlighting specific actions which will include:

e Completion of a comprehensive review of the complaints management process to agree

and clarify roles and responsibilities.

¢ Review of the ‘Receiving Patient Feedback and Handling Patient Complaints’ Policy (G01)

to ensure that it reflects agreed processes as well as best practice.

o Develop and implement a standardised complaint response template for use across the

Trust.

o Develop a quality assurance process for reviewing a proportion of complaint responses to

ensure they conform to agreed standards.

o Ensure national guidance is reviewed and considered as part of the continued

development of the complaints management service.

e Focused work on wards/departments to ensure staff are equipped with the skills and
knowledge to manage complaints at an early stage and resolved locally where possible,

prior to escalation to PALS or a formal complaint.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 80 PAGE 46



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

¢ Ensure complaints are closed within the agreed timescales.

Measures of success
e Approval of the revised ‘Patient Feedback and Handling Patient Complaints’ Policy

o Development of standard response template letter for complaint responses

¢ Development of a quality assurance process for reviewing complaint responses
¢ Reduction in the number of formal complaints

e 5% reduction in the number of re-opened complaints — baseline 2018/19 (12%)

¢ Increase in the percentage of complaints closed within the agreed timescales — target 80%

- stretch target 85

Progress

A task and finish group commenced in September 2019 which included all stakeholders involved in
the complaints process within the Trust. The task and finish group reviewed how complaints were
managed and investigated from receipt of the complaint through to the written response being
provided. The Group completed the work in December 2019. The new Patient and Carer Feedback
Policy, which includes the complaint process, was produced and ratified in February 2020 and
implemented on 1 March 2020. The new complaint process ensures that the management of a

complaint is consistent throughout the organisation.

The new process acknowledges that the best way to manage a concern is at ward or department
level. The process for raising a concern and how to escalate this is displayed on the patient
experience ward boards at the entrance to all wards and departments for staff and patients.
Assistance can be sought from the Patient Experience Team/PALS to advocate in the process, when

required.

A standard template response letter has been developed using the guidance from The Patient
Association, ‘Good Practice Standards’. The template is designed to allow the personalisation of the
response to the individual but also provides the appropriate information to include, who has carried

out the investigation, how this was done and the response to concern raised is clearly identifiable.

A weekly meeting was reinstated for the leads for the Centres to monitor the timeframes for

response. This allows the teams to identify early any concerns in meeting the timeframes to ensure

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 81 PAGE 47



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

early escalation takes place with the aim of meeting the timeframes for completion for all written

complaint responses.

The planned roll out the new Patient and Carer Feedback Policy across the organisation was delayed

due to the COVID 19 Pandemic. The roll out will resume when the guidance permits this.

Priority: Improve the Outpatients Department (OPD) Patient Experience

Rationale

The Trust is committed to ensuring that when patients attend for an outpatient appointment they

have a positive experience.

Investigation of PALS data demonstrated that a significant amount of contacts were with regard
to outpatient appointments (21%), with patients unsure of when their appointment was and unable

to contact the relevant department, or in some cases unsure of what their appointment was for.

e Actions

e A robust patient experience action plan will be developed by the end of June 2019
highlighting specific actions which will include:

e Review of communication letters to patients to ensure adequate and effective
communication, this will include information relating to accessible information and asking
patients if they would like the information in another format. This review will consider the
information sent pre-appointment, information provided during appointments and post-

appointment follow up.

e Strengthen the governor ‘drop-in’ programme to ensure that robust action plans are put in
place to address issues identified during their visits and ensure that there is evidence that
actions have been completed within agreed timescales. Feedback will be provided
quarterly to the Quality Assurance Committee (QAC) and the Council of Governors to
provide assurance that actions identified have been implemented.

e Ensure there are robust systems in place to respond to patient feedback relating to
outpatient appointments.

¢ Implementation of a ‘secret shopper’ initiative within OPD’s to inform future improvement

work.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 82 PAGE 48



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

¢ Re-launch the FFT programme within Outpatients.

Measures of success

o Completion of baseline assessment of information communicated to patients relating to
outpatients appointments.

¢ Programme of Governor’s drop in sessions and evidence of actions taken following these
Visits.

¢ Implementation of the ‘secret shopper initiative across the Trust.
¢ Reduction in the number of PALS queries relating to OPD appointments.

e Introduction of FFT within Outpatients.

Progress

A Task and Finish Group was formed in October 2019 and the appropriate stakeholders for the
outpatient departments were invited to be involved in developing a detailed action plan that is
monitored at the Patient Experience Sub Group. There were a number of areas of focus for the T&F
group and these included communication needs, written and verbal, waiting times for appointments

and in departments and information displayed in departments.

Reviews of the Information Technology (IT) systems have taken place to ensure that critical
information about the patients communication requirements have been documented and all Trust
staff are aware of their role in gaining and using this information. The documentation used by all of
the outpatients departments has been reviewed and a trust standard has been agreed and is used

by the external company for sending out appointments.

The posters displayed in OPD have been reviewed and out dated information has been removed
and it has been agreed that information relevant to the department must be displayed. All OPD must
display the Accessible Information Standards (AIS) poster informing patients to provide the details
of their communication requirements. All information from the Trust now details the AIS to ensure

every opportunity is taken to gain the communication requirements.

A review of administration practices within the Ophthalmology OPD has been undertaken. New
working practices have been implemented and staff are now carrying out role specific duties, which
include answering telephones and picking up voicemails, this is to ensure all patients enquiries are
responded to. This will be monitored through the PALS and the number of concerns received relating
to telephone calls not being answered and voicemails not being returned. This will also be reported

on via the Patient Experience Sub Group.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 83 PAGE 49



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

There was a programme of monthly Governor Drop-in sessions carried out in 2019/20 to all
outpatient departments. Unfortunately due to the COVID-19 Pandemic the visits were discontinued
however these will re-commence once guidance is received to allow this. The actions identified
following the visits have been shared with the OPD Manager for consideration and action. The
Governor Drop-ins action plan is shared with the Patient Experience Sub Group on a quarterly basis.

The Mystery Shopper has been developed and a leaflet with a questionnaire attached has been
produced. The leaflet will be available in all OPD, at the main entrance to all hospital sites and on
the Trust web-site. The information from the surveys will be fedback to the OPD and an action plan
presented to the Patient Experience Sub Group on a quarterly basis. This was due to be launched
in the outpatient departments during patient experience week; this was cancelled due to COVID 19.
The Mystery Shopper will be launched in September 2020.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 84 PAGE 50



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

2020/21 Quality Priorities

The Trust has agreed the following priorities for 2020/21 following a consultation process.

Quality Priorities 2020/21

Increase incident reporting by
10% per year. This will also
mean an increase in incidents
reported to the NRLS.

To identify, develop and
implement a Quality Strategy
for the trust and embed an
agreed approach to quality
improvement methodology

Continuing work to further
develop the patient
experience programme using
Meridian, specifically focusing
on implementation of the new
FFT guidance and ‘hard to
reach’ groups.

Reduce the occurrence of
Never Events and ensure
there is a focus on safe
surgical practice including
improving the safety culture
within theatres and continue
the LoCSSIPs work.

To implement and embed the
STAQC accreditation process
for the trust and the Quality
Assurance framework

Embed the revised complaints
management process within
the trust in line with the
revised Patient and Carers
Feedback Policy

Improve the quality of incident
investigations at all levels
including those for Serious
Incidents and those reported
on Datix.

Ensure patients have a safe,
effective and timely discharge

Improve the Outpatients
Department (OPD) experience
through ‘task and finish’
groups to review and continue
the work that has taken place
during 2019/20.

Patient Safety

Priority: Increase incident reporting by 10% per year. This will also mean an increase in
incidents reported to the NRLS.

Agreed Actions

include:

A robust incident reporting action plan will be developed describing specific actions which will

. Completion of a comprehensive review of incident management process including
discussing with staff at all levels and all staff groups to understand barriers to

reporting — engage medical and nursing colleagues

Quality Report 2019-20

Page 85

PAGE 51



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

. Complete review of coding structures and usage
. Review of incident types that are uploaded to NRLS to try and increase the

threshold of what we upload

. Implement Datix Cloud IQ including Datix Anywhere Mobile reporting App.

. Develop reporting mechanism to show number of incidents reported by 1,000 bed
days.

. Develop and implement a standardised incident report form on Datix for use

across the Trust as well as short forms that can feed into the main system

. All new starters receive a session on incident reporting at Trust Induction

. Focused work on wards/departments to ensure staff have the skills and
knowledge to recognise, report and investigate incidents in a timely manner. A

work programme will be developed to support this

. Outstanding incidents are reviewed on a weekly basis as part of the Patient
Safety wall.
. A weekly review of open harm events with QBP’s (Quality Business Partners) and

patient safety will continue with the aim of closing down incidents within the week

that they are reported.

Measures of success

Implementation of improved system for reporting incidents — worked with TVN’s (Tissue Viability

Nurses) and ED and Clinical & Diagnostics. Coding structure is simplified.

Increase in the number of Incidents reported — including Near Miss reporting in groups of

historically “low reporting” staff.
Development of standardised incident report form — continuing.

Implementation of Datix Cloud 1Q.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 86 PAGE 52



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Establishment of a Datix user group, terms of reference and minutes of meetings. Implement

Datix champions in all staff groups.

Safety

Priority: Reduce the occurrence of Never Events and ensure there is a focus on safe
surgical practice including improving the safety culture within theatres and continue the
LoCSSIPs work.

Rationale

The Trust has already agreed that Safer Surgery would continue to be a Trust quality account
priority. As a result of this a Safer Surgery Oversight Group was established in 2019 to implement
safer surgery practices across the Trust working towards eliminate Never Events. The group is
led by a Medical Director and group membership is made up of key clinical and patient safety

colleagues.

The group has developed a Safer Surgery Improvement Plan which is a comprehensive working
document that outlines actions required, by whom, expected dates of completion and evidence to
support completed actions and sustained improvements to monitor and track that risks have been

reduced. The plan outlines 4 main themes:

¢ Organisational Factors (addressed through the Trust’'s improvement plan and renewed
focus on empowering clinical leadership since October 2019)

e Team Factors

e Sharing and Learning and Training

¢ Human Factors

The aim is to implement safer surgery practices across the Trust to eliminate Never Events by 315
March 2022. The System Improvement Team across the Tees Valley is supporting the Moving to

Good Safety Programme of which South Tees is a part.

Actions required:

To monitor delivery of the key milestones set out in the Safer Surgery improvement plan through

implementation of the following key milestones:

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 87 PAGE 53



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

e Trust policy, best practice standards and good governance is fully embedded in theatres
and anaesthetic practice overseen by the safer surgery oversight group.

e Team factors — Ensure that all team members work in an open and respectful culture,
where questioning and speaking up is encouraged.

e Sharing and learning to ensure that learning is embedded across the department and wider
organisation

e Training and Human Factors to ensure staff have the opportunity to reflect, learn and
understand why errors occur in the theatre and anaesthetic setting.

e The Safer Surgery Oversight Group will continue to meet monthly to track delivery and

progress of set actions to maintain momentum and operational grip.

Measures of success

The Safer Surgery Improvement Plan sets out under each of the headings the actions required so

that progress with these can be monitored to ensure these are on track.
e Required outcome
e Action required by who/lead person
e Expected date of completion
o Evidence to support the action has been completed
e Evidence of sustained improvement and that the risk has been reduced.

This is then signed off as completed by the Oversight Group.

Priority: Improve the quality of incident investigations at all levels including those for
Serious Incidents and those reported on Datix.

Agreed Actions:
A robust incident reporting action plan will be developed describing specific actions which will

include:

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 88 PAGE 54



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Focused work on wards/departments to ensure staff have the skills and knowledge to recognise,
report and investigate incidents in a timely manner. A work programme will be developed to

support this.

e Establish what training is required (Training Needs Analysis) — Investigation, Reporting an
incident, Obtaining data from the system, Dashboards.

¢ Full programme of Incident investigation training including SMART objectives

e A cohort of incident “investigators”

o Review RCA (Root Cause Analysis) toolkit and implements Institute for Healthcare
Improvement “Patient Safety Essentials” toolkit.

o Datix Cloud implementation - Investigation module

e Prepare for the introduction of Patient Safety Incident Response Framework (PSIRF)

Priority: To identify, develop and implement a Quality Strategy for the trust and embed an
agreed approach to quality improvement methodology

Rationale
Quality Strategy

As a Trust we need to ensure that we focus on quality — clinical, corporate, teaching, research,
medical. In all areas we need to ensure that we self-assess our performance and where
appropriate nationally accredit our services to provide assurance of our performance and mitigate

areas of poor performance.

All our staff contribute to delivering a quality service (whether clinical or non-clinical), and carry a
personal responsibility to ensure that risks to deliver effective care are reported and recorded, our

senior teams have the responsibility to ensure that these risks are managed and mitigated.
Our quality strategy will be underpinned with the CQC domains of

e Safe — reduce harm, mortality, ensure all staff are appropriately trained and registered for
their role, sharing good practice
o Well Led — ensuring all staff understand their core role within the safety of their professional

remit, developing via research networks new evidence based practice

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 89 PAGE 55



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

o Effective — improving outcomes, following best practice and evidence, developing new
techniques
e Caring — improve the experience of our patients, their carers, and our staff

Quality Improvement

The CQC Inspection in 2019 found that STFT required improvement across leadership,
organisational development and quality improvement. Prior to March 2019 Leadership
development was localized at the level 5 apprentice level with ad hoc registration at level 7. There
was no organisational development team or strategy and there was no quality improvement team

or strategy.

Operationally, within South Tees Research, Innovation and Education (STRIVE) there was the
ability to streamline processes and expand partnerships for accredited programmes however

there was no operational capacity for new teams or staff.

Scoping in 2019/2020 outlined that there was no overarching strategy or approach to the process
for Quality Improvement within South Tees NHS Foundation Trust. It was agreed by the Senior
Leadership team that a scoping exercise should be carried out to understand what is or isn’t
happening within the organisation and to gain feedback on what our suggested approach should
be and to make a number of recommendations. This work will be led and supported by the Trust’s
new Clinical Support Unit which is an integral part of our improvement plan and work to empower

clinical leadership around the way the organisation allocates resources and provides care.

The recommendations were to develop a STFT programme for quality methodology, providing
training in a range of QI methodologies to ensure the best practice per problem is used.
Recognising the complexity of QI methodologies and the wide range of services within the Trust
this approach would ensure the appropriate breadth of change programmes teaching would be
available within STFT.

Our strategic intent is to create a culture of transformation, collaboration and quality improvement
at STFT. To enable this we will build a system for continuous learning through continuous, quality

improvement, leadership and organisational development.

Actions Required

Quality Strategy

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 90 PAGE 56



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

STFT will develop a quality strategy to ensure that each area can self-assess performance,

manage their key performance indicators and provide assurance against national standards.
Quality Improvement

Work with finance to re-base STRIVE management budget using resources within tariffs as
appropriate to generate a new team to deliver leadership training (non-accredited), quality

improvement training and organisational development, timeline developed to meet strategic intent.

Develop a quality improvement strategy and methodology for the Trust.

Measures of Success
Quality Strategy

Development of QUEST — Quality and Experience at South Tees

Development of ward accreditation process: self-assessment against accreditation in all areas
(clinical and non-clinical), maintenance of accreditation and positive movement in accreditation

scales.

Quality Improvement (QI)
e Transformation of the approach to QI
e A common language for QI
¢ Resonance and ownership of the process
e Consolidation of current skills base into consistent approach

Development of leadership confidence and capability in QI, leading to improved patient outcomes,
improved service provision and so improved patient care, embedded via leadership programmes

and QI training.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 91 PAGE 57




SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Priority: To implement and embed the South Tees Accreditation for Quality of
Care (STAQC) accreditation process for the trust and the Quality Assurance
framework

Rationale

Developing a set of standards against which to measure quality of care is central to demonstrating
improvement. Accreditation brings together key measures of nursing and clinical care in to an
over-arching framework to enable a comprehensive assessment of the quality of care at ward, unit
and team level. The concept of STAQC originated in 2012 with the implementation in July 2014.
This was suspended in 2016 but is now being refreshed as a key strategy to ensure excellence in
patient care and is aligned with other quality priorities and the Trusts improvement plan. There
is also a clear ambition in the Trust to align this with the CQC inspection framework and ‘get back

to our best’.

Wards and departments will be assessed against multiple standards grouped together under the
following headings:

e Culture of compassionate care

e Well led

e Avoidable harm

o Effective Care

It is expected that this will provide ward to board assurance, create a platform for continuous
improvement in patient safety and patient experience and improve accountability. Above all this
should create a culture of pride and accomplishment and will be supported by personal and

professional development.
The process includes an initial briefing, self-assessment, quality assurance visits and feedback.
This will be supported by a robust data collection methodology has been developed using

Meridian as a platform and will be linked to an integrated performance framework for the Trust.

A system of silver and gold awards is to be used for accreditation.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 92 PAGE 58



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Priority: Ensure patients have a safe, effective and timely discharge

Rationale
Unnecessarily prolonged stays in hospital are bad for patients. Tackling long stays in hospital will

reduce the risk of patient harm, disability and unwarranted cost. Congestive hospitals struggle to
deliver the best care, reduced bed occupancy through improved flow greatly improves the working
and care environment. (NHSI 2018)

Every day in hospital is a precious day away from home. We want to embed a home first mind
set across our health and social care system, the aim is to do everything we can so that our
patients, especially older people, can continue to enjoy their lives in their own home environments.
For the few that cannot go home from hospital we should endeavour to minimise delays as patients

move to a location most suited to meeting their needs.

Patients with a length of stay over seven days are defined as ‘stranded’ and patients with a length

of stay over twenty one days are defined as ‘long stay’ patients.

A ‘delayed transfer of care’ (DToC) occurs when a patient is ready to leave a hospital or similar
care provider but is still occupying a bed. Delays can occur when patients are being discharged
home or to a supported care facility, such as a residential or nursing home, or are awaiting transfer

to a community hospital or hospice.

The term ’patient flow’ refers to the ability of a health care system to manage patient effectively
and with minimal delays as they move through stages of care. The consequences of poor flow

are known and described earlier in the report.
e Pain management
e Awaiting Assessments — social care and rehabilitation

These delays can be compounded if internal processes are not robust, specifically our Model
Ward approach based on SAFER principles (NHSI, 2017):

S —Senior review. All patients will have a senior review before midday by a clinician able to make

management and discharge decisions.

A — All patients will have an expected discharge date and clinical criteria for discharge. This is

set assuming ideal recovery and assuming no unnecessary waiting.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 93 PAGE 59



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

F — Flow of patients will commence at the earliest opportunity from assessment units to inpatient
wards. Wards that routinely receive patients from assessment units will ensure the first patient

arrives on the ward by 10 am.
E — Early discharge. 33% of patients will be discharged from base inpatient wards before midday.

R — Review. A systematic multi-disciplinary team review of patients with extended lengths of stay

(>7 days — ‘stranded patients’) with a clear ‘home first’ mindset.

The Clinical Utilisation Review (CUR) ‘not met’ reasons, the need to further embed SAFER
principles along with the need for optimal communication with local authority and Clinical
Commissioning Group colleagues form the basis of the improvement action required:

Actions
o Evaluate the “STOP” initiative and consider scaling this up to other wards. The initiative
ensures the nurse in charge has the final oversight of the discharge of their patients and
the patient has the information to empower them to challenge any aspects of their
discharge arrangements. There will continue to be improvements made such as including
clear discharge pathways in the documentation to enable effective discharge planning.

Further information on this is included earlier in the report.

o Regular review of delayed discharge and length of stay metrics and associated actions put
in place. This will take place operationally at a weekly “Where best Next?” meetings and
strategically at a monthly “Home First” system-wide meetings attended by key staff

members of the acute Trust, Local Authorities and the CCG.

e Embed the role of the frailty liaison team to increase the focus on the frail patients to ensure
they are admitted to the most appropriate clinical environment to maximise chances of

early discharge and prevent of deconditioning.

e Embed the SAFER principles — having a focus on criteria led discharge and ensuring an

estimated date of discharge is set based on clinical evidence.

¢ Implement a robust model of working for the integrated discharge team and the integrated

Single Point of Access.

e Ensure improvement plans for CUR ‘not met’ categories are in place and implement an

escalation process using daily automated reports sent to managers from Medworxx.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 94 PAGE 60



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Measures of success

e Decreasing rate of delayed transfers of care to be below the 3.5% upper threshold

o Decreasing average length of stay in the acute setting — individual directorates to set own
targets by end Q2 relative to baseline to achieve either top quartile or top decile against
national benchmarks

e Decreasing number of patients with a length of stay over 21 days

e Improving trend of discharges before 12 midday, towards the target of 33% by the end of

Q4

e Decrease in the ‘CUR not met’ rate using Medworxx analysis. Reduction on the 2019/20
position of 35.54%

¢ Reduction in the delays for the main categories associated with ‘CUR not met’ reason

codes
o Decreased number of discharge related PALS and patient complaints

e Set baseline and improvement trajectories for decreasing length of stay in patients with

clinical frailty by end Q1

e Decreasing levels of harm in patients with frailty. Baseline and improvement targets to be

set by end Q2 and monitored via Datix and the frailty dashboard.

Patient Experience

Priority: Continuing work to further develop the patient experience programme using
Meridian, specifically focusing on implementation of the new FFT (Family and Friends
Test) guidance and ‘hard to reach’ groups.

Rationale

The results of the National surveys carried out by the Care Quality Commission (CQC)
identified that only a small percentage of patients using the Trust's services were being
offered the opportunity to provide feedback on their experience of the services they had used.

The Trust aims to ensure that all patients using the many services across the organisation

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 95 PAGE 61



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

are provided with an equal opportunity to feedback their individual experience of the service

used.

How we will do this?
o Develop bespoke surveys to gain patient feedback on services and care pathways
e Work in partnership with patients
e Implementation of the new FFT guidance
o Extend the text messaging service to OPD and patients receiving care in their own home.
o Develop bespoke surveys to reach all patient groups

o Develop surveys to gain feedback on new services and initiatives, for example, virtual

clinics and visiting restrictions.
o Develop and implement the Carers survey to capture feedback from ‘hard to reach groups’

o Develop the Bereavement survey to capture experience of end of life care.

How will we know we have done this?
o Met Key Performance Indicators (KPI) for inpatient surveys set for all wards
e Patient feedback informs improvement work, ‘you said, we did’.
e Patient involvement in reviewing or developing new services and care pathways
o Improvement across all domains in the 1000 voices programme

Progress with actions will be reported through the Patient Experience subgroup and the

Quiality Assurance Framework.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 96 PAGE 62




SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Patient Experience

Priority: Embed the revised complaints management process within the trust in
line with the revised Patient and Carers Feedback Policy.

Rationale

It was recognised that there was an inconsistency across the Trust in the way that complaints
were being investigated and also with the written response that was sent to the complainant. An
end to end review of the complaints process was carried out from September 2019 to December
2019. The Patient Experience and Carers Feedback Policy was ratified in February 2020 and the

new complaints process, detailed in the policy, has been implemented across the Trust.

How will we do this?

¢ Produce a standardised investigation process for complaints that mirrors the investigation

process used for an incident, to ensure a consistent approach across the organisation.
o Alead investigator is allocated for all complaints coordinate the investigation process

o Ensure all elements of the complaint are understood, investigated and responded to the

complainant’s satisfaction and within the appropriate timeframe.

e Embed the revised complaints management process within the Trust in line with the

revised Patient and Carers Feedback Policy.

How will we know we have done this?

¢ Increase in complaints being closed within the response timeframes.
o Decrease in reopened complaints relating to the complaint not being investigated

appropriately.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 97 PAGE 63



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Patient Experience

Priority: Improve the OPD experience through ‘task and finish’ groups to review and
continue the work that has taken place during 2019/20.

Rationale

It has been recognised through patient feedback received through PALS that the out-patient
department (OPD) experience could be improved upon. The main areas for improvement

identified were communication, waiting times for appointments and delays in the OPD.

How will we do this?

e Continue with the on-going work with the T&F group work in relation to communication,
waiting times for appointments, the patient experience of the OPD and information
provided to patients.

e A standard operating procedure (SOP) is being developed for reception staff greeting
patients to the department, this includes, the 3 point check and AIS communication
question. A SOP has also been developed for answering the telephone to ensure that there
is a Trust standard for responding to telephone communication.

¢ Monitor and be reactive to patient feedback from surveys, Governor Drop In’s, Mystery
Shopper, PALS and complaints about the OPD experience.

¢ A comprehensive training package is underway for new staff and a rota for role specific
duties, including answering the telephone, working on reception and pulling notes for

clinics is in place.

How will we know we have done this?
e Reduction in PALS and formal complaints in relation to the OPD.

e Increase in positive feedback from patients through surveys regarding the OPD

experience.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 98 PAGE 64



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Statements of Assurance from the Board

Review of services

During 2019/20 South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust provided and/or sub-contracted 91

relevant health services.

South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust has reviewed all the data available to them on the
guality of care in 91 PALS of these relevant health services.

The income generated by the relevant health services reviewed in 2019/20 represents 91.5% of the
total income generated from the provision of relevant health services by the South Tees Hospitals
NHS Foundation Trust for 2019/20.

Participation in Clinical Audit

The Trust has a well-structured clinical audit programme which is regularly reviewed to ensure it
reflects the needs of our acute and community services. We know that high quality clinical audit

enhances patient care and safety, and provides assurance of continuous quality improvement.

During 2019/20, 67 national clinical audits and 3 national confidential enquiries covered relevant
health services that South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust provides.

During 2019/20, South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust participated in of 93% national clinical

audits and 100% of national confidential enquiries which it was eligible to participate in.

The national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries that the South Tees Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust was eligible to participate in, and for which data collection was completed during
2019/20 are listed below alongside the number of cases submitted to each audit or enquiry as a

percentage of the number of registered cases required by the terms of that audit or enquiry:

Title Eligible Participated | % cases

Assessing Cognitive Impairment in Older People | v/ v 100%
/ Care in Emergency Departments
BAUS Urology Audit: Cystectomy v v 100%

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 99 PAGE 65



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Title Eligible Participated | % cases
British Association of Urological Surgeons) v X 0%
(BAUS)Urology Audit: Female Stress Urinary
Incontinence
BAUS Urology Audit: Nephrectomy v v 100%
BAUS Urology Audit: Percutaneous
_ v v 100%
Nephrolithotomy
BAUS Urology Audit: Radical Prostatectomy v v 100%
Care of Children in Emergency Departments
- v v 100%
(Royal College of Emergency Medicine (RCEM)
Case Mix Programme (CMP) Also includes
Cardiac Intensive Care (Intensive Care National | v/ 4 100%
Audit & Research Centre (ICNARC) data)
Elective Surgery - National PROMs Programme Pre-op:
(Patient Reported Outcomes Measure) L, L, 111.8%
Post-op:
60.8%
Endocrine and Thyroid National Audit v X 0%
The Falls and Fragility Fracture Audit 100% of
Programme (FFFAP) The Fracture Liaison v v cases
Service Audit (FLS-DB) identified
Inflammatory Bowel Disease (IBD) Registry,
o : : v X 0%
Biological Therapies Audit
Major Trauma Audit (TARN) v v 100%
Mandatory Surveillance of bloodstream
N - e v v 100%
infections and clostridium difficile infection
Maternal, Newborn and Infant Clinical Outcome S, S, 100%
Review Programme
Medical and Surgical Clinical Outcome Review
Programme — National Confidential Enquiry into _
) v v Ongoing
Patient Outcome and Death - NCEPOD
Dysphagia in Parkinson’s Disease
Medical and Surgical Clinical Outcome Review
Programme — National Confidential Enquiry into | v/ 4 100%
Patient Outcome and Death - NCEPOD In

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 100 PAGE 66



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Page 101

Title Eligible Participated | % cases
Hospital Management of Out of Hospital
Cardiac Arrests
Medical and Surgical Clinical Outcome Review | v/ v 0% - no
Programme — National Confidential Enquiry into eligible
Patient Outcome and Death - NCEPOD Long cases,
Term Ventilation: Balancing the Pressures however
organisatio
nal data
has been
submitted
Mental Health - Care in Emergency
v v 100%
Departments (RCEM)
National Asthma and Chronic Obstructive
Pulmonary Disease (COPD) Audit Programme | v/ v 48%
(NACAP): Adult Asthma Secondary Care
National Asthma and Chronic Obstructive
Pulmonary Disease (COPD) Audit Programme
: . v v 47%
(NACAP): Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary
Disease (COPD) Secondary Care
National Asthma and Chronic Obstructive 62%
Pulmonary Disease (COPD) Audit Programme | v v
(NACAP): Paediatric Asthma Secondary Care
National Audit of Breast Cancer in Older People
v v 100%
(NABCOP)
National Audit of Cardiac Rehabilitation (NACR) | v/ X 0
National Audit of Care at the End of Life
v v 100%
(NACEL) 1
National Audit of Seizure Management in
_ v v 100%
Hospitals (NASH3)
National Audit of Seizures and Epilepsies in , L, 4%
Children and Young People (Epilepsy12)
National Bariatric Surgery Registry (NBSR) v 4 100%
National Cardiac Arrest Audit (NCAA) v v 100%
Quality Report 2019-20 PAGE 67




SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 102

Title Eligible Participated | % cases
National Cardiac Audit Programme (NCAP) -
. . ) v v 100%
National Adult Cardiac Surgery Audit
National Cardiac Audit Programme (NCAP)-
Myocardial Ischaemia National Audit Project v 4 100%
MINAP
National Cardiac Audit Programme (NCAP)-
National Audit of Percutaneous Coronary v v 100%
Interventions (PCI) (Coronary Angioplasty)
National Cardiac Audit Programme (NCAP)-
. . . 4 v 100%
National Heart Failure Audit
National Diabetes Audit — Adults: National Core
_ _ v X 0%
Diabetes Audit
National Diabetes Audit — Adults: National
: : v v 100%
Diabetes Foot Care Audit
National Diabetes Audit — Adults: National
_ N v v 100%
Diabetes Transition
National Diabetes Audit — Adults: National
Diabetes Inpatient Audit (NaDIA) -reporting v v 100%
data on services in England and Wales
National Diabetes Audit — Adults: NaDIA-Harms
- reporting on diabetic inpatient harms in v v 100%
England
National Diabetes Audit — Adults: National L, L, 100%
Pregnancy in Diabetes Audit
National Early Inflammatory Arthritis Audit
v v <50%
(NEIAA)
National Emergency Laparotomy Audit (NELA
gency Lap y ( ) |, Y 100%
Year 6
National Gastro-intestinal Cancer Programme:
: : v v 100%
National Oesophago-gastric Cancer (NOGCA)
National Joint Registry (NJR) v 4 >95%
National Lung Cancer Audit (NLCA) 1, 2 v 4 100%
National Maternity and Perinatal Audit (NMPA)
v v 100%
1
PAGE 68



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Title Eligible Participated | % cases
National Neonatal Audit Programme - Neonatal S, L, 100%
Intensive and Special Care (NNAP) 1, 2
National Ophthalmology Audit (NOD) v v 76.50%
National Paediatric Diabetes Audit (NPDA) 1 S, L, 100%
National Prostate Cancer Audit v v 100%
National Smoking Cessation Audit v v 100%
National Vascular Registry v v 100%
Neurosurgical National Audit Programme 2 v v 100%
Paediatric Intensive Care Audit Network L, L, 100%
(PICANet) 1, 2
Perioperative Quality Improvement Programme _
v v Ongoing
(PQIP)
Reducing the impact of serious infections
(Antimicrobial Resistance and Sepsis): Antibiotic | v/ v 100%
Consumption & Antimicrobial Stewardship
Sentinel Stroke National Audit programme
v v 100%
(SSNAP) 1, 2
Serious Hazards of Transfusion: UK National
- v v 100%
Haemovigilance Scheme
N . 100%
UK Cystic Fibrosis Registry v v
Falls and Fragility Fractures Audit programme
, : v v 100%
(FFFAP): National Hip Fracture Database
Falls and Fragility Fractures Audit programme
, : . v v 100%
(FFFAP): National Audit Inpatient Falls
National Gastro-intestinal Cancer Programme:
: : v v 100%
National Bowel Cancer Audit (NBOCA)
Society for Acute Medicine's Benchmarking
_ v v 100%
Audit (SAMBA)
Surgical Site Infection Surveillance Service 4 4 100%
UK Cystic Fibrosis Register 4 4 99%
UK Parkinson’s Audit v v 100%

Table 5: National Clinical Audits

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 103 PAGE 69



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

The reports of 15 national clinical audits were reviewed by the provider in 2019/20 and South Tees
Hospitals Foundation Trust intends to take the following actions to improve the quality of healthcare

provided:
Title of Audit Actions
Royal College of | There were areas of good practice in that all patients were offered
Emergency Medicine | analgesia and all patients were assessed for pain within 15 minutes
(RCEM)Pain in | on arrival.
Children There were also areas for improvements:
» Pain score 1-10 was not recorded in the 50 cases
+ Difficulty in differentiating mild/moderate/severe pain
» Pain score was only re-evaluated in 2 cases out of 50
The team have now made changes to staff education, there are
discussions at directorate meetings and we have updated the way
electronically prescribe so that if prescribing analgesia the system will
ask for a pain score.
NACEL audit | ¢ Review medical care summary documentation templates in
(National Audit of conjunction with NECN review

Care at End of Life)

e Established bereaved persons survey annually

¢ Implement ‘priority training’ in end of life care

e Seven day 9-5 face to face assessment by specialist palliative care
nurse

¢ ldentify accessible communication skills training for Trust staff

National Cardiac

Arrest Audit (NCAA)

o Letter to be sent to appropriate Clinical Director for all patients
identified as unexpected non-survivors to make them aware of
these patients and asking them to review as part of M&M
meetings.

e Information also to be sent to the Clinical effectiveness/Mortality
Surveillance team to check if they have been reviewed in M&M

meetings

Audit  of

Dementia Round 4

National

e Continue to promote “John's Campaign” and open visiting.
¢ Review dementia patient leaflets and ensure wards have sufficient

supply.

Quality Report 2019-20

Page 104

PAGE 70



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Include prompts to strengthen documentation relating to discharge
arrangements within the nursing pathway (discharge care plan).
Relaunch via patient experience facilitators the carers survey
Feedback and escalation of patient experience data via clinical
standards and patient experience sub group

Establish partnership working to share patient feedback and
experience data with TEWV

Develop a “Forget Me Not” prompt (“what's important to me”) for
above the bed

Review and relaunch dementia training to include delirium

management and include key messages from carers

National Diabetes

Foot Care Audit

Continue to increase the number of patients who self-refer —
Darlington team are working on a group of actions to address this
Reduce major amputation rate — STEES team looking at Root

Cause Analysis for amputations

National Pregnancy
in Diabetes Audit

Antenatal care offered regularly in the Diabetes clinics and Self-
referral pre-conception clinics

Multidisciplinary clinic twice a week

An audit planned to undertaken on steroids and diabetes in

pregnancy

Mandatory
Surveillance of

bloodstream

infections and
clostridium  difficile
infection

To continue active surveillance of these infections.

To continue to input data to the national website for these
infections by the 15th of each month.

To continue to hold case reviews for Trust-apportioned cases of C

difficile and all cases of MRSA bacteraemia.

(National) Maternity

and Perinatal Audit

Continuous self-assessment against Baby Friendly Initiative (BFI)

standards and external reassessment every 3 years

(NMPA)

National The team plan to do PROMs for cataract pathway
Ophthalmology Audit

(NOD)

NCEPOD Write a new peri-op guideline including all current guidance —

Perioperative

Diabetes

specifically identifying high risk patients, change to HbAlc targets,

identification of DM patients

Quality Report 2019-20

Page 105

PAGE 71



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Management—
‘Highs and Lows’

NCEPOD - Acute
Heart Failure (HF):

Failure to Function

There were 15 key recommendations in the report most of which are

already in practice in this Trust. Actions put into place:

¢ A monthly HF MDT composed of all elements described in the
recommendations apart from palliative care, largely as a result of
inadequate palliative care resources.

¢ Follow a simple care pathway, the Nurse Practitioner group cover
24/7 so would be a much more robust group of staff to engage with

for the pathway

National Paediatric

Bronchiectasis Audit

¢ Improve assessment of aetiology of bronchiectasis, particularly as
the investigations recommended would alter clinical management;

e Increased sputum being sent for microbial testing in the stable
state and in exacerbations, again which would directly alter
management;

¢ Increased number of patients being taught airways clearance

techniques by a respiratory physiotherapist.

National Prostate

Cancer Audit

e All patients with suspected prostate cancer that have no contra-
indications are undergoing pre-biopsy multparametric MRI.

e Plans are in place to introduce trans perineal biopsies in 2020.

Serious Hazards of
Transfusion (SHOT)

The team reported that the majority of the actions have been

completed in relation to the report with the exception of

recommendations around IT infrastructure. A business case has
been submitted and included as part of the trust IT project with

implementation likely to be around 2-3 years

National =~ Smoking

Cessation Audit

e To employ a clinical lead with admin support
e For the clinical lead to work closely with clinical and pharmacy
colleagues to improve the prescribing of NRT

e To write a strategy for South Tees Smoke Free

Table 6: National Clinical Audit Reports

Quality Report 2019-20

Page 106

PAGE 72



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Local Clinical Audits

The reports of local clinical audits reviewed by South Tees NHS Hospitals Foundation Trust in
2019/20 are shown below, and the Trust intends to take the following actions to improve the quality
of healthcare provided.

Title

Actions

VTE Prophylaxis
Review Audit in

Orthopaedics

o Posters must continue to be kept in the doctors’ room to
remind doctors about completion of the VTE prophylaxis
assessment

o Regular reminders during morning meetings to continue to

take place to ensure that VTE assessment completion

Assessment of bite
marks in children
presenting as
potential non-

accidental injuries

e Highlight the results of the audit to the wider paediatric team.

e Auditresults to be presented in front of paediatrics team to highlight
the findings.

¢ Investigate why paediatricians are not currently referring suspected
bite marks for a forensic dental review.

e Agree a pathway regarding dental referrals at designated doctor’s
forum.

¢ lllustrate results of the audit at the next designated doctors forum
in June 2019 to compare results from neighbouring trusts and

agree a pathway.

Audit to confirm
relevant medical
information is
included in referrals
to Children Social

Care

e Emails to be sent to practitioners who had made good referrals

¢ Findings from audit to be presented at A&E Meetings — focus to be
on demographic details

e Making SAFER referrals (Situation, Assessment, Family factors,
Expected response, Referral and recording) to continue to be
included in safeguarding training

e Safeguarding staff to promote good practice within the department
face to face with practitioners

¢ Visual aids and information about referrals to be displayed in A&E

as part of the “safeguarding areas of focus plan”

Nursing and Care
Home Better Care
Fund (BCF) ‘MUST’
Audit

e Further training will be delivered on MUST (a screening tool to
identify malnutrition), but focusing on a smaller number of care
homes, which will hopefully mean that improvements are more

dramatic than seen in this audit.

Quality Report 2019-20

Page 107 PAGE 73



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Surgical Highlight to staff:

Management and | ¢ The necessity of completing pathway 9 for Ectopic pregnancy.
care of women with | ¢  That all women have pre op section completed.

Ectopic Pregnancy |« All women have post op pain assessment documented.

¢ All women have been given and discussed the ectopic leaflet.

Audit of Bedside |e Continue to train regarding importance of observations and the

Transfusion Practice need to consent the patient prior to a non-emergency transfusion
or document that it was in patient’s best interest when it was an
emergency.

o Risk alert to be distributed Trust-wide about the completion of the
assessment.

e Ward managers informed and Transfusion Associated Circulatory

Overload assessment discussed with consultants.

Do ENT patients on | ¢ Use of ward round sheets: Importance emphasized in Clinical
ward 35 of JCUH get governance (CG) meeting

appropriate VTE | ¢ Drug kardex to be by bedside for ward round: Nursing staff aware
prophylaxis e Daily check of VTE assessment: By following instructions on ward

round sheets

Antibiotic e Always add a review date: Importance emphasized in Clinical
prescribing for ENT Governance meeting

patients in ward 35 | ¢ Write the indication and stop/review date, importance emphasized
at JCUH in CG meeting

¢ If antibiotic reviewed, add another review / stop date, Importance

emphasized in CG meeting

First Seizure | ¢ Clinics will not be cancelled for any other reason than bank
Clinic/Blackout clinic holidays.

Audit (NICE CG |e All MRI scans to be performed within six weeks of request.
137)

Antibiotics e Establish whether or not every antibiotic prescription needs to be
prescription in discussed with the microbiology or Infectious Diseases (ID) team
neurosurgery and when it is acceptable to follow guidelines

e |f an intended duration is unknown, write down a review date so
that the long term plan is followed up and not forgotten or discussed

with relevant teams involved.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 108 PAGE 74



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

e Inform prescribing members of neurosurgery team to write the
indication for the antibiotic course even if the source is unknown,

that should be documented

Safe initial | ¢  Assess overall Cardiovascular Disease (CVD) risk by performing
prescribing of QRISK3 score

Acitretin for | ¢ Colleagues informed to perform QRISK3 score prior to
psoriasis in adults in commencement — nursing staff will complete in OPD. QRISK3
relation to shortcut to be added to dermatology department desktops to
cholesterol level remind clinicians to assess QRISK

e Document if patient has a pre-existing medical which requires
statin therapy and recommend statin therapy via GP if so

e Highlight any conditions in which risk assessment tool is not
needed as patients may already require statin therapy

e Perform baseline cholesterol profile prior to commencement of
Acitretin and to include total cholesterol/ HDL ratio

¢ Informed colleagues to request baseline cholesterol profile with
total cholesterol/HDL ratio prior to commencement of Acitretin

e Recommend statin therapy via GP if QRISKS3 score >10%

e |nform GP if score >10%

Case Note Audit -| e A clear history / summary / initial assessment and plan of care

Record Keeping, should be recorded in the patient’s record.

community nursing | e  All new staff members will be given a copy of the Standard
Operating Procedure (SOP) and contact activity documents and be
shown the processes by their mentor.

o Disease specific care plans will be applied to individualise the care
given and used to document information at each review. If the
patient does not have a care plan linked disease the clinical review
care plan should be used.

o Ethnicity should be recorded — this is a National standard.

e If care is discussed with the patient / carer, this should be clearly
documented.

¢ It should be documented that written information has been given to
the patient / carer.

e Next of Kin should be recorded.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 109 PAGE 75



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Staff will make an effort to contact the patient by phone 3 times
before sending an ‘invitation for assessment’ letter giving the

patient 4 weeks to respond.

Aseptic Non-Touch
Technique (ANTT)

compliance

ANTT group training sessions are delivered by IPC

provide cannulation training

Equipment change to promote good practice - The trust is looking
at changing cannulas from ported to non-ported cannulas in an

effort to discourage staff from using the top port

MRSA management

Continue to highlight lack of side room capacity as a risk for the
organisation through submission of Datix reports

Retained tampon -

‘Tampons’ removed from the instrument sets

WHO checklist Tampon added to the count board (permanently) along with the

audit, Serious swabs, blades etc.

Incident, Never The swab count policy was amended to include the tampon

Event WHO checklist audit carried out to ensure all counts meet
standards

Adapted NHS Medication delivery to be received by authorised members of staff

Protect Audit and to be secure

The implementation of Omnicells in each area will enforce the

above standard

Controlled Drugs

Senior nursing to provide individual feedback to ward managers
and education and training to ward staff when necessary

Implementation of Omnicells

Table 7: Local Clinical Audit Reports

Quality Report 2019-20 PAGE 76

Page 110



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Getting it Right First Time Programme (GIRFT)

Getting It Right First Time (GIRFT) is an NHS improvement programme delivered in partnership with
the Royal National Orthopaedic Hospital NHS Trust. By tackling variations in the way services are
delivered across the NHS, and by sharing best practice between trusts, GIRFT identifies changes
that will help improve care and patient outcomes, as well as delivering efficiencies such as the

reduction of unnecessary procedures and cost savings.

Importantly, GIRFT is led by frontline clinicians who are expert in the areas they are reviewing. This
means the data that underpins the GIRFT methodology is being reviewed by people who understand
those disciplines and manage those services on a daily basis. The GIRFT team visit every trust
carrying out the specialties they are reviewing, investigating the data with their peers and discussing

the individual challenges they face.

The national programme comprises a series of 40 surgical and medical work streams and since
2014 there have been 23 deep dive visits to the Trust, including 2 re-visits to Orthopaedics and
Vascular Surgery. The most recent visit has been to Endocrinology on 18™ October 2019. There
are also visits planned in the coming year to Respiratory, Cranial neuro-surgery, and Diabetes. The
Trust has also been notified of work stream roll-outs to Neonatology, and Plastic Surgery, Burns and

Hand Surgery. Deep dive visits to these areas will commence from February 2020.

The table below provides an outline of the Trust’s participation in the GIRFT programme.

Acute & General Medicine 23/09/2019
Anaesthetic & Perioperative
Medicine 19/12/2018

13/03/2020
Breast Surgery (postponed)
Cardiology 25/09/2019
Cardiothoracic Surgery 31/08/2017
Cranial Neurosurgery 29/09/2016 31/01/2020
Dermatology 27/03/2019
Diabetes 22/05/2020
Emergency Medicine To be arranged
Endocrinology 18/10/2019

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 111 PAGE 77



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

ENT 08/01/2018
Gastroenterology 30/08/2019
General Surgery 03/12/2018
Did not
Geriatric Medicine participate
Hospital Dentistry 03/07/2019
Intensive & Critical Care 18/07/2018
Lung Cancer 18/06/2020
Mental Health CAMHS
Neonatology To be arranged
Neurology 15/05/2019
Obstetrics & Gynaecology 17/07/2017
OMFS To be arranged
Ophthalmology 10/05/2017
Orthopaedic Surgery 31/01/2014 01/10/2018
Orthopaedic Trauma Surgery
Outpatients
Paediatric Critical Care
Paediatric Gen Surgery 01/02/2018
Paediatric Orthopaedics To be arranged
(Trauma & Elective)
Pathology
Plastics/Burns/Hand Surgery To be arranged
Radiology 11/03/2019
Renal 06/03/2019
07/01/2020
Respiratory (postponed)
Rheumatology
Spinal Surgery 05/07/2017
Stroke 15/03/2019
*Surgical Site Infection Audit 2017/2018 May-Oct 2019

Quality Report 2019-20

Page 112

PAGE 78



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Urology Surgery 15/03/2017

Vascular Surgery 05/10/2016 12/10/2018
Table 8: GIRFT Programme

*Surgical site infection (SSI) is an important area of focus for GIRFT. Post-surgery infections can
cause significant harm to patients and result in increased hospital stay, readmissions and re-
operations. They are also a significant cost to the NHS. Participating in the survey is an opportunity
to better understand our trust’s SSI rates, to review and improve local practice, and to report on this
to the Trust management and Board.

Communication is a vital part of ensuring GIRFT’s successes within the organisation. By having a
clear vision of the benefits that GIRFT can bring into the Trust, engaging staff through communicating
that vision, and ensuring that the processes are designed in a way that is not burdensome for the
clinicians, the Trust is able to fully embrace GIRFT as a key enabler towards delivering a cycle of

continuous improvement for its patients.

South Tees Hospital Foundation Trust (STHFT) already has a well-established internal annual
guality surveillance programme (QSP) comprising of 74 specialised services (including sub-
services). As future GIRFT programmes are beginning to align to NHS England and NHS
Improvement to capture both provider and clinical insights, it has become evident that both
programmes should be affiliated to a central in-house repository. There are therefore plans in place
to ensure the inputs and outputs of the GIRFT programme will, as far as possible be integrated within

these existing programmes of work.

Annual Quality Surveillance Programme

As part of the Quality Assurance and Improvement Framework (QAIF) all specialised services

including cancer are subject to the quality surveillance process.

The Trust is required to complete annual self-declarations against a set of clinical quality indicators
where information is not available through existing data sources. The declarations are a statement
of compliance endorsed by the Chief Executive (or delegated authority) and are submitted through
the Quality Surveillance Information System (QSIS) web portal. The submission deadline is set to
30 June every year.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 113 PAGE 79



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

There are a total of 74 specialised services on the South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust’s
directory of services. As well as submitting self-declarations each year, some of these services are
also required to submit data as part of the Specialised Services Quality Dashboards (SSQD).
Previously QSIS was separated from the SSQD platform — now all information can be accessed in
one place on QSIS.

Annual Assessment Outcomes

All annual self-declarations were completed by the submission deadline of 30 June 2019. A further
request to complete self-declarations for 7 services against the “rare disease insert” was made and

these were completed by a submission deadline of 30 September 2019.

In total 73 specialised services were required to undertake the self-declaration process throughout
2019, and the annual assessments were notified to the Trust in January 2020. Options were derived
following the completion of the annual assessment process which included commissioner review of
the Trust's self-declarations and other quality information including specialised services gquality
dashboard (SSQD) alerts, CQC reports, Healthcare Quality Improvement Partnership (HQIP) audits

and other relevant national clinical audit flags.

The annual assessment outcomes will be used by regional commissioning teams to monitor the

quality of service delivery and compliance with NHS England/Improvement’s service specifications.

The table below details all specialised services annual assessment outcomes. The options for

surveillance are summarised as follows:-

Option 1 — ROUTINE Surveillance:

Annual assessment has confirmed that the service is either 100% compliant with no risks identified
or services that have not reached 100% compliance, but the regional teams have determined that

this is not a material issue.

Option 2 — ENHANCED surveillance:

Provider Action — where it is agreed the non-compliance is amenable to a short-term action plan (6
months), the Trust will be required to submit a Service Development Plan (SDIP). This will be

specified within the contract and monitored via contractual processes.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 114 PAGE 80



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

a) Commissioner Action — where it is identified that the non-compliance is not amenable to
a short-term action plan, the commissioner will notify the Trust, within 6 months of the
discussion, of the action that they intend to take to ensure a sustainable compliant service

in the future.

b) Provider and Commissioner Action —where it is determined that the non-compliance in

one service is amenable to both a short-term and longer-term action plan.

There are 37 services under routine surveillance and a further 36 services under enhanced
surveillance, 23 for provider action, 10 for commissioner action and 3 for both provider and

commissioner action; these are demonstrated in Table 9.

Acute Kidney Injury (Adult) Adult Critical Care: Cardiac Intensive Care
Unit (JCUH) Commissioner action

Assessment and Preparation for Renal Adult Critical Care: General Critical Care
Replacement Therapy including establishing | Unit (JCUH) — Commissioner action

dialysis access)

Cancer Anal (Adult) Cancer Brain and Central Nervous System:
Brain and other rare brain tumours —

Provider action

Generic Brain (CNS) Cancer Brain and Central Nervous System:

Non-surgical — Provider action

Cancer Gynaecological: Local Gynae Team Cancer Brain and Central Nervous System:

(Diagnostic Service) Pituitary — Provider action

Cancer Skin (Adult) Cancer Brain and Central Nervous System:

Spinal — Provider action

Cancer Chemotherapy Adult: Chemotherapy | Cancer Gynaecological: Specialist

ITC Gynaecology Team — Provider action
Cancer Services for Teenagers & Young Cancer Head & Neck (Adult): Local Head &
Adults: TYA Designated Hospital at JCUH Neck Support Teams — Commissioner

and Provider action

Cancer Unknown Primary Cancer Head & Neck (Adult): Specialist

Head & Neck Team — Provider action

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 115 PAGE 81



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Cardiology: Cardiac Magnetic Resonance Cancer Head & Neck (Adult): Specialist

Imaging (Adult) Thyroid Team — Provider action

Cardiology: Electrophysiology and Ablation Cancer Oesophageal & Gastric (Adult):

Services (Adult) Specialist Upper Gl Team — Provider
action

Cardiology: Implantable Cardioverter Cancer Specialised Kidney, Bladder &

Defibrillator and Cardiac Resynchronisation Prostate (Adult) — Provider action
Therapy (Adult)

Cardiology: Primary Percutaneous Coronary | Cancer: Kidney Service — Provider action
Intervention (Adult

Colorectal: Complex Inflammatory Bowel Cancer Chemotherapy Adult:

Disease Chemotherapy Higher Intensity — Provider
action

Colorectal: Faecal Incontinence (Adult) Cancer Chemotherapy Adult: Clinical

Chemotherapy — Provider action

Complex Gynaecology: Recurrent Prolapse Cancer Services for Teenagers & Young
and Urinary Incontinence Adults: TYA Designated Hospital at the

Friarage — Commissioner action

Complex Gynaecology: Severe Cancer Acute Oncology Service —

Endometriosis Commissioner and Provider action

Complex Gynaecology: Urogenital Anorectal | Cardiac Surgery (Adult) — Provider action

Conditions

Cystic Fibrosis Cardiology: Inherited Cardiac Conditions
(All Ages) — Provider action

Haemato-oncology Complex Disability Equipment —

Prosthetics (All Ages) — Provider action

Implantable Hearing Aids for Microtia, Bone Complex Spinal Surgery (All Ages) —
Anchored hearing Aids and Middle Ear Provider action

Implants (All Ages)

In Centre Haemodialysis Ear Surgery: Cochlear Implants (All Ages)

— Commissioner action

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 116 PAGE 82



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Local Breast Cancer Team

External Beam Radiotherapy Services
delivered as part of a Radiotherapy
Network (Adult) — Provider action

Local Colorectal Services (Colorectal Cancer
MDT)

Haemodialysis to treat established renal

failure in the home — Provider action

Neonatal Critical Care

Local Lung Cancer Team —

Commissioner and Provider action

Neurosciences: Specialised Neurology
(Adult)

Major Trauma (Adult) — Commissioner

action

Neurosurgery (Adult)

Paediatric High Dependency Care

Major Trauma (Children) — Commissioner

action

Neuro-interventional Services for Acute
Ischaemic & Haemorrhagic Stroke —

Commissioner action

Specialised Endocrinology Service (Adult)

Paediatric Intensive Care — Commissioner

action

Specialised HIV Services (Adult)

Paediatric Medicine Endocrinologyy and
Diabetes — Provider action

Specialised Immunology (All Ages)

Paediatric Surgery (& Surgical Pathology,

Anaesthesia & Pain) — Provider action

Specialised Ophthalmology (Adult)

Peritoneal Dialysis to treat Established
Renal Failure — Provider action

Specialised Ophthalmology (Paediatrics)

Skull Base Service — Provider action

Specialised Orthopaedics (Adult)

Specialised Burn Care (All Ages) —

Commissioner action

Specialised Services for Infection Diseases
(Adult)

Specialised Services for
Haemoglobinopathy Care (All Ages) —

Commissioner action

Spinal Cord Injuries (All Ages)

Specialised Vascular Service (Adult):

Arterial — Provider action

Thoracic Surgery (Adult)

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 117

PAGE 83



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Table 9: Services under Surveillance
Specialised Services Quality Dashboards (SSQD)

The SSQDs are designed to provide assurance on the quality of care by collecting information about
outcomes from healthcare providers. SSQDs are a key tool in monitoring the quality of services,
enabling comparison between service providers and supporting improvements over time in the
outcomes of services commissioned by NHS England. For each SSQD, there is a list of agreed
measures for which data is to be collected. These measures are included in a “metric definition set”.
The information provided by the SSQDs is used by NHS England specialised services
commissioners to understand the quality and outcomes of services and reasons for excellent

performance.

The table below lists the STHFT specialised services that required submission of data against a set
of metrics for 2019/20:-

Adult Critical Care: External Source Data Populated via ICNARC and

e General Critical Care (Intensive Care and validated by Trust
National Audit &
Research Centre
(ICNARC) Required

e Cardiac Intensive Care

quarterly
Cancer Specialist Services: Provider data New requirement from Q3
e Bladder & Prostate Required quarterly only
e Kidney
Cardiac Surgery External Source Data New requirement for
(Hospital Episode 2019/2020
Statistics (HES) Data populated from
Required quarterly external source and

validated by Trust

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 118 PAGE 84



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Cardiology:
e Cardiac Magnetic

Resonance Imaging (Adult)

o Electrophysiology & Ablation

Services

e Implantable Cardioverter
Defibrillator and Cardiac
Resynchronisation Therapy
(Adult)

e Primary Percutaneous

Coronary Intervention (Adult)

Provider data
Required quarterly

Provider data

Required quarterly

Provider data

Required quarterly

Provider data

Required quarterly

New requirement for
2019/2020 Provider data
populated and validated by
Trust

Provider data populated

and validated by Trust

Provider data populated

and validated by Trust

Provider data populated

and validated by Trust

Colorectal:

e Faecal Incontinence (Adult)

Provider data

Required quarterly

Provider data populated

and validated by Trust in

Q3 & Q4

Complex Disability Equipment —
Prosthetics (All Ages)

Provider data
Required quarterly

Data required for Q1 & Q4
only

Cystic Fibrosis (Children)

Provider and external
source data

requirement quarterly

Provider data populated
and validated by Trust

External Beam Radiotherapy
Services Delivered as part of

Radiotherapy Network

External Source Data
(Public Health England
(PHE) Required

quarterly

Data populated from
external source and

validated by Trust

Hepatobiliary and Pancreas —
Cirrhosis of the Liver (Adults)

External Source Data
(HES) Required
quarterly

Data populated from
external source and

validated by Trust

Implantable Hearing Aids for
Microtia, Bone Anchored Hearing
Aids and Middle Ear Implants (All
Ages)

Provider data

Required quarterly

New requirement from Q4
2018/19

Data has not yet been
submitted by the Trust

Quality Report 2019-20

Page 119

PAGE 85



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

In Centre Haemodialysis (ICHD)

External Source Data
(Renal Registry)
Required quarterly

Data populated from
external source and

validated by Trust

Neonatal Critical Care

External Source Data
(Clevermed)

Required quarterly

Data populated from
external source and

validated by Trust

Neuro-interventional Services for
Acute Ischaemic & Haemorrhagic
Stroke

External Source Data
(Sentinel Stroke

National Clinical Audit
Programme (SSNAP)

Annual requirement

Data populated from
external source and
validated by Trust.

To be submitted in Q4 only

Paediatric Intensive Care

Provider and external
source data quarterly

requirement

Provider data populated
and validated by Trust

Specialised Burn Care:
e Adults

e Paediatrics

External Source Data
(IBID)
Required quarterly

Data populated from
external source and

validated by Trust

Specialised Endocrinology Services
(Adult)

Provider data
Required quarterly

Data populated for Q4
2018/19 only

Specialised Human
Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)
Services (Adult)

External Source Data
(PHE HARS)

Required annually

Data populated from
external source and

validated by Trust

Specialised Immunology (All Ages)

External Source Data
(MDAS)
Required quarterly

Data populated from
external source and

validated by Trust

Specialised Services for

Haemoglobinopathy (All Ages)

Provider data
Required annually — NB
One indicator required

quarterly

Provider data populated

and validated by Trust

Quality Report 2019-20

Page 120

PAGE 86



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Spinal Cord Injuries: External Source Data Provider data required only
e Adult (NSCID) for Q1 to meet rolling year
Rolling annual requirement
¢ Children requirement/quarterly
Specialised Vascular Services Provider data Data not yet submitted by
(Adult): Arterial Required quarterly the Trust for 2019/2020
Thoracic Surgery (Adult) Provider data New requirement for
2019/2020

Provider data populated

and validated by Trust

Table 10: Specialised Services

*Data is either pulled directly from a national data source or is submitted by the Trust

Clinical Research

Clinical research is a national and Trust priority. South Tees NHS Foundation Trust is part of the
Clinical Research Network North East and North Cumbria (CRN NENC). There is a clear link
between research activity, clinical effectiveness and improved patient experience. A recent large-
scale study demonstrated that patients cared for in NHS hospitals that have a high level of
participation in clinical research have lower mortality rates and improved clinical outcomes. This
effect was not just limited to those people who took part in the trials, but was significant across the
entire patient population. It is therefore important that the Trust continually develops clinical
research, bringing new therapies and new treatments to the people of Teesside and the wider

population.

The Trust’s active engagement in research is reflected by the high number of research studies being

undertaken.

The number of patients receiving relevant health services provided or sub-contracted by South Tees
Hospitals NHS Trust in 2019/20 that were recruited during that period to participate in research
approved by a research ethics committee is 3196. In 2018/19 the Trust recruited 3691 patients
enrolled in 196 different research studies while in 2019/20 the Trust recruited 3196 patients enrolled

in 162 different research studies. While the number of recruits decreased by 14%, the year-on-year

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 121 PAGE 87



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

fall was less than the overall 40% fall experienced by the NHS Trusts across the North East and
North Cumbria region.

The Trust is routinely meeting the NIHR (National Institute for Health Research) target deadlines (40
days from receiving a complete research application) for setting up new trials to help ensure that
there are minimal avoidable delays to research activity and income. The Trust created a formal
research alliance with two other NHS Trusts (North Tees and Hartlepool Hospitals NHS Foundation
Trust and County Durham and Darlington NHS Foundation Trust) in order to increase patient
opportunities to participate in research known as the Durham Tees Valley Research Alliance
(DTVRA). As part of this restructure there is a streamlined management tier and a single combined
research study set-up team designed to help ensure that research study opportunities are shared

across all 3 Trusts and fully utilised.

The Trust continues to successfully deliver major NIHR grant-funded trials and this year has been

awarded an NIHR grant in trauma and orthopaedics, as well as other commercial research grants.

Patient Engagement

We routinely appoint patient representatives to the steering committees of our NIHR grant funded
studies and carry out other patient and public involvement activity for individual trials, for instance

focus group sessions.

Goals Agreed with Commissioners — use of the CQUIN Payment
Framework

A proportion of the South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust’s income in 2019/20 is conditional
on achieving quality improvement and innovation goals agreed between South Tees Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust and any person or body they entered into a contract, agreement or arrangement
with for the provision of relevant health services, through the Commissioning for Quality and

Innovation (CQUIN) payment framework.

Submission of CQUIN data was suspended nationally for Q4 due to COVID-19 and NHSE has also
suspended all CQUINSs for 2020/21 due to the current pandemic.

Further details of the agreed goals for 2019/20 are available on request from the Quality Assurance
Team, South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, The James Cook University Hospital, Marton

Road Middlesbrough TS4 3BW or via email stees.qualityassurance@nhs.net

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 122 PAGE 88



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

The table below demonstrates the income conditional upon achievement of the CQUIN measures
and the payment received by the Trust for the last 2 financial years.

Income conditional upon achievement | Payment received by the
of the CQUIN measures Trust

2018/19 | £11.18m £11.21

2019/20 | £5.77m £5.77

Table 11: CQUIN Income

Care Quality Commission Compliance

1. Background

In July 2019 South Tees NHS Hospitals Foundation Trust received a report from the CQC following
an inspection in January and February 2019. The Trust received an overall rating of ‘requires
improvement’ and the report contained 26 ‘must do’ recommendations and 22 ‘should do
recommendations. A detailed action plan has been developed for all recommendations and this has
been submitted to CQC. Delivery of the action plan is overseen by a fortnightly Oversight Group and

a small Huddle Group meets daily to review and challenge sources of evidence.
2. Progress

Following monthly meetings of the CQC Oversight Group it was agreed that a series of ‘confirm and
challenge’ sessions would be arranged throughout January and February 2020 with operational and
director leads. These sessions focussed on the ‘must do’ recommendations and have facilitated

discussions relating to evidence, action plans, assurance and risk.

The sessions have also provided the opportunity to identify where support is required to progress
specific actions. Whilst each ‘must do’ recommendation is made up of a series of specific actions
the confirm and challenge sessions have concluded with an overall assessment of where the Trust
is against the entire CQC recommendations. Table 12 contains an overview of progress as of the
20" February 2020.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 123 PAGE 89



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Assessment date Overview
® 5 Off track

20 February 2020 O |10 Expected to deliver actions
@ 10 Completed actions
O ! Embedded in practice

Table 12: Overview of progress against CQC ‘must do’ recommendations
Good progress has been made for 21 of the 26 recommendations.
Five (5) recommendations are deemed to be off track however this is mainly due to specific actions

and not the entire CQC recommendation. Mitigating actions are in place for each action that is

deemed off track.

Ref CQC Recommendation Reason for ‘off track’ Mitigation
assessment
M6 The Trust must ensure that | Achievement of | Additional training

staff training compliance | Centre trajectories for | being delivered

with  Mandatory Training | resuscitation training

especially resuscitation Trajectories due for
training, safeguarding completion by May
children (level 2) and 2020

safeguarding vulnerable
adults (including mental
capacity act and deprivation
of liberty) safeguarding

training meets the target of

90%
M11 The Trust must ensure that | 24/7 Consultant | Work with Specialised
there are at all times | presence not | Commissioning to

sufficient numbers of | available in ED (this | review funding to
suitably skilled and qualified | links to another must | externally mandated
nursing and medical staff in | do recommendation | model

line with best practice and | M9, compliance with | CCG  funding for
national guidance | Major Trauma | integrated Primary

(Emergency Department) Standards. Care/ED assessment

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 124 PAGE 90



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

to ensure that the
environment is suitable for
the purpose being used and
is secure and compliant with
current standards especially
for paediatric patients and
patients with mental health
needs (Urgent &
Emergency Care Centre &
FHN)

associated with the
Emergency
Department
Paediatric

environment

M14 The Trust must review the | Sufficient pharmacists | Patient prioritisation
role  of supernumerary | to deliver GPICs
coordinators and the level of | compliance and 80% | Electronic prescribing
specialist pharmacy | medicines funding secured for
provision in Critical Care so | reconciliation 2021
they are in line with GPICS
recommendations

M26 The Trust must ensure | Workforce review | 3 Additional
there are sufficient numbers | completed. radiologists in post
of suitably qualified staff, from March 2020
especially radiologists

M8 The Trust must take action | Constraints M8

Table 13: Must do actions

Table 13 provides a summary of the metrics that are off track and the mitigating actions. The five "off
track’ recommendations are included as workstreams within Phase 1 of the Improvement Plan under

the main CQC workstream. This involves a weekly level of scrutiny by the Medical Directors,

Directors of Nursing and Quality and Chief Operating Officer.

Quality Assurance Framework

NHS England and NHS Improvement (NHSE/I) have highlighted organisations that are excelling at
ward accreditation. When used effectively ward accreditation can drive continuous improvement in
standards and increase patient and staff experience. The South Tees Accreditation for Quality of

Care (STAQC) is a methodology that has been developed and the CQC key Lines of Enquiry are

embedded in the methodology.

Quality Report 2019-20

Page 125

PAGE 91




SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

The revised STAQC framework has been piloted in Critical Care and two ward areas. A deep dive
into Critical Care using the STAQC methodology was undertaken on 20 January 2020. This enabled
the process and standards to be tested and gave the Critical Care Team an assessment of what
they need to do to commence their accreditation journey.

STAQC was due to be launched in April however due to Covid-19 this was delayed until July 2020.
Publicity and a Trust wide workshop will take place to ensure clinical teams are engaged in the
development of a Strategy and Assurance Framework for quality, safety and continuous

improvement.

Well Led Review

A review of governance processes, including a board development workshop, was undertaken
during September to December 2019 and this resulted in the development of a ‘Well Led’ Action

Plan. Progress to date includes:

e Leadership Programme established

e 6 Clinical Directors attending the Northumbria Leadership Training programme

e Staff currently on Manchester MBA programme

e Board Development Programme commenced

e Senior Leadership Portfolios realigned

e Clinical Policy Group (CPG) has been established to strengthen clinical decision making and
engagement including making decisions about how the organisation uses its resources and
delivers care.

¢ Three Phase Improvement Plan approved by the Trust Board

¢ Communication and Engagement Strategy aligned to the Improvement Plan

o Staff engagement to define Trust Values

e Accountability Framework and supporting metrics under development

o Development of STAQC and a Quality Assurance Strategy

¢ Risk management policy updated subject to final approval

o Datix Cloud implementation

¢ New Integrated Performance report to be implemented

Moving to Good

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 126 PAGE 92



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

‘Moving to Good’ is a collaborative improvement programme organised by NHSI/E. Through this
programme South Tees NHS Hospitals Foundation Trust identified three objectives which are
embedded in the overarching CQC Action Plan and include:

e Increase incident reporting and learning throughout the Trust
e To identify, develop and implement a Quality Strategy for the Trust and embed an agreed
approach to Quality Improvement Methodology

¢ To implement safe surgery practices across the Trust in order to eliminate Never Events

The programme includes a series of workshops to support Trusts in developing their improvement
plans. A ‘Moving to Good’ workshop focussing on governance was attended by the Director of
Nursing & Quality, the Head of Governance and other team members. The programme addressed
guality and corporate governance, accountability, assurance and reassurance and performance
management. Included in the workshop were examples of board assurance frameworks and risk
registers along with discussion on risk management processes and structures. There was also a

discussion about the themes and lessons learnt from CQC well led inspections.

Monitoring Progress

Whilst the CQC action plan is grounded in the delivery of specific actions, quantitative and qualitative
outcome metrics provide evidence that improvement is sustained and embedded in the culture of

the organisation.

Work is underway to develop an Integrated Performance Framework for Directorates, Centres and
the Trust Board. During 2020/21 the Trust Board will see a new style Integrated Performance Report
bringing together clinical quality, operational delivery, workforce and financial metrics aligned to the

CQC Key Lines of Enquiry.

These quantitative metrics are supplemented by qualitative metrics which have been scrutinised
during the ‘confirm and challenge’ sessions. Whilst the detailed focus has been on the ‘must do’
recommendations, action plans have been developed to deliver the ‘should do’ actions. A series of
confirm and challenge sessions are now planned for the ‘should do’ recommendations whilst
maintaining focus on the ‘must do’s. As each recommendation is assessed as ‘completed’ further
plans will be developed to ensure sustainability right across the Trust. Confirm and challenge will
become an integral part of the emerging Performance Framework and further scrutiny will be applied

through the Improvement Programme Board.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 127 PAGE 93



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

System Engagement
Engagement meetings continue to take place between the Trust and the CQC.

The Single Item Quality Surveillance Group led by NHSE/I continues to provide oversight, system
monitoring and support. The system is providing support for a number of areas including Never

Events.

NHS England and NHS Improvement (NHSE/I) have highlighted organisations that are excelling at
ward accreditation. When used effectively ward accreditation can drive continuous improvement in
standards and increase patient and staff experience. The South Tees Accreditation for Quality of
Care (STAQC) is a methodology that has been developed and the CQC key Lines of Enquiry are
embedded in the methodology.

NHS number and general medical practice code validity

South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust submitted records during 2018/19 to the Secondary
Uses Service for inclusion in the Hospital Episode Statistics (HES) which are included in the latest

published data.
The percentage of records in the published data which:

Included the patient's valid NHS number was:
e 99.9% for admitted patient care;
o 100.0% for outpatient care; and
e 99.5% for accident and emergency care.
Included the patient's valid General Medical Practice Code was:
o 100.0% for admitted patient care;
e 100.0% for outpatient care; and

e 99.9% for accident and emergency care.

Information Governance (IG) toolkit attainment levels

Information Governance is assessed as part of a process of submitting compliance with Data

Security and Protection Toolkit (DSPT), which has replaced the older IG Toolkit reporting function

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 128 PAGE 94



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

and is based upon the National Data Guardians 10 Data Security Standards. The content of the DSP
Toolkit has significantly changed; it has been updated to include more assurance around technical
aspects of cyber security and information security compliance.

DPST also differs from the previous IG Toolkit which assessed performance against three levels (1,
2 and 3). The DSPT does not include levels and instead requires compliance with assertions and
(mandatory) evidence items. These include a total of 40 assertions and over 130 pieces of

mandatory evidence.

Due to the impact of Covid-19 a six-month extension has been provided for the 2019/2020
submission and this is now due on the 30" September 2020. An action plan regarding compliance
is in place and is monitored at the bimonthly Information Governance Steering Group and reported

to the Trusts Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO).

Information on the submission due in September 20 will be included in next year’s Quality Accounts.

Clinical coding

South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust was not subject to a Payment by Results clinical coding
audit during 2019/20 by the Audit Commission.

Learning from Deaths

During 2019/20, 1,901 patients of South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust died. This comprised
the number of deaths which occurred in each quarter of that reporting period:

439 in the first quarter;
438 in the second quarter;
516 in the third quarter;
508 in the fourth quarter.

By 31t March 2020, 1,846 case record reviews and 46 investigations have been carried out in

relation to 1,901 deaths above.

In 42 cases, a death was subjected to both a case record review and an investigation. The number

of deaths in each quarter for which a case record review or an investigation was carried out was:

428 in the first quarter;

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 129 PAGE 95



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

423 in the second quarter,;
511 in the third quarter;
484 in the fourth quarter*

*This figure is accurate at the time of this report and the low number for Q4 relates to timely provision
of notes to the Medical Examiner (ME) Service. Since there has usually been an incident reported
and an investigation, the patient case notes are usually in high demand across several parts of the

organisation and therefore the review cannot be carried out until these have been received.

Two deaths, representing 0.1% of the patient deaths during the reporting period, are judged to be
more likely than not to have been due to problems in the care provided to the patient. In relation to
each quarter, this consisted of: -

1, representing 0.2% for the first quarter;
0, representing 0.0% for the second quarter;
1, representing 0.2% for the third quarter;

0, representing 0.0% for the fourth quarter.

These numbers have been estimated using an adapted version of the Preventable Incident, Survival
and Mortality Study (PRISM) methodology. The Trust established a Medical Examiner Service in
May 2018. Approximately 96% of deaths (those not referred for Coronial investigation) are
scrutinised by Medical Examiners. Anywhere there may be a problem in care (or meet specific
criteria) is reviewed by a central team led by Respiratory medicine and Renal consultants. Each

review results in 2 grades, one for quality of care and one for preventability of the death.

The reviews highlighted the following learning points and recommendations:

¢ Investigation of patient's complaint of pain in his neck should have been investigated earlier,
although it is beyond the experience of the reviewer as to how common this complaint is after
a tracheostomy.

o if a urine test is requested and a sample sent for culture, it is imperative that the test results

should be reviewed and acted upon in a timely fashion.

286 case record reviews and O investigations were completed after 31/03/2019 which related to

deaths which took place before the start of the reporting period.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 130 PAGE 96



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Deaths are reviewed by a central team led by Respiratory and Renal Consultants. Each review
results in two grades, one for quality of care and one for preventability of the death.

Staff who ‘Speak Up’ (Including Whistleblowers)

Following the Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust Public Inquiry Sir Robert Francis QC made
recommendations designed to make the culture of the NHS patient focused, open and transparent
— one in which patients are always put first and their safety and the quality of their treatment are the

priority.

There was an increasing recognition of the contribution staff can make to patient care through
speaking up however there was a continuing problem with regard to the treatment of staff who raise
genuine concerns about safety and other matters of public interest, and the handling of those

concerns.

The review highlighted a number of people who reported victimisation or fear of speaking up which

is unacceptable.

Sir Robert Francis concluded “Each time someone is deterred from speaking up, an opportunity to
improve patient safety is missed”. Every organisation needs to foster a culture of safety and learning
in which all staff feel safe to raise a concern. “We need to get away from the culture of blame, and
the fear that it generates, to one which celebrates openness and commitment to safety and

improvement”.

&

Figure 7: Process for managing concerns reported through ‘Freedom to Speak Up’

In light of the recommendations outlined above the Trust introduced a new ‘Freedom to Speak Up
(FTSU) Raising Concerns (Whistleblowing) Policy in 2016 and employed the services of an

independent impartial service ‘SeeHearSpeakUp’ to manage concerns that were raised. It became

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 131 PAGE 97



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

clear however that more needed to be done to support staff who had concerns to feel able to raise

those concerns.

The Trust appointed two ‘Freedom to Speak Up Guardians’, Helen Smithies (Assistant Director of
Nursing) and Laura Mills (Head of Facilities), both have been with the organization for many years
and will be known to many staff. Supported by an Executive and Non-Executive Director leads they
have developed a new policy, attended national training and developed a network of champions.
FTSU awareness has been incorporated into the new Trust induction.

Reporting

A reporting tool was developed which enables staff to report concerns in a number of ways:

Anonymous notification — no one, including the guardians, knows your name. It is important when
making an anonymous notification to provide sufficient details to allow for an investigation — for
example, which area, ward or department you are referring to. The lack of identification means

feedback cannot be given to an anonymous referrer.

Confidential notification — the guardians know your name but will not disclose it to anyone else.
This allows the guardians to gather any missing or unclear information and to provide feedback

following the investigation.

Open notification — you have agreed to your name being shared with the investigators. You will

also be able to be provided with feedback.

In addition to the reporting tool staff are able to report their concerns in person to the Guardians or

champions within the Trust. There is also a dedicated email account for staff to use.

Feedback to Staff

Staff receive feedback either by email or face to face depending on their preference, provided they
have passed on their details and not reported their concerns anonymously. Staff are also asked to

report detriment and this is monitored by the Guardians and reported back to the national office.

During 2019/20 there continued to be a steady increase in the number of concerns being raised
although as the year progressed it became apparent that further development within the existing
capacity would not be achievable and so a revised model with dedicated time will be developed in
2020/2021.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 132 PAGE 98



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Total number of Cases raised 25

Raised Anonymously

Patient safety/quality 8
Bullying/Harassment 16
Number of staff suffering detriment 1

Table 14: Number of Concerns Reported in 2019/2020

Reporting against core indicators

In addition to the progress with our locally identified quality priorities and our performance against
national performance targets, we also monitor measures from the NHS Outcomes Framework. The
data reported below is data that is publicly available from NHS Digital; we have included
benchmarking data where this is available. The most recently available data from NHS Digital has
been used however, it should be noted that due to the nature of some of the measures and the data

collection systems, the time period reported for some of the measures may be some time in the past.

The NHS Outcome Framework has five domains within which are grouped together measures for
monitoring progress. The Quality Account regulations require a selection of these to be included in
this report and these are described below under the heading of the relevant domain.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 133 PAGE 99



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Domain 1 - Preventing people from dying prematurely

Summary hospital- level mortality Indicator (SHMI)
140
120 - = = - = = - = - - - -
100 -
80
60
40 —
20
o T T T T T T T T T T
Apr 16 - Jul 16 - Oct 16 - Jan 17 - Apr 17 - Jul 17 - Oct 17 - Jan 18 - Apr 18 - Jul 18 - Oct 18 - Jan 19 -
Mar 17 Jun 17 Sep 17 Dec 18 Mar 18 Jun 18 Sep 18 Dec 18 Mar 19 Jun 19 Sep 19 Dec 19
(Band 2) (Band?2) (Band2) (Band?2) (Band2) (Band2) (Band2) (Band2) (Band2) (Band2) (Band2) (Band?2)
= Trust score m Highest - National A Lowest - National M National Average

Figure 8: Summary Hospital Level Mortality Indicator (SHMI) (Data source: NHS Digital)

South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the following
reasons: the Trust experiences approximately as many deaths as would be expected, given the
patients it serves and the range of services it delivers. Thus the SHMI is approximately 100 (i.e.
observed and expected mortality rates are approximately the same). The categorisation of the SHMI

into band 2 means that the mortality is within the expected range.

% of patient deaths with palliative care coded at either diagnosis or
specialty level
70.00
60.00 - = = = = u | - = = m m—
50.00
40.00
[ ] | |
[ | |
30.00 - -
20.00 -~
10.00
0.00 - T T T T T T T T T T

Apr 16 - Jul 16 - Oct 16 - Jan 17 - Apr 17 - Jul 17 - Oct 17 - Jan 18 - Apr 18 - Jul 18 - Oct 18 - Jan 19 -

Mar 17 Jun 17 Sep 17 Dec 18 Mar 18 Jun 18 Sep 18 Dec 18 Mar 19 Jun 19 Sep 19 Dec 19

(Band2) (Band2) (Band2) (Band2?) (Band2) (Band2) (Band2) (Band2) (Band2) (Band2) (Band?2?) (Band?2)

m Trust score M Highest - National A Lowest - National M National Average

Figure 9: Percentage of Patient Deaths with Palliative Care Coded (pata source: NHS Digital)
Quality Report 2019-20 PAGE 100

Page 134



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

The percentage of patient deaths with specialist palliative care coding is comparable with the national
average and in the period Jan 2019 to Dec 2019 was 37.0% compared to 29.0% during the
equivalent period last year. This reflects the work that was done to ensure that all the specialist
palliative care provided to patients was captured in the coding used to calculate SHMI. This involved
a comparison between two digital systems used to record the care provided.

The Trust is taking the following actions to improve the indicators and therefore the quality of its
services; The Trust has governance committees which monitor and respond to mortality information
and the Patient Safety Sub Group in particular coordinates hospital safety and improvement activity.
This includes reviewing the range of statistics available to monitor hospital mortality, establishing the
Medical Examiner Service in May 2018 (the first in the North East), overseeing trust and specialty
level case note reviews of hospital deaths so that common themes can be identified and lessons

can be learnt to improve the quality of its services.

The number of deaths in the trusts is variable from year to year, depending on the severity of
respiratory and other seasonal infections each year. However, the trend outside these seasonal
variations has remained stable over a long period of time, despite an aging population and increasing
complexity of the conditions patients have when admitted to hospital. Work likely to affect mortality
rates, particularly in elderly patients admitted to medical wards, includes sustained work on
identification and management of deteriorating patients (the National Early Warning Score is
electronically recorded in the Emergency Departments and Acute Assessment Units as well as all
wards of the hospital), identifying and managing patients with sepsis, prevention of falls, and work
identifying patients level of frailty and providing appropriate support.

Domain 2 - Enhancing quality of life for people with long-term
conditions

No applicable indicators.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 135 PAGE 101



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Domain 3 - Helping people to recover from episodes of ill health or
following injury

Patient Reported Outcome Measures (PROMSs)

PROMs measure a patient's health status or health-related quality of life at a single point in time,
and are collected through short, self-completed questionnaires. This health status information is
collected from patients through PROMSs questionnaires before and after a healthcare procedure and
provides an indication of the outcomes or quality of care delivered to NHS patients (HSCIC website
http://www.hscic.gov.uk/proms). The score reported is an adjusted health gain score based on case
mix, a higher number indicates a better health gain.

Hip Replacement Patient Reported Outcome easures

Health gain score

A o A " A A -
- -
0.400
0.200
0.200
0.100
0.000 T T

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

= Trust Score « Mational Average 4 Highest - National = Lowest - National

Figure 10 Hip Replacement PROMS

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 136 PAGE 102



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Knee Replacement Patient Reported Outcome
Measures -
Health gain score
0.500
0.450 A
0.400 e - A A A e
0.350 >
0.300
0.250
0.200
0.150
0.100
0.050
0.000 . . . T T y
2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
M Trust Score + National Average 4 Highest - National m Lowest - National

Figure 11: Knee Replacement PROMS (Data source: NHS Digital)

South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the following
reasons: the specialist review and pre-assessment process ensures that patients are offered the
procedure likely to deliver the most benefit and best outcome. The health gain scores for hip

replacements and knee replacements are in line with the national average.

The Trust has taken the following actions to improve these scores, and therefore the quality of its
services: providing regular feedback of the scores to clinical teams and benchmarking performance
across the NHS and other hospitals in the North East, through a regular report produced by the North

East Quality Observatory Service (NEQOS), to ensure the quality of services is maintained.

Re-admission within 28 days

Emergency re-admission within 28 days of discharge (age
16 and over)

14 -

12

10 -
8 —+
o - : : . i I . I i I : I

2012713 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

% of patients re-admitted
a [)]

N

Figure 12: Emergency Readmissions Aged 16 and over (Data source: Local patient administration system)

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 137 PAGE 103



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Emergency re-admission within 28 days of discharge (age
0- 15)
13
12
= 11
g 10
£,
T 8
e 7
2 6
.% 5
S 4
s 3
2
1
0 T T T T T T T
2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

Figure 13: Emergency Readmissions Aged under 16 (Data source: Local patient administration system)
South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the following
reasons: the percentage of re-admissions for patients aged over 16 increased slightly from 11.9% in
2018/19 to 12.3% in 2019/20.

Further work is currently being undertaken to determine the cause of the slight increase in
emergency readmissions. Following conversations with clinical staff an audit is currently
taking place to provide more clarity on the cause of this and an action plan will then be

developed to reduce the number of readmissions.

Domain 4 - Ensuring people have a positive experience of care

Responsiveness to the personal needs of patients

Trust Scores Performance

80th Performance
Domain 2018/19 2017/18 percentile in top 20%
for 2018/19 for 2018/19

Access and waiting : : 85.4 Yes

Safe, high quality,
Yes
coordinated care

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 138 PAGE 104



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Better information, more
: 68.6
choice

Building closer relationships  88.7

Clean, comfortable, friendly

place to be

Overall

Table 15: Responsiveness to Personal Needs (Data source: https:/www.england.nhs.uk/statistics/statistical-work-

areas/pat-exp/sup-info)

Trust results relative to the national dispersion of scores - Inpatient 2018/19

0 10 20 30 AQ 50 60 T 80 a0 100
I AW
I sHacc
I BIMC
o 20 40 &0 20 100
Trust score
I BR
I ccrp
Lowaest seore 20th percentile Highest scare
naticnally nationally
I Overall

Figure 14: Responsiveness to Personal Needs (https:/www.england.nhs.uk/statistics/statistical-work-areas/pat-
exp/sup-info)

South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the following

reasons: the Trust clinical standards focus on delivering care in a sensitive and person-centred way.

The Trust’s overall performance is in the top 20% nationally. The only domain where the Trust

narrowly missed a top 20% performance score was the ‘Better information, more choice’ domain.

The Trust intends to take the following actions to improve this data and the quality of its services.
The Trust continues to collect patient experience data and triangulate all patient feedback. The
collection of inpatient feedback provides an immediate feedback to the wards thereby enabling staff
to recognise and respond to patient queries and concerns immediately.

Staff who would recommend the Trust as a provider of care to their family and friends

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 139 PAGE 105


https://www.england.nhs.uk/statistics/statistical-work-areas/pat-exp/sup-info
https://www.england.nhs.uk/statistics/statistical-work-areas/pat-exp/sup-info
https://www.england.nhs.uk/statistics/statistical-work-areas/pat-exp/sup-info
https://www.england.nhs.uk/statistics/statistical-work-areas/pat-exp/sup-info

SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

% of staff that would recommend the trust as a provider of care to their
100 famllv and frlpndq
N
g 70
£ 60
e 20
s
> 10
E 0
= 13/14 2014/15 2015 /16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
N lTrust score # National Average Highest - National M Lowest - National

Figure 15: Percentage of Staff who would recommend the Trust (Data source: NHS Digital)
Figure 15 shows the percentage of staff who would recommend the Trust to their family and friends.

The South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the

following reasons; the Trust scores have been consistent over the last 5 years.

The South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the following actions to improve
this percentage and thereby the quality of its services. It continues to work with staff to improve the
guality of care provided to patients. In addition the Trust promotes the achievements of staff in
delivering high quality care through regular staff bulletins, staff briefings and providing other
opportunities for staff feedback. The Trust has undergone a number of significant changes and is
now empowering clinical leaders to make decisions around how the organisation allocates its

resources and delivers care.

Domain 5 - Treating and caring for people in a safe environment and
protecting them from avoidable harm

Patients that were admitted to hospital and who were risk assessed for venous

thromboembolism (VTE) during the reporting period.

The South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the
following reasons; the Trust monitors compliance on a monthly basis and has achieved the required

standard.

The South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust has taken the following actions to improve this
percentage, and so the quality of its services; the completion of a VTE risk assessment is monitored

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 140 PAGE 106



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

monthly through audit to ensure that the actions required following assessment are completed as
well as recording that the assessment has taken place. Issues identified from the audit are further
investigated and actions put in place to address any areas of concern.

% of patients risk assessed for venous thromboembolism

100
90
70

60

40
20
0 - T T T T T T T T T T

50
30 -+
10
Jan 18 - Apr 18- Jul 18 - Oct 18- Jan 19 - Apr 19 - Jul 19 -
Mar 18 Jun 18 Sep 18 Dec 18 Mar 19 Jun 19 Sep 19

% risk assessed

Oct 19 -
Dec 19

Oct 17 -
Dec 17

Jul 17 -
Sep 17

Apr 17 -
Jun 17

M Trust score + Mational Average A Highest - National M Lowest - National

Figure 16: Percentage of Patients assessed for VTE (Data source: NHS Digital)

Clostridium difficile (C.difficile) Infections

Rate of C.difficile per 100,000 bed days amongst patients age 2 or over

M Trust score

100
@ 90 S
g A
-}
3 80 A
-] A
S 70 7'y
=] A
o ©0 A
o
= 50
=
& 407 A
S A
:%, 30 r 5
S 20 - & _ -

10

0 . . . . . .
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

# National Average

A Highest - National M Lowest - National

Figure 17: Rate per 100,000 bed days of cases of C.difficile infection reported within the Trust

amongst patients aged 2 or over. (Data source: NHS Digital)

The South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the
following reasons; the Trust is committed to driving down healthcare acquired infections, and
achieved its lowest ever incidence Clostridium difficile infections in 2018/19, as indicated in the graph

above.

Quality Report 2019-20 PAGE 107

Page 141



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

The South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust has taken the following actions to improve this
rate, and so the quality of its services; the Trust has a comprehensive action plan for the prevention
of trust-attributed Clostridium difficile infections which is monitored through the Infection Prevention
Action Group. In addition to this all trust-attributed cases have a full root cause analysis and are
reviewed at a panel chaired by the Director of Infection Prevention and Control or their deputy.

Rate of patient safety incidents reported within the Trust and the number and

percentage of such patient safety incidents that resulted in severe harm or death

Number of patient safety incidents that resulted in severe harm Rate of patient safety incidents reported per 100
ordeath admissions/1000 bed days
140 140
120 A 120 A
A
A
100 A
A A . A s R A 1 -
b 80
A A A A N
& 60
.
@ 0 - - . . . + hd
20 + * * * * * » (Y MR L I
B [ ]
Apr15-5ep15 Octi15-Mar Apr16-Sepls Oct16-Mar Apri7-Sep17 Oct17-Mar Apr18-5ep18 Oct18-Mar Apr19-Sepls 0
17 18 19

16 Apr 15 -5ep 15 Ot 15 - Mar 16 Apr 16 -Sep 16 Oct 16 - Mar 17 Apr 17 - Sep 170t 17 - Mar 18 Apr 18 - Sep 18 0ct 18 - Mar 18 Apr 19 -Sep 19

uTrustore & National Average A Highest - National ~ m Lowest - National mTrust xore  « NatonalAversge A Highest - National W Lowest - National

% of patient safety incidentsthat resultedin severe harm or Number of patient safetyincidents

death 6000

2.5 5000

2 A 2000
N A

15 A 3000

A

1 L) 2000

s N A A 1000
* * *

+ . . o

0

Apr 15 -Sep 15 0ct 15 - Mar 16 Apr 16 - Sep 16 0ct 16 - Mar 17 Apr 17 - Sep 1704t 17 - Mar 18 Apr 18 - Sep 18 0ct 18 - Mar 19 Apr 19 -Sep 19
Apr 15 -Sep 15 0ct 15 - Mar 16Apr 16 - Sep 160t 16 - Mar 17 Apr 17 - Sep 170ct 17 - Mar 18Apr 18 - Sep 18.0ct 18 - Mar 19Apr 19 -Sep 19

mTrustore ¢ National Aversge 4 Highest - National M Lowest - National mTrust score

Figure 18: Rate of Patient Safety Incidents Reported (Data source: NHS Digital)

The indicator for patient safety incidents has changed from incidents per 100 admissions shown in
blue above to that per 1000 bed days shown in light purple.

South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the following
reasons; the Trust had recognised that the rate of incidents and the number of incidents reported
had fallen.

Incident reporting was, therefore, previously identified as a Quality Priority and further information

on the action taken to improve incident reporting is described in Part 2 of this report.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 142 PAGE 108



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

As shown in the graph, incident reporting has increased significantly over the last year. The Trust is
currently exploring ways of making incident reporting easier, via the use of voice recognition software
and other technology that should facilitate this process. Each indicator is governed by standard

national definitions.

PART THREE - Other information

An overview of the quality of care based on performance in
2019/20 against indicators

This section of the quality account contains a review of our quality performance during 2019/20. It
also includes comments on the development and content of the quality account provided by a range

of external stakeholders.

We are continuously exploring new ways of improving quality and safety, making innovative use of

the data collected.

Information about quality of care is collated in the form of a dashboard at ward, clinical centre and
Trust level, and is reviewed monthly. This information is shared with the Board of Directors, Board
of Governors, senior clinicians and managers to provide assurance the Trust is on track to deliver

its key targets.
The following section reviews the work of a range of quality work streams during 2019/20; these

have been selected as the key indicators by the Board that demonstrate the quality of care provided

by this organisation.

Patient Safety

Pressure Ulcers

The development of pressure ulcers is recognised as a key indicator of the quality of care delivered
and a fundamental aspect of patient care. Pressure ulcers are detrimental to patients in terms of

their physical, psychological and social well-being, resulting in reduced quality of life (EPUAP 2014).

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 143 PAGE 109



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

During 2019/120 the Trust continued to focus on reducing the number of pressure ulcers in both the

acute and community settings. Overall, the trust did not achieve a reduction in the rate of pressure

damage.

Preventing pressure damage remains a priority.

Actions to reduce pressure damage included:

Falls

Changes to the reporting form for pressure ulcers has been strengthened to capture relevant
information to enable ward managers and clinical matrons to ensure trends and themes are
identified and that these then inform further improvement work.

Nursing documentation has been reviewed and strengthened with additional prompts aligned
to pressure ulcer prevention. In addition, a new comfort and pressure chart has been
developed to prompt and record assessment and relevant evidence of interventions.

The safety@stees collaborative, a safety focused monthly meeting, includes pressure ulcers
as a standing agenda item and provides a regular opportunity to monitor performance and
share good practice. More detailed analysis is conducted by wards teams and actions are
monitored through the clinical standards meeting. Where additional support, expert advice
or training is required, the tissue viability team provide this to our clinical staff, both on wards
and within the patient’s own home.

Areas with heightened pressure damage rates have undertaken additional training and are
supported by the tissue viability team.

Falls prevention remains a key priority for staff across the trust. During 2019/20 there has been a

sustained focus on reducing falls and this has included interventions such as improvements to

signage, continence and delirium care planning, medication reviews and interventions to prevent

muscle loss, specifically for older and frail patients. By the end of 2019/20 fewer patients had fallen

in the trust than in the previous 2 years.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 144 PAGE 110



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Number of Falls - 2019/20

1800

1500

1400

1200
100

800

500

A00
200

2 019,/20 Cumulative Falls — — 201920 Trajectory

Figure 19: Patient Falls 2019/20
Actions to reduce falls include:

» Falls are reported via the incident reporting system and the reporting form for falls has been
strengthened to enable more detailed reporting and identification of trends and themes to
inform further improvement initiatives. Through analysis of incident data environmental
issues such as light levels, weight of doors and toilet seat height identified as issues have all
been addressed to reduce the incidence of falls.

* Nursing documentation has been reviewed and strengthened with additional falls prevention
prompts aligned to the falls CQUIN

* The safety@stees collaborative meeting includes falls as a standing agenda item and
provides a regular opportunity to monitor performance and share good practice. More
detailed analysis is conducted by each ward and actions are monitored through our clinical
standards meeting.

* On-going interventions include monitoring the completion of the Trust’s fall's assessment to
ensure individual patient’s risks are being addressed. Examples include conducting a review
of medicines where necessary and ensuring appropriate footwear is worn. There is also a
system for flagging patients identified at risk of falling and these patients are discussed at

ward rounds and this is highlighted on the patient boards.

Duty of candour

Central to the Trust's strategy to improve patient safety is its commitment to improving
communication between healthcare professionals and patients and/or carers when a patient is
harmed as a result of a patient safety incident. This communication is known as ‘Being Open’ and
involves apologising and explaining what happened. It ensures communication is open, honest and

occurs as soon as possible following an incident. ‘Being Open’ about what happened and discussing

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 145 PAGE 111



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

incidents promptly, fully and compassionately can help patients cope better with the after-effects.
Incidents can also incur extra costs through litigation and further treatment; openness and honesty
can help prevent such events becoming formal complaints and litigation claims. ‘Being Open’ is a
process rather than a one off event. The Duty of Candour is a statutory and regulatory requirement
of the ‘Being Open’ process and applies when a patient safety incident results in moderate harm,

major (severe) harm or death.

The Trust’s process to discharge its Duty of Candour is described in the ‘Being Open’ policy which
is available to all staff. An overview of Duty of Candour is included in the Trust's Induction
programme. In addition the incident reporting system and investigation documentation includes
prompts to ensure the Duty of Candour requirements are considered. An audit of incidents with a
severity graded as moderate or greater is being undertaken in quarter 2 2019/20 and this is likely to

result in improvements to the policy.

Adult Safeguarding

What is Safeguarding?

Safeguarding is a positive duty placed on all of us under section 42 of the Care Act (2014) to
promote the wellbeing of vulnerable people and protect them from harm whether or not the harm is
intentional and irrespective of whoever causes the harm. Safeguarding duties are rooted in law;
based around the protection of human rights. As a public authority the Trust must follow the

Human Rights Act (1998) in everything we do and treat people in accordance with their rights.

In 2019-20 there were 573 safeguarding concerns; 115 relating to Trust practice and 458 relating

to concerns externally. (Overall 37% increase on previous year).
Model of safeguarding within the Trust

The Safeguarding Adult Team triage all safeguarding concerns raised and allocate to an
appropriate Clinical Matron taking into account work load and complexity. Those concerns most
complex, reputationally risky or involing multilple services are managed by the team themselves.
These include allegations of organisational or discriminatory abuse, where there are potential
criminal charges or disciplinary processess against staff members. This includes working with the
ward/department team to undertake an investigation providing evidence to the safeguarding

meeting and working with those involved to instigate any resulting action plan.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 146 PAGE 112



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

During COVID this model was revised to enable Clinical Matron cover to focus on the clinical
areas; the Safeguarding Team managed all safeguarding activity. There are plans to review the
model and adopt what is considered to be the best elements of practice.

Making safeguarding personal

The focus of the Making Safeguarding Personal (MSP) agenda is on safeguarding processes
supporting the individual to develop or maintain a private life in safety and free from abuse. At its

heart it is about people being enabled to live the life they choose.

Adults should be asked what outcome they would like from safeguarding procedures. This is
audited on a quarterly basis. This has shown a significant improvement over the year from 44% in

Q1 to 84% in Q4 with overall compliance across the year of 61%.

Themes of learning during 2019-20

Concluded s.42 enquiries by theme (Total 121)

Not substantiated 28 (23%) HR Process 5

W Assessment 2

W Skin integrlty/Pressure care 5
B Medication 13
M Discharge 11
B Communication 4
M Nutition/Hydration 4
m Referral to other professionals 3
B Manual Handling 1
Falls 3
M Physical care 8
 Cannula management 2

Pain Manangement 1
Bowel Management 2

Children’s Safeguarding

Model of safeguarding children practice

The safeguarding children’s team operate a model of duty nurse system (Mon-Fri) who visits ED,
Paediatric and post natal inpatient areas each mornng and attend any child protection strategy
meetings called for that day. Each member of the the team has a caseload of practitioners for
whom they provide safeguarding supervision. In addition they represent the organisation at

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 147 PAGE 113



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

interagency safeguarding meetings, contribute to training and professionally challenge interagency
partners when necessary.

Model for Looked After Children (LAC) practice

A child is looked after by a local authority if a court has granted a care order to place the child in
care, or a council's children's services department has cared for the child for more than 24 hours.
Within 5 working days the Trust should be notified the child has become looked after and be
provided with parental consent for an initial health assessment to be carried out by a paediatrician.
The initial health assessment must be carried out within 20 working days. These are statutory time

scales.

Following their initial health assessment, each child will have a review health assessment at a
statutory interval for their period of time in care. Children under 5 years are reviewed every six
months and children over that age annually. These reviews are requested, collated, distributed and

quality assured by the LAC team but carried out by other provider Trust’s.

The looked after children system is complex and highly interdependent on the timely actions of
multiple agencies and multiple professionals within those agencies. Additionally a number of local
children are placed in areas outside of the Trust footprint, and a number of children from outside
our area are placed here. The looked after team has a role in statute and contract in relation to all
of these children. Where a child is looked after by North Yorkshire County Council their health
needs are coordinated by Harrogate District Foundation Trust. Data provided in the report
therefore is in relation to South Tees Children. Middlesbrough has some of this highest numbers

of children looked after in the country and numbers are growing.

The total number of looked after children as of 31/03/3030 is 987 which is an increase of 19% from
the figure as per 31/03/2019.

Clinical Effectiveness

Dying in hospital — mortality

Hospital mortality rates; how many people die in different hospitals as a proportion of the number of

people who are admitted to the hospital, are not easy to compare across the NHS. Simply knowing

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 148 PAGE 114



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

how many people died at each hospital would be misleading as hospitals see different numbers of
patients and provide different services to patients with different levels of risk. However, for an
individual hospital or Trust it is important to monitor a number of measures of mortality as collectively
they can provide alerts about the quality of care provided in the organisation.

The basic measure is to monitor the proportion of people who die in hospital and this number, known
as the unadjusted mortality rate, is monitored on a weekly basis. Risk adjusted measures can take
account of the different levels of risk to some extent. They are calculated by estimating the risk of
death for each patient with specific medical conditions and comparing the actual death rate with the
total estimated rate that can be expected from the predicted risks.

Mortality statistics are reported to the Trust Board on a quarterly basis and have been since 2008.
These include the number of deaths, the unadjusted mortality rate and the Summary Hospital-level
Mortality Indicator (SHMI), the NHS’s official risk-adjusted mortality metric.

Mortality Rate April 2005 - February 2020 Momity e
12 per. Mov. Avg (Mortality Rate)
2.60
240
2.20
2.00
» i 1 .
T Y O W N_ 4 : T i, 1 )
ot P A AR N, A L T A WA N W~ 2 ]
VO NNV Y PTIIARHY R AWARYT Y, =
120 B3 A 24 ¥ g AX A
¥y T[V V [ )'g ¥ V wi v "\IV\ l VENR
1.00 1 p'3
0.80
0.60
040
0.20
Source: CAMIS
0.00 T T T T T T T T T T T | ) ) ) S p— — T T T T T T T T T T — T — T T T T T T T T T T T T
o 1 © A0 3 =3
B I I

Figure 20: Unadjusted Mortality Rate April 2005 — Feb 2020 (including rolling 12 month

averages) (Source: CAMIS)

It should be noted that in line with previous Quality Accounts information more recent data will be
reported in next year’s report to allow comparisons with previous years to be made.

Unadjusted mortality measures the number of deaths as a percentage of patient inpatient and day
case spells, excluding well babies (less than 28 days old). It is most useful for seeing the pattern of
deaths through time. Looking at the trend from April 2005 — February 2020 it can be seen that a
winter peak is experienced in most years, especially in 2013, 2015 and 2017. The peak in January
2015 in particular was severe but of short duration and reflects the amount of respiratory infections

in the community. The peak between October 2017 and January 2018 again reflects the amount

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 149 PAGE 115



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

and severity of respiratory infections including influenza in the community, as primary causes of
death and underlying other conditions such as sepsis, renal failure and other acute medical
conditions. The winter peak for 2018-19 was relatively low and for 2019-2020 occurred earlier than

usual in December 2019.

SHMI with banding using 95% Control Limits and with adjustment for over-dispersion
120 .
- - - [win)
- . R ., . tf‘ux.!l‘.‘l.-i _"\...- - .
A Bareshead . " R el Larls
2
100 L . ® . _‘:‘ulr il = .
. Aacaitie . .
.
- ™ -
- .
. . .
BO -
.
.
z
w &0 w  Other Arutes
& NorthEast
IS0 1L L 1
40
— S5 Ugspeer Limit
20
Source Summany Hospitallevel Monality Indicator (SHMI). Data released by NHS Dagital, February 2020
0
0 1000 2000 3000 4000 5000
Expected deaths

Figure 21: SHMI with 95% Control Limits and with adjustment for over-dispersion for Oct 2018

— Sep 2019 (Source: SHMI Data Release NHS Digital May 2019)

It should be noted that in line with previous Quality Accounts information more recent data will be
reported in next year’s report to allow comparisons with previous years to be made.

The Summary Hospital-level Mortality Indicator (SHMI) is designed to allow comparison between
Trusts across the NHS. It includes deaths in hospital as well as deaths within 30 days of discharge
from hospital. The SHMI for the Trust has been ‘as expected’ (i.e. within the amount of variation that
can be anticipated by chance) in all data releases to date and the SHMI is currently 110 (Oct 2018
— Sep 2019). This means that the number of deaths in hospital or within 30 days of discharge from

hospital is a little higher than the number expected using a statistical model.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 150 PAGE 116



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

SHMI and Unadjusted Mortality Rate for South Tees
140 - 6%
120 M\N’/ i 5%
100

- 4%
_ 80 =
= - 3%
“ 60 =
- 2%%
40 £
3
- 19 w
20 °3
2
0 0%3

Q3 Q4 an Q2 Q3 Q4 a Q2 Q3 Q4 a Q2
2016/17|2016A7 |2017M8 |2017M8 |201718|201718|2018/19|2018/19(2018/19 |2018/19 |2019/20 |2019/20
—+—SHMI -m-Unadjusted rate

Figure 22: SHMI and Unadjusted Mortality Rate for South Tees (source: Data extracted from HED Feb
2020)
The SHMI is monitored on a quarterly basis and broadly reflects the unadjusted rate for deaths

included in the SHMI.

Re-admissions

30 day readmission rate following an unplanned admission (PbR)
January 2016 - November 2019

16.00%

15.00% o R A

14.00%

13.00% g

12.00% 4%

Y

Source: HED (Mar 2020)

30 Day Readmission Rate (%)

11.00%

10.00%

NN e R e
N

o) ) Q A O Sl > D > G=J =l S > ] G ol >
» " ¢ " " : ad S g g o> Y Iy S o o Y N e ae > s e
S YT T @ T e Y e S

—&#—South Tees —l— National

Figure 23: 30 day readmission rate following an unplanned readmission (Payment by Results)

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 151 PAGE 117



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Over the period illustrated, 30 day readmissions for the Trust has averaged 13.57% compared to the
national average of 13.78%. For some patients this further admission is not linked to their recent
hospital stay but for others, they have returned to hospital because of complications after their
discharge. These complications may be related to their needs not being adequately established at
pre-assessment, through to acquiring an infection during their hospital stay or due to their
rehabilitation not progressing as planned. The graph demonstrates that the re-admission rate has
stayed static over the period reported.

There has been considerable work undertaken in individual pathways, for example alcohol
dependency, pain management and Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD). The Rapid
Response Service and the Integrated Community Care team will support those patients at high risk

of re-admission.

Nutrition and hydration — getting the balance right

The Trust aims to:
e Ensure all patients are screened to assess their risk of malnutrition and that this information
is appropriately acted upon
o Ensure we meet the needs of patients who require help with eating or drinking
e Provide choices of food and drink for people to meet their diverse needs making sure the

food and drink we provide is nutritionally balanced and supports their recovery.

Patients are assessed on admission using the Malnutrition Universal Screening Tool (MUST), which
is a validated screening tool to detect malnutrition in adult patients. The following graph

demonstrates compliance with using the tool and taking the appropriate actions.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 152 PAGE 118



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Compliance with MUST assessments

o | l I - . . I I I I l . I I l || -
50 ‘ ‘ | ‘ | ‘ | ‘ | ‘ | | | | ‘ | ‘ |
Qi a2 Q3 Qa al Q2 as Q4 Qi1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 a3 a4 a1l Q2 Q3

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

e

o
&

x
o

~
@

-
=]

@
th}

@
=]

w
«a

a4

% of MUST risk assessment completed within 24 hours % of appropriate actions taken on the current ward as indicated by the MUST assessment

Target : % of MUST risk assessment completed within 24 hours ——Target : % of appropriate actions taken on the current ward as indicated by the MUST assessment

Figure 24: Compliance with Must Assessments (Data source: Local audit)
Compliance is monitored via ward managers monthly audits and the clinical assurance rounds, and

where issues are highlighted targeted training is arranged locally.

It is anticipated that compliance will increase with the re-introduction of the internal ward

accreditation scheme (STAQC), and MUST refresher training is also being provided.

Nursing assessments and screening tools for nutrition and hydration

As part of the review of the nursing care pathway documentation launched in January 2020, the
screening tool (MUST) and care plan that we use to identify patients at risk of malnutrition has been
revised and updated. Alongside this, the new documentation now also includes screening questions
to identify patients who are having problems with swallowing which can also have significant impact

on the ability to eat and drink adequately and safely.

International Dysphagia Diet Standardised Initiative (IDDSI) Implementation

The IDDSI Framework is an internationally agreed framework that has been developed for a number
of reasons but most importantly for patient safety. Across the world, there have been a number of
serious choking incidents related to poor understanding of previous terminology that was used for
dysphagia (difficulty with swallowing), and particularly around the term ‘soft diet'. If dysphagia is not
treated appropriately, it can result in choking, pneumonia, chest infections, dehydration, and
malnutrition and weight loss. IDDSI promotes patient safety through using the same definition to
describe the different levels of dysphagia - for all ages and care settings worldwide. Although work
initially started on this in 2018, the implementation of the International Dysphagia framework has
been a significant undertaking and an on-going project during 2019 to support the training and

awareness-raising of staff and volunteers who are involved in the provision of food and fluids to

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 153 PAGE 119



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

patients, to change menus and develop information resources for patients, carers and care providers
and embed this into every day practice.

Transformation of Patient Meal provision

Much of the focus for the last year has been the extensive preparation for switchover to a new food
supplier for the hospital meal provision at the James Cook site and a move to a ‘bulk cook freeze
system’. This required the development of a completely new menu range, whilst also ensuring that
all special dietary requirements and national nutritional standards are met alongside the need for

variety and balance to prevent menu fatigue.

The phased launch commenced at the end of October 2019, supported by intensive training

sessions.

In addition to the menu changes an electronic ordering system was introduced. Meals are now
ordered at ward level via I-pads - the key advantage being that patients get their first choice and
trolley waste has reduced significantly, and the electronic system enables us to gather useful data
to inform future menu changes. For any patients who have not been on the ward at the time of
ordering, or have missed a mealtime, we have a flexible dining menu card which can be offered and

regenerated in the hospital production unit and delivered to the ward.

Focus on Hydration

As part of a service improvement project led by the renal team, a ‘traffic light’ water jug system was
piloted in June/July 2019. The RAFA unit was identified as the initial area to focus on due to the high
incidence of patients being admitted with Acute Kidney Injury (AKI) Stage 1, and it was felt this could
have a positive impact on AKI progression. Patients on the unit were given a water jug with a red lid
at the start of the day. Once empty the jug was refilled and the lid changed to an amber colour and
then eventually to a green lid. The aim being that, by the end of the day the patient would have
consumed enough water to ensure that they were adequately hydrated.

An audit conducted prior to the implementation of this system demonstrated that the average daily
oral intake of water per patient was approximately 500mls with no patients achieving over a litre of
oral intake. Post implementation audits demonstrated average oral fluid intake had increased
significantly. The pilot was widened to include ward 34 (orthopaedic ward with an emphasis on
fracture neck of femur patients) with similar positive results

The plan now is to roll this project out trust wide, with an initial focus on Surgery and Trauma.

COVID-19

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 154 PAGE 120



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Nearing the end of the 2019-2020 period the Trust had to switch rapidly to preparation for the impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic. Across the Trust all services were required to anticipate and plan for the
rapidly changing patient needs both as a consequence of the illness itself or as an impact of the
COVID-19 lockdown procedures that we were required to impose. The intelligence that we gained
from other centres across the country indicated that there would be a significant increase in the
patients needing to receive nutrition via enteral or parenteral feeding routes, and increased staffing

resources needed within the critical care and respiratory areas.

Priority was given to training staff to increase specialist skills in these specialities, developing new
protocols and care plans for the provision of nutritional care pathways, and producing patient
information specific to managing the consequences of COVID on nutritional intake.

New ways of working had to be implemented to ensure that nutritional care continued for those
patients out in the community who were unable to be seen for ‘face to face’ care, with the introduction

of ‘virtual’ clinics and telephone support for care homes.

Seven Day Services

The government launched the seven day services programme to ensure that patients that are
admitted as an emergency receive high quality consistent care, whatever day they enter
hospital. Ten clinical standards were identified initially with four priority standards for implementation
by 2020.

These four standards mean that emergency patients;
a) don't wait longer than 14 hours to initial consultant review
b) get access to diagnostic tests with a 24-hour turnaround time - for urgent requests, this drops
to 12 hours and for critical patients, one hour
C) get access to specialist, consultant-directed interventions
d) with high-dependency care needs receive twice-daily specialist consultant review, and those
patients admitted to hospital in an emergency will experience daily consultant-directed ward

rounds

The Trust changed medical and surgical rotas during the acute phase of Covid-19 to ensure 7 day

working.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 155 PAGE 121



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

The Trust is awaiting further guidance on how the Seven day services agenda will be taken forward
and what shape assurance will take. It is anticipated that this will be put on hold for the time being
given the Covid pressures.

Given that the Trust is currently in Covid recovery, the only way that we can be assured that we are
compliant with standards a, b and c is to undertake another audit. Given the nature of ward rounds
in South Tees, the Trust is compliant with standard.

The trust has been advised by the Regional Improvement Team — North (NHSEI) that there is no
need currently to undertake another audit for regional submission in view of the on-going Covid-19

situation.

Due to current and anticipated increasing pressures upon systems in responding to the coronavirus
(COVID19) pandemic, the spring Board Assurance Framework (BAF) submission requirement for
the region had been deferred to Wednesday 30 September 2020 however given the ongoing
pressures this has now been cancelled and clarity is currently being sought from NHSE/I Regional
Medical Directors in regard to how they wish to seek assurance with the delivery of this agenda.

NHS Doctors and Dentists in Training

Schedule 6, paragraph 11b of the Terms and Conditions of Service for NHS Doctors and Dentists in
Training (England) 2016 requires: “a consolidated annual report on rota gaps and the plan for
improvement to reduce these gaps” and NHSI has requested that there should be a statement in the

Trust's Quality Account regarding this.

The vacancy rate was greatly improved in 2019/2020 compared to the previous year with the annual
vacancy rate dropping from 6.4% to 3.9%. Vacancies have been covered in the main via re-adjusting
rotas to accommodate the reduced number of Doctors. Vacancies have been actively recruited to
throughout the year whilst an increased use of recruitment of Doctors via the Medical Training

Initiative has helped to fill ST3+ level vacancies in a number of specialties.

Gaps on rotas tend to be short term due to sickness or emergency leave. The Medical Rota Team
track Junior Doctor sickness and any Doctors hitting trigger points are picked up by the relevant
team (e.g. postgraduate team for Foundation Doctors, Lead Employer Trust for LET employed
Doctors). Advanced Nurse Practitioners are successfully being utilised to cover gaps in some areas,

working alongside Doctors in training.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 156 PAGE 122



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

The medical rota team continue to fill approximately 95% of all locum shifts each month with the
majority (approximately 91%) being filled by internal locum cover as opposed to agency. The regional
locum bank (Flexishift) hosted by the LET is now well established and Locally Employed Trust (LET)
Doctors are to be added to the bank from May 2020. The regional bank provides STHFT with access
to an additional pool of LET employed doctors who work in other Trusts and GP surgeries. The team
continue to utilise the master vendor agency HCL where required.

In line with the Terms and Conditions of Service for NHS Doctors and Dentists in Training (England)
2016, we have an established Guardian of Safe Working (GOSW), reporting quarterly to the Board
and Workforce Committee, and a Junior Doctors’ Forum meeting quarterly. Attendance at the Junior
Doctor Forum has increased considerably following the August 2019 intake of Junior Doctors, with
a number of members becoming accredited BMA representatives, taking up vacant seats on the

Joint Local Negotiating Committee (JLNC).

Patient Experience

The Trust uses a number of sources to understand the patient experience in the organisation, and
as discussed earlier in the report, the trust has implemented the ‘real time’ patient experience

programme across all inpatient wards.
Complaints and PALS

In addition to this, we analyse our complaints, Patient Advice and Liaison (PALS) enquiries/concerns
and compliments to understand the experience of our patients, with a view to continually improving
this.

2018/19 2019/20
Total Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total
Number of Formal
378 130 110 96 134 470
Complaints
Number of PALs received 2518 613 669 536 694 2512
Number of Compliments 261 58 134 109 103 404

Table 16: Number of Complaints and PALS Concerns/Enquiries Received during 2019/20

(Source: Datix)

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 157 PAGE 123



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

The table above shows that there has been an increase in the number of complaints reported during
2019/20 from the previous year, which represents an increase of 24%. The number of PALS received
during 2019/20 remains about the same as 2018/19. There were 2512 PALS received in 2018/19
compared with 2518 in 2018/19. The number of compliments logged has increased however not all
compliments will be formally logged on Datix, as many will be received at ward/department level.

Trust Received Complaints per Spell - 24 month period

0.006

0.005

0.004

0003

0.002

Complaints per Spell

0.001

R R I I I R R I N N I N N R R R N N
A A A A A Sy oy oy R B A A N
& A ‘5& ;o & & & & A & & & & 0@‘ & ®
¢ VS AU ¥

¥ B & & ¥ S ¥ ¥ & i T &
& ¢ & A L Y T
o £ 9 o § ¢
=g=Complaints per Spell = = Mean == UL == LCL

Figure 25: Complaints Received Over a 24 Month Period

The number of complaints received had increased in the last quarter. There were 39 complaints
received in January and 48 in both February and March. This is exaggerated in the above graph due
to the significant reduction in spells during March as a direct result of Covid-19.

Friends and Family Test (FFT)

The Trust continues to deliver the Friends and Family Test in line with national guidance. On 1 April
2019 the Trust commenced using a digital platform in all inpatient areas and maternity to collect the
FFT. On 1 August 2019 the collection of FFT by text message for the Urgent and Emergency Care
service was commenced, this service was also rolled out from 1 October 2019 in outpatient areas.
The Trust performs well against national data with the percentage of patients that are very likely or
likely to recommend, with performance generally in line or higher than the national average for
inpatient areas and above the national average for maternity services. The percentage very likely or
likely to recommend for Urgent and Emergency Care services is slightly lower than the national

average.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 158 PAGE 124



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Response rates are however lower than the national average and the Trust continues to try different

methodologies to improve this. However, the introduction of ‘key performance indicators’ for all

inpatient areas from 1 February 2020 has seen the response rate improve month on month.

Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19
Response Rate % likely to recommend Response Rate % likely to recommend Response Rate % likely to recommend
Trust England Trust England Trust England Trust England Trust England Trust England
Inpatient 3% 24% 100% 96% 4% 24% 94% 96% 6% 25% 99% 96%
A&E 0% 12% 100% 85% 0% 12% * 86% 0% 12% * 86%
Antenatal - 95% - 95% - 95%
Birth 0% 21% * 96% 0% 20% * 97% 0% 21% * 97%
Postnatal ward * 95% * 95% * 95%
Post natal * 98% * 98% * 98%
Outpatient - 94% - 93% - 94%
Community 100% 95% 90% 96% - 95%
Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19
Response Rate % likely to recommend Response Rate % likely to recommend Response Rate % likely to recommend
Trust England Trust England Trust England Trust England Trust England Trust England
Inpatient 6% 26% 99% 96% 13% 26% 97% 96% 14% 24% 97% 96%
A&E 0% 12% * 85% 5% 13% * 86% 5% 12% 81% 85%
Antenatal - 95% - 94% - 95%
Birth - 21% * 97% - 21% * 96% - 20% * 97%
Postnatal ward * 95% * 96% * 95%
Post natal * 98% * 98% * 98%
Outpatient - 94% - 94% - 93%
Community - 95% - 96% - 96%

Community

96%

96%

Table 17:

National Patient Surveys

National Adult Inpatient Survey 2018

Family and Friends Test Data by Month Data source: NHS England

Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19
Response Rate % likely to recommend Response Rate % likely to recommend Response Rate % likely to recommend
Trust England Trust England Trust England Trust England Trust England Trust England
Inpatient 14% 24% 98% 96% 12% 24% 97% 96% 13% 23% 97% 96%
A&E 5% 13% 83% 85% 4% 12% 82% 84% 5% 12% 84% 84%
Antenatal - 95% 94% 95% 100% 95%
Birth - 20% * 97% - 21% * 96% - 18% * 97%
Postnatal ward * 95% 96% 94% 100% 95%
Post natal * 98% * 98% * 98%
QOutpatient - 93% 95% 93% 95% 94%
Community - 96% - 96% * 95%
Jan-20 Feb-20
Response Rate % likely to recommend Response Rate % likely to recommend
Trust England Trust England Trust England Trust England
Inpatient 19% 23% 97% 96% 20% 24% 96% 96%
A&E 5% 12% 87% 85% 5% 12% 82% 85%
Antenatal 100% 95% 97% 95%
Birth - 19% * 97% - 20% * 97%
Postnatal ward 100% 95% 100% 95%
Post natal * 98% * 98%
Outpatient 95% 94% 92% 94%

The national survey of adult inpatients seen in July 2018 showed that a total of 600 surveys were

returned completed therefore the trust had a response rate of 50%. The results were published by
the CQC in July 2019 and showed:

Quality Report 2019-20

Page 159

PAGE 125



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

The Trust scored in the top 20% of trusts of 27 questions. The trust scored in the bottom 20% of
trusts on 2 questions, knowing what would happen next when leaving hospital and being given

written information to support self-care when leaving hospital.

Overall the results reflect a positive patient experience in the questions asked in domains for, the
emergency/A&E department, doctors and nurses, care and treatment, respect and dignity. Areas
identified for improvement, communication and the discharge process.

National Maternity Survey 2019

There were 139 completed surveys from women who gave birth during February 2019 within the
organisation with a response rate of 39%. The average score for each question showed an
improvement from 82% in 2018 to 83% in 2019.

The Trust scored in the top 20% on 17 questions and scored in the bottom 20% on 2 questions,
during pregnancy, the provision of a telephone number for a midwife or member of the midwifery
team to contact and following the birth, having the opportunity to ask questions about the labour and
the birth.

Overall the survey results reflect a positive patient experience in relation to the questions asked in
the 3 domains, labour and birth, staff during labour and birth and care in hospital and after birth.
Areas identified for improvement were, contact information in the antenatal period, discharge and
communication after the birth. An action plan has been developed to secure and sustain

improvements.

Urgent and Emergency Care Survey 2019

The national survey of Urgent and Emergency Care surveys patients attending type 1 services,
which include A&E departments (casualty or emergency departments). Type 3 services include
urgent care centres, urgent treatment centres and minor injury units. For adult patients seen at a
type 1 service between October 2018 and March 2019 showed that a total of 315 surveys were
completed therefore the trust had a response rate of 25%. For adult patients seen at a type 3 services
between October 2018 and March 2019 showed that a total of 139 surveys were completed therefore

the trust had a response rate of 33%

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 160 PAGE 126



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

The survey findings for type 1 and 2 showed the average score was up 1.4% on 2016. The trust was
in the top 20% of trusts on 17 questions and the bottom 20% in O questions. Areas of strength were
in the domains for, waiting times, doctors and nurses, care and treatment, leaving A&E and respect
and dignity

Children and Young Persons Survey 2018

The national survey of Children and Young Persons seen in November and December 2018 showed
that a total of 260 surveys were completed with a response rate of 24%. The Trust scored in the top
20% of Trusts on 19 questions and in the bottom 20% of Trusts on 4 questions. The results have
remained largely the same as in the 2016 survey.

The Trust scored better in four questions compared with other Trusts in the region for young people
feeling; it was quiet enough to sleep when needed in hospital and the ward they stayed on was
suitable for their age. For children and young people saying; staff spoke with them about how they
were going to care for them and they were told what would be done before their operation or
procedure. The Trust scored in the bottom 20% in four questions: Choice of admission dates, change
of admission date, staff playing with children at all while they were in hospital and staff listening to
children. Areas for improvement included a review of surgical admission dates and observational

audits of staff playing with children and listening to children.

National NHS Staff Survey, 2019

The survey was carried out from October to December 2019. The survey mode was mixed and the
sample type was census with a response rate of 27% (2250 members of staff). There were 48
organisations in the benchmarking group with a median response rate of 46% (combined acute and

community trusts)
Key findings were as follows:

Violence, Harassment & Bullying

In the last 12 months how many times Deterioration 13.3%  14.3% 13%

have you personally experienced

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 161 PAGE 127



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

physical violence at work from patients
| service users, their relatives or other

members of the public?

In the last 12 months how many times
have you personally experienced
physical violence at work from

managers?

In the last 12 months how many times
have you personally experienced
physical violence at work from other

colleagues?

In the last 12 months how many times
have you personally experienced
harassment, bullying or abuse at work
from patients / service users, their
relatives or other members of the

public?

In the last 12 months how many times
have you personally experienced
harassment, bullying or abuse at work

from managers?

In the last 12 months how many times
have you personally experienced
harassment, bullying or abuse at work

from other colleagues?

Improvement

Improvement

Improvement

Deterioration

Deterioration

0.4%

1.6%

27.9%

9.8%

18.3%

0.2%

0.8%

25.6%

12.5%

18.8%

0.4%

1.1%

25.9%

11.8%

18%

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 162

PAGE 128



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Quality of Appraisals

It helped me to improve how | do my Improvement
job
It helped me agree clear objectives for Improvement

my work

It left me feeling that my work is valued Improvement

by my organisation

The values of my organisation were The same
discussed as part of the appraisal

process

Health & Wellbeing

15.7%

27.7%

25.5%

19.2%

21.7%

34.8%

32.5%

38.7%

The opportunities for flexible working Deterioration 42% 53.8%
patterns
Does your organisation take positive Deterioration 14.8% 27.8%
action on health and well-being?
In the last 12 months have you Deterioration 34.3% 27.5%
experienced musculoskeletal

PAGE 129

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 163



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

problems (MSK) as a result of work

activities?

During the last 12 months have you felt Deterioration  40.1%  45.4% 40%
unwell as a result of work related

stress?

In the last three months have you ever Deterioration 53.6%  61% 56.9%

come to work despite not feeling well

enough to perform your duties?

Staff Engagement

Motivation
I look forward to going to work Deterioration 50.8% 48.9% 58.6%
| am enthusiastic about my job Deterioration 67.8% 67.4% 74.8%

Time passes quickly when | am Deterioration 75.6% 74.2% 78.1%

working

Improvements/ suggestions

There are frequent opportunities for Improvement 68.5% 69.8% 73.5%

me to show initiative in my role

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 164 PAGE 130



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

| am able to make suggestions to Deterioration 73.8% 71.1% 75.1%
improve the work of my team /
department

| am able to make improvements Deterioration 50.2% 49.1% 56.5%

happen in my area of work

Recommendation of the organisation as a place to work/ receive treatment

Care of patients / service users is my Deterioration 59.9% 58.8% 78%

organisation's top priority

I would recommend my organisation Deterioration 47.2% 44.2% 60%

as a place to work

If a friend or relative needed treatment Deterioration 70.2% 64.2% 71%
| would be happy with the standard of

care provided by this organisation

Immediate Managers

The support | get from my immediate Improvement 63.3%  65% 70.6%

manager

My immediate manager gives me clear Improvement 55.4% 56.7% 62.4%

feedback on my work

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 165 PAGE 131



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

My immediate manager asks for my Deterioration
opinion before making decisions that

affect my work

My immediate manager takes a Improvement
positive interest in my health and well-

being

My immediate manager values my Improvement

work

My manager supported me to receive Deterioration

this training, learning or development

Quality of care

50.8%

62.1%

67.7%

51.6%

49.6%

63.2%

68.2%

45.7%

56.3%

69.2%

73.2%

55.8%

| am satisfied with the quality of care | Deterioration 79.0%  74.7% 81.6%
give to patients / service users
| feel that my role makes a difference Deterioration 89.8%  87.2% 90.3%
to patients / service users
| am able to deliver the care | aspire to Deterioration 64.7%  60% 69%
PAGE 132

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 166



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Safety Culture

My organisation treats staff who are Deterioration 50.0% 46.9% 60.5%
involved in an error, near miss or

incident fairly

When errors, near misses or incidents Deterioration 62.9% 62.3% 71.3%
are reported, my organisation takes
action to ensure that they do not

happen again

We are given feedback about changes Deterioration 51.7% 50.4% 62%
made in response to reported errors,

near misses and incidents

I would feel secure raising concerns Improvement 65.8% 67.5% 71.7%

about unsafe clinical practice

| am confident that my organisation Improvement 49.9% 50.4% 60.4%

would address my concern

My organisation acts on concerns Deterioration 59.6% 58.9% 73.9%

raised by patients / service users

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 167 PAGE 133



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Morale

| am involved in deciding on changes Improvement 44.3% 47% 52.8%
introduced that affect my work area /
team / department
| receive the respect | deserve frommy Deterioration 74.1%  65.8% 72.4%
colleagues at work
| have unrealistic time pressures Deterioration 21.6%  19.5% 22.6%
| have a choice in deciding how to do Improvement 49.6%  52% 56.3%
my work
Relationships at work are strained Improvement 41.5%  38.7% 46.8%
My immediate manager encourages Improvement 61.4% 64.4% 70.6%
me at work
| often think about leaving this Deterioration 37.3% 38.4% 27.7%
organisation
| will probably look for a job at a new Deterioration 21.3%  23.5% 19.7%
organisation in the next 12 months
As soon as | can find another job, | will Deterioration 18.5%  18% 14%
leave this organisation

PAGE 134

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 168



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Health and Wellbeing

We have taken an integrated approach to promote health and wellbeing, working with a range of
partners to assist staff make healthier choices and to address the bio psychosocial factors that affect
health.

There are a number of factors that affect staff wellbeing and this can be partly attributed to the fact
that work can often be physically, emotionally and psychologically demanding. In addition, for many
of our staff, our services operate for 24 hours a day, 365 days of the year. Financial wellbeing also

plays a key part in maintaining good mental health.

Taking into account all of the above factors, we have developed a Health and Wellbeing Strategy

which is underpinned by 5 themes, these include:

e Developing positive environments

e Ensuring our policies and practices support health and wellbeing

e Supporting a healthy body for all

¢ Encouraging a healthy mind and reducing stigma associated with mental health

¢ Promoting and supporting financial wellbeing

Poor mental health accounts for 23% of all ill health in England and affects more than 1 in 4 of the
population at any one time. As a Trust we recognise that good mental health is linked to good

physical health and education and this has been a key focus during the reporting year.

As part of our Health and Wellbeing Strategy, staff continue to have access to excellent Occupational

Health and Wellbeing services, with specific focus on physical and mental health.
As a Trust our aims for 2020/2021 include:

e To achieve a 100% flu vaccination rate for our staff

o To officially launch the new Health and Wellbeing Strategy that links with our sickness
absence policy and provides tangible supportive outcomes

o To support out staff and to ensure all staff challenge negative attitudes that impact the lives
of those experiencing mental health challenges

e To provide bespoke mental wellbeing sessions, including individual group work

e To promote and provide EMDR therapy for those staff who have experienced trauma

e To provide access to services to improve the musculoskeletal wellbeing of our staff

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 169 PAGE 135



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Some of the key outcomes and improvements made during 2019/2020 are detailed below:

¢ Increase in availability of Functional Rehabilitation Sessions to enable staff to perform the
manual handling tasks required by their role under the supervision and guidance of a manual
handling advisor

o Increase in Postural Fitness Classes to support staff who are suffering with musculoskeletal
symptoms predominately to their neck and/or shoulder(s) that are affecting or affected by
their habitual postures at work

e Spinal Rehabilitation Programme for staff with acute or chronic low back pain

e Provision of monthly campaigns to promote physical and mental wellbeing. Some examples
include Dry January, Cycle to Work Day, Sun Awareness, Stress Awareness, Time to
Change and Change for Life

¢ Resilience, stress management and relaxation workshop

e Working in collaboration with partner agencies to provide support to individuals who are
experiencing difficulties at work due to depression, anxiety, stress and/or other mental health
conditions.

¢ Provision of menopause education sessions

e Our Flu Campaign has been the most successful on record and 82.5% of all staff were

vaccinated.

Equality, Diversity and Inclusion

The Trust’s strategic organisational goals are supported by the Equality Diversity and Inclusion (EDI)
Steering Group, chaired by the Director of Human Resources and reporting to the Workforce
Strategy Group and the Trust Board. The Trust continues to follow to the duties of the Equality Act
2010, which legally protects people from discrimination in the workplace and in wider society, and

the Public Sector Equality Duty which supports the following:

o Better health outcomes

o Improved patient access and experience

o A represented and supported workforce
o Inclusive leadership

The Trust Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Group continues with membership representatives from
across departments, staff side and members of advocacy, to ensure equality, diversity and inclusion

is embedded into the organisation’s strategic objectives. The Trust EDI objectives are:

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 170 PAGE 136



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

e Becoming a leading organisation for promotion of opportunity and diversity, for challenging
discrimination, and for promoting equalities of opportunities in employment and the services
we provide.

e Creating an organisation which recognises the contribution of all staff, and which is
supportive, fair and free from discrimination.

e Ensuring our staff have a positive experience at work, are offered opportunities to meet their
full potential, and demonstrate the Trust’s values

e Ensuring that our Trust is regarded as a model employer.

Table 18: Staff Equality and Diversity Information

Headcount - Gender 2019/20 2018/19 FTE - Gender 2019/20 2018/19

Female 7295 7052 Female 6194.55 5962.41

Male 1608 1603 Male 1478.47 1440.78

Grand Total ‘ 8655 Grand Total 7673.02 7403.19

Headcount - Religious Belief 2019/20 2018/19 FTE - Religious Belief 2019/20 2018/19
Atheism 979 811 Atheism 883.10 732.5753
Buddhism 23 21 Buddhism 20.54 18.74
Christianity 3848 3702 Christianity 3335.88 3207.48
Do not wish to disclose 3084 3260 Do not wish to Disclose 2572.00 2688.05
Hinduism 85 74 Hinduism 78.24 64.37
Islam 198 167 Islam 182.93 148.41
Judaism 3 2 Judaism 2.96 2

Other 633 583 Other 559.32 514.85
Sikhism 11 11 Sikhism 10.00 10.36
Undefined 39 24 Undefined 28.07 16.33
Grand Total 8903 ‘ 8655 ‘ Grand Total 7673.02 7403.19
Headcount - Sexual Orientation 2019/20 ‘ 2018/19 ‘ FTE - Sexual Orientation 2019/20 2018/19
Bisexual 19 23 Bisexual 17.92 19.97
Do not wish to disclose 2879 3099 Do not wish to disclose 2383.18 2549
Gay or Lesbian 86 69 Gay or Lesbian 82.84 66.01
Heterosexual 5875 5437 Heterosexual 5158.18 4750.13
Other sexual orientation 6 4 Other sexual orientation 4.60 3.6
Undefined 38 23 Undefined 26.30 14.53
Grand Total 8903 ‘ 8655 ‘ Grand Total 7673.02 7403.19
Headcount - Disabled 2019/20 ‘ 2018/19 ‘ FTE - Disabled 2019/20 2018/19
No 5534 5086 No 4818.73 4395.26
Not Declared 3084 3327 Not Declared 2603.17 2793
Undefined 54 16 Undefined 43.77 10.9

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 171 PAGE 137



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

| Yes | 226 | 220 | Yes 202.35 198.03

Prefer Not to Answer 5 6 Prefer Not to Answer 5 6

Grand Total 8903 8655 Grand Total 7673.02 7403.19

The Trust EDI Steering Group meets also includes the Patient Experience Lead and integrates work
from other local strategies (i.e. health and wellbeing, education, learning and development) to ensure
our patients and carers have a positive experience . The work of the group has included the
development of EDI network groups, providing a forum for individuals to come together, to share
ideas, raise awareness of challenges and provide support to each other. The network groups

identified so far are:

e Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender Networks (LGBT+)

e Black Asian Minority Ethnic Network (BAME)

¢ Disability and Long Term Health Network (including Mental Health Network)
e Faith Network

The ‘Rainbow Badge Initiative’ was launched in the Trust in Autumn 2019 and gives healthcare staff
a way to show that their place of work offers open, non-judgemental and inclusive care for all who
identify as (lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender+, (LGBT+). The + simply means inclusive of all

identities, regardless of how people define themselves.

The Trust held Rainbow Badge events at James Cook University Hospital and Friarage Hospital,
Northallerton in Autumn 2019, which were attended by over 600 staff who signed pledges in support

of the initiative.

The Trust's commitment to EDI and EDI related training has continued, as an important opportunity
to develop learning and continue the Trust's commitment to ensure all staff are free from
discrimination, feel equally supported in career progression and opportunities and report the same
levels of satisfaction with their role at the Trust. There is a focus on dignity at work training, as a
mandatory requirement for all staff, which can be completed online. There is also opportunity for
staff to attend other training such as unconscious bias training. The Trust continues to invest in
leadership and staff development which advances equality, diversity and inclusion via our leadership
development programmes and workforce development solutions, with regular updates provides to

the Workforce Committee.

All Trust HR Policies are developed in partnership with trade union colleagues and brought to Joint

Partnership Committee for signing by Director of HR or deputy and Staff Side Chair. Each Policy is

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 172 PAGE 138



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

supported by an Equality Impact Assessment. Policies are applied consistently to ensure fair and
open recruitment of people with protected characterises, as well as ensuring that staff with disabilities
can access appropriate training and development, promotional opportunities, and flexible working

arrangements.

The Trust Continues to work in partnership with regional colleagues, regarding the regional Great
Place to Work strategic project and work with public sector and educational colleagues.

The trust has produced an annual equality, diversity and inclusion report which is available in addition

to this quality account.
Sickness Absence

The Trust is committed to promoting and maintaining the health, safety and welfare of all staff and
believe in encouraging its workforce to have good wellbeing, to live healthily and to achieve a good
work life balance. Our Absence Management Policy and processes are designed to provide a
framework to assist in the health and wellbeing of our employees and to promote a healthy workforce

and provide efficient patient, safe and effective patient care.

We continue to focus on sickness absence and have made significant improvement to improve the
support we provide to managers, ensuring that ensuring that both long and short term sickness is

managed in accordance with the sickness absence policy.

We continue to work in close partnership with the Occupational Health Department and have
developed case management forums to ensure that both staff and management are supported
throughout the absence period, with a view to retaining, returning and rehabilitating staff into the

workplace.

In additional to general occupational health advice and provision, we are working in partnership with
a number of professional bodies offering support and counselling services and actively encourage

staff to seek the help and support they need to aid their recovery.

In 2019/20 the average sickness absence rate for STHFT was 4.58% which is a slight decrease of
0.11% on the previous year. We have had a particularly challenging winter period which saw

sickness absence rates increase to a high of 5.57 in January 2020.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 173 PAGE 139



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Quality and Equality Impact Assessment

The need for a formal Quality and Equality Impact Assessment (QEIA) process as part of robust
governance arrangements is well recognised. This process has been developed to ensure the trust
has the appropriate steps in place to safeguard quality whilst delivering significant changes to service
delivery and also understand the impact of the change either negatively or positively on any groups
of the community which may be affected. The process is based on the guidance issued by the
National Quality Board and the Equality Act 2010.

The Trust has a Quality and Equality Impact Assessment (QEIA) Policy that advises when changes

to services are being planned, the impact on quality and equality must also be considered.

The QEIA process should be used to assess the impact that any new policy, service change or cost
improvement programme may have on the quality of care provided to patients at South Tees
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and provides a robust and consistent framework to both inform

decision making and agree assurance metrics.

The impact on equality and diversity also needs to be assessed - whether people could be treated
differently in terms of race, religion, disability, gender, sexual orientation, pregnancy, gender
reassignment, civil partnerships or age. This supports the Trust in meeting its obligations under the

Equality Act 2010 to undertake equality impact assessments.

QEIA’s are monitored and reviewed on a monthly basis via centres, as part of reviewing the actual
impact throughout the implementation stage and during the final review after the business plan has

been implemented. Thereafter, review will be business as usual or at any change of circumstance

The Trust uses a standard Quality & Equality Impact Assessment tool and risks are assessed using

a standard risk assessment matrix.

All QEIA’s are presented at centre Governance Boards, prior to them being submitted and presented

to the QEIA panel by the lead manager and/or clinician.

The completed QEIA is then presented by the service lead to the Trust QEIA Panel - Director of
Nursing & Quality, Medical Director and Head of Patient Safety & Quality for final approval to

progress. No change should be commenced without approval of the panel.

Regular reports are presented to the Quality Assurance Committee outlining QEIA’s that have been

discussed and approved.

During Covid-19 panels were held twice weekly to review service changes and then latterly services

restarting, however these will be reported in more detail in next year’s Quality Accounts.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 174 PAGE 140



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Junior Doctors

STFT has a total of 514 doctors in training. Implementation of the 2016 Doctors in Training Contract
has continued throughout 2019/20, with the majority of doctors in training transitioning onto the new
contract by the end of the reporting year. It is expected that all doctors in training will be on the 2016

Doctors in Training Contract by early 2020.

The Junior Doctor Forum has continued to meet quarterly. Attendance has increased considerably
following the August 2019 intake of junior doctors, with a number of members becoming accredited

BMA representatives, taking up vacant seats on the Joint Local Negotiating Committee (JLNC).

As part of the new contract, doctors in training are able to submit exception reports in real time where
they have worked additional hours to their rota or missed educational sessions due to staffing levels.
Exception reporting continues to be at a low level in comparison with other Trusts. There have been
90 exception reports raised and the Guardian of Safeworking and Director of Medical Education

continue to encourage junior doctors to exception report and to brief consultants.

The vacancy rate for junior doctors is 5.4%, 3% lower than 2018/19 financial year. Vacancies have
been actively recruited to throughout the year but are also filled using alternative resourcing methods
including internal locum, use of the master vendor agency HCL or by redesign of rotas where
possible. Some specialities have appointed advanced nurse practitioners to work on rotas alongside

doctors in training.

STHFT is part of the regional junior doctor bank run by Liaison on behalf of the Lead Employer Trust.
We continue to have a high success rate in covering short term absences of 95%, plus out of hour’s
shifts for longer term vacancies utilising our own internal bank. The regional has provided STFT
with access to an additional pool of LET employed doctors who work in other Trusts and GP

surgeries.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 175 PAGE 141



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Developing a Sustainable Workforce

e Workforce Planning
Improving our approach to workforce planning with a focus on developing succession plans
for the medical and nursing workforce to provide a better understanding of the skill gap in the
current workforce and how to bridge that gap;

e Improving our approach to risk and governance by establishment a Senior Workforce
Committee to focus on nursing workforce and related staffing, skill and capacity issues;

Tackling Bullying
As a Trust our aims for 2019/2020 have been continued into 2020/2021 and include:

° Working with NHS Improvement as pilot organisation for tackling bullying

° Review the Trust Values and involving everyone in translating our values into the tangible
behaviours we want to see from each other, and to inspire us to keep improving our
patient and staff experience.
o Values and Behaviours workshop February 2020
o Cultural engagement — what makes a good workplace culture May 2020
o Dedicated focus group newly formed to address Trust wide issues

o Develop a South Tees values and behaviours competency framework and re-design our
performance management framework to include behaviours as an integral part of
performance appraisal — not just the ‘What’ but also the ‘How’

. Ensure behaviours are demonstrated from a Board level and staff are supported to hold
people to account who do not exhibit appropriate actions.

. A Trust review of the structure, training and use of workplace investigators.

. We will roll out a programme of workshops aimed at preventing harassment and bullying

within departments across the Trust.

. Increase in the number of bullying and harassment cases raised by staff

o Robust induction packages for all (including values and behaviours training)

o Data monitoring and analysis to be highlighted to the Workforce Committee with an action
plan in place.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 176 PAGE 142



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Employee Engagement

o Development of a Staff Engagement Strategy that encourages a strong sense of ownership,

belonging and pride across the staff within the organisation. Initiatives include:

O

O

Development of a Trust identity

Review of our values, defining the supporting behaviours required to deliver our vision
whilst holding each other to account

Development of our employee experience to enable us to recruit and retain the best
Develop and embed a culture of engaging leadership, strong management and effective
communication

Recognising the need to formally acknowledge colleagues for the teamwork they provide,
we introduced a Star Award which is designed to reinforce positive behaviour and
develop positive culture changes across the organisation. During 2019/2020 we received
346 STARS

reports under the themes of Teamwork, Going the Extra Mile, Attention to Detail,
Communication and Dealing with Difficult Situations. We have received positive feedback
from staff who have received the reports who feel genuinely honoured by their colleagues
taking time to acknowledge them and the positive contribution they make to the patient
experience.

In additional to the annual staff survey which was launched in October 2019, a Summer
Staff Survey was implemented to provide staff with an opportunity to feedback on their
experiences and to enable the Trust to check progress against key areas identified in
previous surveys. The findings of both surveys were used to support the launch of the
Staff Engagement initiative across the Trust. A total of 2,666 questionnaires were
completed with a final completion rate of 32%. The findings from the Staff Survey were
used to develop an action plan, in partnership with Trade Union colleagues, which was
presented at Trust Board in early 2020. In addition, medical and dental staff survey
results were disaggregated and used to develop specific focus on improving engagement
with this cohort of staff. The results were shared with all Trust consultants and have been
used to help inform the creation of the Clinical Policy Group, to improve clinical
engagement, leadership and decision making, and the Trust Improvement Plan. As a
result, Medical and Clinical Directors will be accountable for agreeing how the actions will

be developed, implemented and measured.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 177 PAGE 143



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Social Economic Responsibility

We continue to support the local community and widen the accessibility of learning and
development through the apprenticeship levy offering new starters and staff a vocational
route to enter and progress within the organisation.

We are actively recruiting to apprenticeship roles. Included are the Advanced Clinical
Practitioners, Nursing Associates as well as Health Care Support and Business
Administration.

We offer graduates, through the Graduate Management Scheme, the opportunities to

develop knowledge and skills operationally and strategically within their chosen field.

Recruitment

Recruitment and retention of talented staff remains a challenge in key areas such as
Anaesthetists, Critical Care Consultants, Acute Medical Physicians, Radiologists,
Neuroradiology Interventionists and Nursing. We continue to hold nurse recruitment days
and these have been successful with 380 new nurse appointments during 2019/20.
In an attempt to maximise our employee offer, we have reviewed and developed our staff
exit date, developed our on-boarding procedures and ensured flexible working policies are
implemented consistently and fairly across all professions.
During the reporting year we have held a number of targeted recruitment campaigns which
included:

o Headhunting approach

o Developed our relationship with key master vendor clients

o Continued our international recruitment campaign for nurses and we have welcomed

20 nurses from overseas
o Targeted registered student nurses and return to practice nurses via specific open

days and strong relations with local universities.

Day Nursery

Playdays Nursery is an excellent onsite facility, offering quality and flexible childcare for our staff’'s

children whilst they are at work. It was awarded a ‘good’ rating following our recent Ofsted

inspection. Nursery fees are competitive in comparison to other local nurseries, offering the staff

assurance that their children are being cared for to a high standard.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 178 PAGE 144



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Relationships with Trade Unions

We continue to develop our partnership with Trades Unions colleagues, with a Partnership

Agreement which supports the following aims:

1. Promotes close co-operation between staff and managers within the Trust by providing a
forum in which all matters affecting staff can be discussed and relevant information passed
on. This includes NHS policies and strategies, Trust operational and financial performance,
key Trust service strategies, objectives and projects e.g. corporate level/ large scale change

management projects.

2. Provides opportunities for joint problem-solving in relation to issues affecting the well-being
of employees and the efficient operation of the organisation. It is recognised good practice
that management and staff side will consult on any significant decision that is likely to affect

staff members.

3. Supports consultation in relation to key changes in our HR policies.

The Joint Partnership Committee (JPC) attended by both management and Staff Side colleagues
meets on a monthly basis; agenda items including the areas summarised above. The NHS and
Trust continues to be a changing and challenging environment with both management and Staff Side
recognising that their interest are mutually compatible with the aim of preserve jobs and the quality

of services.
Employment Policies

The Joint Partnership Committee ensures that HR policies and procedures are fit for purpose,
reflective of any changes to employment law and support equality and diversity within the workplace.
The JPC also provides Staff Side with an opportunity to be updated regarding other policies that are
led by other corporate areas e.g. Freedom to Speak Up; Raising Concerns at Work policy. In
2019/2020, the Joint Partnership Committee (JPC) approved 11 policies which were then ratified by

Operational Management Board (OMB) or more recently Clinical Policy Group (CPG). These policies

included:
. Annual Leave and Bank Holiday Policy
. Education and Learning Policy
° Relocation Policy
° Nursing and Midwifery Revalidation Policy

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 179 PAGE 145



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

. Facilities Agreement For Accredited Representatives Of All Recognised Trade

Unions And Professional Organisations

. Notice Period Policy for Staff Employed under Agenda for Change Conditions of
Service

° Probationary Periods Policy

° Volunteering and Work Experience Policy

o Trust Code of Conduct

. Honorary contract

. Reservist Policy

Performance against key national priorities

19/20

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20
Target

Safety

Clostridium (c.) difficile — meeting
the C.difficile objective

All cancers: 62 day wait for first treatment from :
Urgent GP referral for suspected
cancer

NHS Cancer Screening Service
Referral

18 weeks referral to treatment time (RTT)
Incomplete pathways

Accident & Emergency

4 hour maximum wait in A&E from
arrival to admission, transfer or
discharge

Diagnostic Waits

Pat_lents W_altlng 6 weeks or less for 99%
a diagnostic test

85%

90%

95%

Table 19: Performance against National Priorities

Table 19 shows the Trusts performance against key national priorities.

o C difficile — the Trust recorded 89 cases of C difficile during 2019/20 which was slightly over the
target of 81 and this remains a focus for 2020/21...

o Urgent GP Referral for Suspected Cancer (62 day cancer wait target for first definitive
treatment) — our year end performance was 77.23% against a target of 85%. Recovery plans
are in place to support improvement in the patient pathway and performance.

¢ 4 hour Accident and Emergency waiting time target - our year-end performance was 88.35%

against a target of 95%. Factors affecting the performance include an increase in acuity of

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 180 PAGE 146



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

patients and very high intensity users attending A&E. Capacity within the hospital during the
winter period has affected patient flow. Recovery plans are in place to address such issues.

o Referral to Treatment (RTT) 18-week target — our year-end performance was 83.44% which is
below the national target of 92%. Recovery plans and trajectories are in place to address

areas of concern.

e Diagnostic Waits — (waiting 6 weeks or less) — our year-end performance was 94.04% with a

target of 99%. Recovery plans and trajectories are in place to address areas of concern.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 181 PAGE 147



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Annex 1. Statements from Clinical Commissioning
Groups and Healthwatch and Scrutiny of Health
Committee

To be added as received

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 182 PAGE 148



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

HealthWatch North Yorkshire

Response received 08/09/2020.

Hello Linda

I'm responding in respect to the email that you sent to my Chairman - Chris Brackley last
month. | joined Healthwatch North Yorkshire last week as their new CEO so this has been
passed over to me. As I'm only on day six into the role, I'm afraid I'm not really in a position
to give you any helpful comments or feedback unfortunately, and neither does Chris feel
he's in a position to. Sorry.

It might, however, be useful for you and | to speak/meet at some point, and include
anyone else you feel should join the conversation.

Thank you and | look forward to hearing from you.
Ashley Green

Chief Executive Officer
Healthwatch North Yorkshire

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 183 PAGE 149



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Annex 2: Statement of directors’ responsibilities in
respect of the quality report

Annex 2: Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the quality
report

The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service (Quality
Accounts) Regulations to prepare Quality Accounts for each financial year.

NHS Improvement has issued guidance to NHS foundation Trust boards on the form and content of
annual quality reports (which incorporate the above legal requirements) and on the arrangements
that NHS foundation trust boards should put in place to support the data quality for the preparation
of the quality report.

In preparing the Quality Report, directors are required to take steps to satisfy themselves that:

The content of the Quality Report meets the requirements set out in the NHS Foundation
Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2017/18 and supporting guidance;

The content of the Quality Report is not inconsistent with internal and external sources of
information including:

Board minutes and papers for the period April 2019 to May 2020

Papers relating to Quality reported to the Board over the period April 2019 to May 2020.
Feedback from NHS Tees Valley CCG requested 26/08/2020

Feedback from North Yorkshire CCG requested 26/08/2020

Feedback from Healthwatch South Tees requested 26/08/2020

Feedback from Healthwatch North Yorkshire requested 26/08/2020

Feedback from the Health Scrutiny Panel, Middlesbrough Council requested 26/08/2020.
Feedback from North Yorkshire Scrutiny Health Committee requested 26/08/2020
Feedback from Redcar and Cleveland Council requested 26/08/2020.

Feedback from the Governors dated 02/09/2020

The Trust's complaints report published under regulation 18 of the Local Authority Social
Services and NHS Complaints Regulations 2009, dated, 28/07/2020

The 2019 national staff survey 18/02/2020

The 2019 national inpatient survey dated 01/07/2020

The Head of Internal Audit’s annual opinion over the Trust’'s control environment — not
required for 2019/20.

CQC inspection report dated July 2019

the Quality Report presents a balanced picture of the NHS foundation Trust’s performance
over the period covered;

the performance information reported in the Quality Report is reliable and accurate;

there are proper internal controls over the collection and reporting of the measures of
performance included in the Quality Report, and these controls are subject to review to
confirm that they are working effectively in practice;

the data underpinning the measures of performance reported in the Quality Report is robust
and reliable, conforms to specified data quality standards and prescribed definitions, is
subject to appropriate scrutiny and review; and

the Quality Report has been prepared in accordance with NHS Improvement’s annual
reporting manual (which incorporates the Quality Accounts regulations) (published at

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 184 PAGE 150



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

www.monitor-hsft.gov.uk/annualreportingmanual) as well as the standards to support data
guality for the preparation of the Quality Report.

The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied with the
above requirements in preparing the Quality Report.

By order of the board

.............................. Date.....ooeeeeeeeeeeee i anenee.Chairman

......................................................... Chief Executive

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 185 PAGE 151



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Annex 3: How to provide feedback on the accounts

We welcome feedback on this report and suggestions for the content of future reports.

If you wish to comment please go to the Quality Accounts page on the Trust website

(www.southtees.nhs.uk).

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 186 PAGE 152


http://www.southtees.nhs.uk/

SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Annex 4: Glossary of terms

18 Week RTT (Referral to Treatment)

This refers to the right to start your consultant-led treatment within a maximum of 18 weeks from
referral, unless you choose to wait longer, or it is clinically appropriate that you wait longer. The
Trust monitors this monthly.

A&E
Accident and emergency (usually refers to a hospital casualty department).where patients attend for

assessment

Acute

A condition of short duration that starts quickly and has severe symptoms.

Allied Health Professional (AHP)
Professionals (other than nurses) who work in health care teams to make the health care system
function by providing a range of diagnostic, technical, therapeutic and direct patient care and support

services that are critical to the other health professionals they work with and the patients they serve.

Aseptic Non Touch Technique (ANTT)

The Aseptic Non Touch Technique (ANTT®) is the standard intravenous technique used for the
accessing of all venous access devices regardless of whether they are peripherally or centrally

inserted.

Assurance
Confidence, based on sufficient evidence that internal controls are in place, operating effectively and

objectives are being achieved.

Better Care Fund (BCF)
The national fund was set up to support moving resources into social care and community services

and to support the avoidance of admissions to hospital.

Board of Directors (of Trust)
The role of the Trust’s board is to take corporate responsibility for the organisation’s strategies and

actions. The chair and non-executive directors are lay people drawn from the local community and

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 187 PAGE 153



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

accountable to the Council of Governors. The chief executive is responsible for ensuring that the
board is empowered to govern the organisation and to deliver its objectives.

Care Quality Commission

The Care Quality Commission (CQC) replaced the Healthcare Commission, Mental Health Act
Commission and the Commission for Social Care Inspection in April 2009. The CQC is the
independent regulator of health and social care in England. It regulates health and adult social care
services, whether provided by the NHS, local authorities, private companies or voluntary

organisations. Visit: www.cqc.org.uk

Clinical audit
Clinical audit measures the quality of care and services against agreed standards and suggests or

makes improvements where necessary.

Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)

These are NHS organisations set up by the Health and Social Care Act 2012 to organise the delivery
of NHS services in England. They are clinically led groups that include all of the Practitioner groups
in their geographical area with the aim of giving GPs and other clinicians the power to influence
commissioning decisions for their patients. These organisations are overseen by NHS England and

manage primary care commissioning, including holding the NHS Contracts for GP practices.

CUR (Clinical Utilisation Review)
The CUR is a clinical decision support tool that enables clinicians to make impartial and objective,
evidence-based assessments of whether patients are receiving the right care, at the right place, at

the right time and for the right duration. It improves patient flow across the health economy

Clinician

Professionally qualified staff providing clinical care to patients.

Commissioners

Commissioners are responsible for ensuring adequate services are available for their local
population by assessing needs and purchasing services. Clinical Commissioning Groups are the key
organisations responsible for commissioning healthcare services for their area. They commission
services (including acute care, primary care and mental healthcare) for the whole of their population,

with a view to improving their population’s health.

Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN)

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 188 PAGE 154


http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Health_and_Social_Care_Act_2012
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/National_Health_Service_(England)
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/NHS_England

SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

‘High Quality Care for Al document included a commitment to make a proportion of providers’
income conditional on quality and innovation, through the Commissioning for Quality and Innovation

(CQUIN) payment framework.

Consultant

Senior physician or surgeon advising on the treatment of a patient.

Council of Governors

The Governors help to ensure that the trust delivers services which meet the needs of patients,

carers, staff and local stakeholders.
Criteria Led Discharge (CLD)

The lead clinician for a patient’s care identifies the clinical criteria for their discharge. These criteria
are discussed with the patient and the multi-disciplinary team and are recorded. A competent
member of the multi-disciplinary team then discharges the patient when the clinical criteria for

discharge have been met.
Datix
IT system that records healthcare risk management, incidents and complaints.

Daycase
Patient who is admitted to hospital for an elective procedure and is discharged without an overnight
stay.

Department of Health
The Department of Health is a department of the UK government but with responsibility for

government policy for England alone on health, social care and the NHS.

Duty of Candour

The duty of candour is a statutory (legal) duty to be open and honest with patients (or ‘service users’),
or their families, when something goes wrong that appears to have caused or could lead to significant
harm in the future. It applies to all health and social

care organisations registered with the regulator, the Care Quality Commission (CQC) in England.

Echocardiogram (ECG)

An echocardiogram is a test that uses ultrasound to evaluate your heart muscle and heart valves.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 189 PAGE 155



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Elective

A planned episode of care, usually involving a day case or in patient procedure.

Electronic Patient Record
Digital based notes record system which replaces a paper based recording system. This allows
easier storage, retrieval and modifications to patient records.

Electronic Prescribing System
Allows prescriptions to be transmitted and populated electronically, replacing paper and faxed

prescriptions.

Emergency

An urgent unplanned episode of care.

Escherichia coli (E. Coli)
E. Coli is a Gram-negative, facultative anaerobe, rod-shaped, coliform bacterium of the genus

Escherichia that is commonly found in the lower intestine of warm-blooded organisms.

Falls:
A fall is defined as an unintentional/unexpected loss of balance resulting in coming to rest on the

floor, the ground, or an object below knee level.

Finished Consultant Episode

An NHS term for a consultant episode which has ended due to discharge, transfer or death. A
consultant episode is the time a patient spends in the continuous care of one consultant using
hospital site or care home bed(s) of one health care provider or, in the case of shared care, in the

care of two or more consultants.

Foundation Trust

A type of NHS Trust in England that has been created to devolve decision-making from central
government control to local organisations and communities so they are more responsive to the needs
and wishes of their local people. NHS foundation Trust’s provide and develop healthcare according
to core NHS principles — free care, based on need and not on ability to pay. NHS Foundation Trusts
have members drawn from patients, the public and staff, and are governed by a Board of Governors

comprising people elected from and by the membership base.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 190 PAGE 156


https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Gram-negative_bacteria
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Facultative_anaerobic_organism
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Bacillus_(shape)
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Coliform_bacteria
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Genus
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Escherichia
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Intestine
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Warm-blooded

SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Gastroenterology

The branch of medicine that deals with disorders of the stomach and intestines.

Governance

A mechanism to provide accountability for the ways an organisation manages itself.

GNBSI (Gram negative blood stream Infections)

A group of blood stream infections that include Escherichia coli (E.Coli), Klebsiella spp. and

Pseudomonas aeruginosa.

HCAI
Health care associated infections. These are infections that are acquired as a result of healthcare
interventions. There are a number of factors that can increase the risk of acquiring an infection, but

high standards of infection control practice minimise the risk of occurrence.

Healthcare Quality Improvement Partnership

The Healthcare Quality Improvement Partnership was established in April 2008 to promote quality
in healthcare, and in particular to increase the impact that clinical audit has on healthcare quality in
England and Wales. It is led by a consortium of the Academy of Medical Royal Colleges, the Royal

College of Nursing and national voices.

Healthwatch
Healthwatch are the national consumer champion in health and care. They have been given
significant statutory powers to ensure the voice of the consumer is strengthened and heard by those

who commission, deliver and regulate health and care services.

Hospital Episode Statistics (HES)
Hospital Episode Statistics is the national statistical data warehouse for England of the care provided

by NHS hospitals and for NHS hospital patients treated elsewhere.
Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio (HSMR) - this is a standardised tool for measuring mortality
and is calculated using the ratio of observed (O) to expected (E) deaths. The observed number of

deaths for a hospital is the sum of the actual number of deaths in that hospital.

HSMR (Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio)

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 191 PAGE 157



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

This is a scoring system that works by taking a hospital’s crude mortality rate and adjusting it for a
variety of factors — population size, age profile, level of poverty, range of treatments and operations
provided, etc. It is possible to calculate two scores — the mortality rate that would be expected for
any given hospital and its actual observed rate.

IAPT (Improving Access to Psychological Therapies)
Services that provide evidence based treatments for people with mental health issues, for example

anxiety and depression.

Inpatient

Patient requiring an overnight stay in hospital.

Interventional Endoscopy
Is a minimally invasive procedure that involves the use of a thin, flexible tube (or scope) that is

equipped with a camera and light at its tip

Interventional Radiology (IR)

Interventional Radiology” (IR) refers to a range of techniques which rely on the use radiological
image guidance (X-ray fluoroscopy, ultrasound, computed tomography [CT] or magnetic resonance
imaging [MRI]) to precisely target therapy. Most IR treatments are minimally invasive alternatives to
open and laparoscopic (keyhole) surgery. As many IR procedures start with passing a needle
through the skin to the target it is sometimes called pinhole surgery.

LocSSIP (Local Safety Standards for Invasive Procedures)
These are local processes/procedures in place to reduce the number of patient safety incidents

related to invasive procedures, in which surgical ‘Never Events’ can occur.

Malnutrition Universal Screening Tool (MUST)

‘MUST is a five-step screening tool to identify adults who are malnourished, at risk of malnutrition
(under nutrition), or obese. It also includes management guidelines which can be used to develop a
care plan. It is used in hospitals, community and other care settings and can be used by all care

workers.

MAR (Medicine Administration Record)
A report that serves as a legal record of the medicines administered to a patient by a health care

professional.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 192 PAGE 158



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Medical Examiners

Review the death at time of death certification or referral to Coroners. Their work includes contact
with the team that cared for the patient at time of death, review of case records and contact with the
family to see if they have any questions or concerns.

Meridian

IT programme that facilitates data collection surveys and audits.

Multidisciplinary Team (MDT)

A multidisciplinary team is a group of health care workers who are members of different disciplines
(professions e.g. doctors, nurses, physiotherapists etc.), each providing specific services to the
patient.

National Institute for Health Research (NIHR)

The NIHR (National Institute for Health Research) funds health and care research and translate
discoveries into practical products, treatments, devices and procedures, involving patients and the
public in all our work. NIHR ensure the NHS is able to support the research of other funders to
encourage broader investment in, and economic growth from, health research. NIHR work with
charities and the life sciences industry to help patients gain earlier access to breakthrough
treatments, and train and develop researchers to keep the nation at the forefront of international

research.

National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence (NICE)
The National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence is an independent organisation responsible
for providing national guidance on promoting good health and preventing and treating ill health. Visit:

www.nice.org.uk

NCEPOD
National Confidential Enquiry into Patient Outcome and Death. The website for more information is

http:/www.ncepod.org.uk/

National Patient Survey Programme

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 193 PAGE 159



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

The National Patient Survey Programme, coordinated by the Care Quality Commission, gathers
feedback from patients on different aspects of their experience of recently received care, across a
variety of services/settings.

NHS Improvement (NHSI)

NHS Improvement is responsible for overseeing foundation trusts and NHS trusts, as well as
independent providers that provide NHS-funded care. It supports providers to give patients
consistently safe, high quality, compassionate care within local health systems that are financially

sustainable

NEQOS (North East Quality Observatory Service)
Provides quality measurement for NHS organisations in the north east (and beyond), using high

guality expert intelligence in order to secure continually improving outcomes for patients.

NEWS?2
This is the latest version of the National Early Warning Score (NEWS), first produced in
2012 and updated in December 2017, which advocates a system to standardise the

assessment and response to acute illness.

Overview and Scrutiny Committees

Since January 2003, every local authority with responsibilities for social services (150 in all) has had
the power to scrutinise local health services. Overview and scrutiny committees take on the role of
scrutiny of the NHS — not just major changes but the on-going operation and planning of services.
They bring democratic accountability into healthcare decisions and make the NHS more publicly

accountable and responsive to local communities.

PALS (Patient Advice and Liaison Service)
A service that offers confidential advice, support and information on health-related matters. They

provide a point of contact for patients, their families and their carers.

Patient Reported Outcome Measures (PROMS)

PROMSs measure a patient's health status or health-related quality of life at a single point in time,
and are collected through short, self-completed questionnaires. This health status information is
collected from patients through PROMs questionnaires before and after a procedure and provides

an indication of the outcomes or quality of care delivered to NHS patients.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 194 PAGE 160



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Payment by Results
Is a system of paying NHS healthcare providers a standard national price or tariff for each patient
seen or treated.

Plan Do Study Act (PDSA)

This is model for improvement that provides a framework for developing, testing and implementing
changes leading to improvement. It is based in scientific method. The use of PDSA cycles enables
changes to be tested on a small scale, building on the learning from these test cycles in a structured
way before wholesale implementation. This gives stakeholders the opportunity to see if the proposed
change will succeed and is a powerful tool for learning from ideas that do and don’t work. This way,

the process of change is safer and less disruptive for patients and staff.

Pressure Ulcer

A pressure ulcer is localised damage to the skin and/or underlying tissue, usually over a bony
prominence (or related to a medical or other device), resulting from sustained pressure (including
pressure associated with shear). The damage can be present as intact skin or an open ulcer and

may be painful.

Providers
Providers are the organisations that provide relevant health services, for example NHS Trust’'s and

their private or voluntary sector equivalents.

Regulations
Regulations are a type of secondary legislation made by an executive authority under powers given
to them by primary legislation in order to implement and administer the requirements of that primary

legislation.

Research

Clinical research and clinical trials are an everyday part of the NHS. The people who do research
are mostly the same doctors and other health professionals who treat people. A clinical trial is a
particular type of research that tests one treatment against another. It may involve either patients or

people in good health, or both.

Risk

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 195 PAGE 161



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

The possibility of suffering some form of loss or damage or the possibility that objectives will not be
achieved.

Risk Assessment

The identification and analysis of relevant risks to the achievement of objectives.

RCA (Root Cause Analysis)
Is a systematic process for identifying “root causes” of problems or events including serious incidents

to prevent a recurrence.

Secondary Uses Service (SUS)

The Secondary Uses Service is designed to provide anonymous patient-based data for purposes
other than direct clinical care such as healthcare planning, commissioning, public health, clinical
audit and governance, benchmarking, performance improvement, medical research and national

policy development.

Service user
An individual who uses a health care service, including those who are not in need of treatment, such

as blood donors, carers or those using screening services.

Summary Hospital-level Mortality Index (SHMI)
The Summary Hospital-level Indicator (SHMI) reports mortality at Trust level across the NHS in
England using standard and transparent methodology. It looks at deaths following hospital treatment

which take place in or out of hospital for 30 days following discharge and is based on all conditions.

South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
Includes The Friarage Hospital (FHN) and James Cook University Hospital (JCUH) and community

services in Hambleton, Richmondshire, Middlesbrough, Redcar and Cleveland.

Ultrasound
Ultrasound is a type of scan that uses sound waves to produce images of the inside of your body.
It's used to detect changes in the appearance, size or outline of organs, tissues and vessels, or to

detect abnormal masses, such as tumours.

Urinary Catheter

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 196 PAGE 162



SOUTH TEES HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

A urinary catheter is a latex, polyurethane or silicone tube that is inserted in to the patient’s bladder

via the urethra to allow urine to drain freely from the bladder for collection.

Quality Report 2019-20 Page 197 PAGE 163



This page is intentionally left blank



NHS

South Tees Hospitals

NHS Foundation Trust

-
Middlesbrough Health Scrutiny Panel
South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
22 September 2020

0 Excellence in Patient Outcome and Experience www.southtees.nhs.uk
~



April 2019
2018/19 Quality Accounts

July 2019
CQC report

September 2019
Scrutiny Panel

November 2019
Scrutiny Panel

January 2020
Declaration of NHS Level 4 Incident (COVID-19)

n Excellence in Patient Outcome and Experience www.southtees.nhs.uk



Getting Back to Our Best

www.southtees.nhs.uk



Clinical Policy Group

Clinical
Directors

Senior
Medical Staff
Forum Chair

d
remroaentative Resource

allocation
and clinical

Medical
Directors

priorities

Staff Side Nurse and
Chair AHP leaders

0 Excellence in Patient Qutcome and Experience www.southtees.nhs.uk
~




COVID-19 escalation

n Excellence in Patient Qutcome and Experience www.southtees.nhs.uk
o~




Estate

James Cook
University Hospital ¥

Spinal Injuries

- - Centre
Covid-19 Unit :
Outpatients STRIVE
Entrance * g o 2-Wards9to 12 Academic
& 1-Wards5t08 Centre
. Surge phase ey —G-Wards1tod
Endoscopy
Centre = g
Entrance 3 Chapel

. Super-surge phase
(not exhaustive) Ambulatory =

Care Entrance BLUE ROUTE

ASE Entrance W yxid;’

T
jab)

Q
Fﬁ,arage Hospital
C&id-19 Unit ]

Atrium

Theatres

M1

|_| Entrance Entrance

=

- Surge phase

F1 - Clinical Decisions Unit

Hospital high risk ambulance entrance

[l

+
. 18

lift & stairs

F2 - Ainderby Ward
F2 - Mowbray Ward

uTC

(3
high risk  UTC high risk
zone  ambulance entrance

Macmillan
Centre

)

Main
Entrance
Ambulance

Route

nce in Patient OQutcome and Experience www.southtees.nhs.uk




n Excellence in Patient Outcome and Experience www.southtees.nhs.uk
-~




Meeting or exceeding national emergency
guidance requirements

12 March 2020 19 March 2020
30 January 2020 Introduced COVID-19 testing for National COVID-19 guidance

NHS declaration of a Level 4 all admitted patients who met published setting out hospital
National Incident the national case definition (list discharge requirements for
of symptoms) medically fit patients

90¢ ©
<

16 April 2020 21 August 2020

6 April 2020
: : National COVID-19 guidance National guidance published
Iizri(ggt?grig Lepscglr??hteoirlr;?rlij\/da? Zt” published setting out BN setting out the requirements for
hospital (irrespective of the case requirement to test patients Hospital Discharge Service:
definition) being discharged from NHS Policy and Operating Model
: hospitals to a care home

from 1 September 2020

0 Excellence in Patient Outcome and Experience www.southtees.nhs.uk
~




PPE and staff testing

a COVID-19 Staff Testing Process [INHS|
COVI d - 1 9 m A staff member who fulfills + so"'th;l:fs‘i:u':d'::fﬁﬂ:
South Tees Hospitals 1 the case definition °
i (new continuous cough
Safe PPE NHS Foundation Trust and/or high 1r.'mpcral?.|m 1 | || L
andfor loss of taste or smell) H
PPE - low-risk settings PPE - high-risk settings \)

For all staff working in all clinical areas, For staff working in Intensive Care
to include hospitals and community Units or a hot zone of an Emergency
care settings Department or in the delivery of

aerosol generating procedures

Eye protection ——» T c‘d— Eye protection

(safety glasses, goggles or visors) (disposable goggles or
full-face visor)

Contact Line Manager
(key details to be taken)

‘. Referral to Covid-19 Advice Line
E: stees.covid 19staffreferrals@nhs.net
T: 01642 835522

1a) Household member priority area  1b) Staff member priority area
2a) Household member other area  2b) Staff member other arca

Long sleeved . A P ¥
disposable gown [ Mot prioritised for ] L Staff member allocated appointment ]

J - i OH / HR prioritised list
Fluid-repellent j FFP3 respirator a) Hous fority arez fority arez

surgical face mask

test (eg too late) for swabbing

Plastic apron Plastic apron P ﬂ

from start of symptoms
Non-sterile gloves —» <«— Gloves

Isolate at home
for 7 days

from start of n
symptoms

High risk settings include:
ICU

HDU

ED resuscitation areas

Re-test day 8

o4

Further tests at
7 day intervals

Ward 15 aerosol generating
bays

Patient contact with
non-invasive ventilation

Operating theatres

Endoscopy units for upper
respiratory, ENT or upper Gl
endoscopy

ellence in Patient OQutcome and Experience www.southtees.nhs.uk




Staff wellbeing and safety

Staff-side and BMA
membership of
Strategic and Tactical -

At-risk staff
COVID-19 staff policy redeployed and
produced regular contact with
shielded staff

Enabled all clinical
staff early in the
pandemic to wear
PPE in a clinical
setting

Partnership with
Armed Forces to
ensure robust PPE
training

PPE marshals
introduced to support
staff safety

80¢ abed

Comprehensive risk-
Full program of assessment process

Extended risk
g ASSessment process

psychological support for all BAME t0 all staff

colleagues

0 Excellence in Patient Outcome and Experience www.southtees.nhs.uk
~




Supporting our patients and communities

Q Excellence in Patient Outcome and Experience www.southtees.nhs.uk




Support from our amazing local communities

0 Excellence in Patient Outcome and Experience www.southtees.nhs.uk
-~



COVID-19 de-escalation

n Excellence in Patient Qutcome and Experience www.southtees.nhs.uk
o~




Estate

James Cook University Hospital ) James Cook University Hospital
Covid-19 Unit Timeline ) I Covid-19 Unit Timeline

8 April Tower Block @ 23 April Tower Block
COVID / non-COVID split Second Floor S Change of wards 7 and 8 [ Second Fioor S
to previous suspected-

implemented :
COVID patients

= @

Ground Floor

Outpatients Entrance )>

Endoscopy
Centre Entrance

STRIVE
A ic

Centre

Outpatients Entrance )>

Endoscopy
Centre Entrance

North
Entrance

North
Entrance

A 4

pe \ot Bridge

Ambulatory Care Entrance P¥~_ < Entrance
South

Entrance

Bridge

F_ 2
Ambulatory Care Entrance P9 ~_ Entrance ASE Entrance

A&E Entrance South

Entrance

Women & Children's
w Entrance

Vv h Women & Children's b visld ¢
1)vid pathway
»vid pathway

James Cook University Hospital

James Cook University Hospital
Covid-19 Unit De-escalation

Covid-19 Unit De-escalation

Key Tower Block @ Key Tower Block

T @ e
Non covid acute surgical Non covid acute surgical
e
Covasepiom o <

N

~
D <

~

Covid pathway with surgery "

|

~
>

Entrance
B!
Outpatients Entrance > Roue

Endoscopy -
Centre Entrance

Ambulatory Care Entrance P¥~_
AGE Entrance

W eridge
Entrance

South
Entrance

www.southtees.nhs.uk



COVID-19 recovery

n Excellence in Patient Qutcome and Experience www.southtees.nhs.uk
o~




Pillars of recovery

Recovery

>
g I
Q T
S "
(7)) )
y— -
T @
) =
)] ©

a

Sufficient resources
Clinical prioritisation

0 Excellence in Patient Qutcome and Experience www.southtees.nhs.uk
~




PPE, testing and social distancing

Q Excellence in Patient Outcome and Experience www.southtees.nhs.uk




Support to the wider health and care system

600,000 pieces of PPE distributed to :
neighbouring health trusts and local | 2,201 COVID-19 test results provided

care providers by pathology labs to neighbouring
health trusts

South Tees Hospitals

NHS Foundation Trust

Care home support service led by Online COVID-19 education and
community matrons delivering full training films produced and provided
training, advice and guidance to primary care and social care

package to local care homes partners

0 Excellence in Patient Outcome and Experience www.southtees.nhs.uk



CQC assessment

COVID-19 Infection Assessment found
Prevention and that the trust has
Clinically-led Control Assessment effective infection
COVID-19 response from the Care prevention and
Quality Commission control measures in
(CQQ). place.

ellence in Patient Outcome and Experience www.southtees.nhs.uk




Quality Accounts 2020/21

www.southtees.nhs.uk



Quality Priorities 2020/21

Clinical Patient
f : :
Sy effectiveness experience
4 N\ 4 I 4 N
— Reporting Measuring — Collecting
3 N J N J \§ J
@
N 4 N ‘ ) " )
g . . . P .
— Scrutinising — Accrediting — Responding
N\ J \ J \ J
4 N e A e p

xcellence in Patient Outcome and Experience www.southtees.nhs.uk




Back to Best... 4
Back to STAQC

Our staff do amazing work and we want to
make sure they get the recognition they deserve.
That's why we're relaunching the South Tees
accreditation of quality care (STAQC)

from July 2020.

&

4 CORE COMPETENCIES

& Q

0ze abed

www.southtees.nhs.uk

0 Excellence in Patient Outcome and Experience
-~




3,400 theatre cases

n Excellence in Patient Outcome and Experience www.southtees.nhs.uk
-~




Thank you

zee abed

0 Excellence in Patient Outcome and Experience www.southtees.nhs.uk
~




Agenda Item 8

Health Scrutiny Panel 10 March 2020

HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL

A meeting of the Health Scrutiny Panel was held on 10 March 2020.

PRESENT: Councillors J McTigue (Chair), D P Coupe (Vice-Chair), A Hellaoui, S Hill, D
Rooney and M Storey and P Storey

PRESENT AS Councillor Wilson

OBSERVERS:

ALSO IN Dr. Janet Walker - Medical Director Tees Valley (Tees Valley CCG)

ATTENDANCE: Alastair Monk - Medicine Optimisation Pharmacist (North East Commissioning

Support (NECS)

Dr. John Bye - Clinical Partner (Foundations GP Medical Practice)

Dan Haworth — Consultant Paramedic (North East Ambulance Service (NEAS)
Mark Cotton — Assistant Director of Communications (North East Ambulance
Service (NEAS)

Jonathan Bowden — Advanced Practitioner Public Health and Public Protection
Rachel Burns — Advanced Practitioner Public Health and Public Protection
Tom Le Ruez — Preventing Substance Misuse Deaths Co-Ordinator

Caroline Breheny - Democratic Services Officer

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE Councillor T Mawston and M Saunders.

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS

There were no declarations of interest at this point in the meeting.

1

WELCOME AND EVACUATION PROCEDURE

The Chair welcomed all present to the meeting and advised on the Council's Fire Evacuation
Procedure.

MINUTES - HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL - 14 JANUARY 2020

The minutes of the Health Scrutiny Panel meeting held on 14 January 2020 were approved as
a correct record.

NATIONAL DRUGS REVIEW - EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Democratic Services Officer advised that the first phase of the national review of drugs,
as undertaken by Dame Carol Black was published on 27 February 2020. The Executive
Summary of the document had been included on the agenda, as the report highlighted many
pertinent issues being considered as part of the panel's current review on the topic of Opioid
Dependency.

AGREED that the findings of the report be referenced in the panel's Final Report on the topic
of Opioid Dependency.

REDUCING OPIOID DEPENDENCY - FURTHER INFORMATION

Representatives from the North East Ambulance Service (NEAS) and South Tees CCG were
in attendance to present information to the panel in respect of its current review topic. The
Consultant Paramedic advised that NEAS had seen an increase in the number of overdose
cases attended in the TS1-8 postcode areas over the last three years; with 2019 being the last
full year of data available. In 2017 the number of overdose cases attended was 982 and this
had risen to 1757 in 2019.

It was worth highlighted that the term overdose was a very wide definition and may include

both accidental and unintentional overdose of both prescription and illicit drugs. In terms of
identifying patients who had probably taken an overdose of an opioid based drug, the use of

Page 223



Health Scrutiny Panel 10 March 2020

Naloxone is more accurate measure.

It was noted that NEAS had documented 778 cases where Naloxone had been administered
to a patient between January 2017 and the present day, with a significant increase (38 per
cent) in usage between 2018-2019. This accounted for approximately 1 per cent of all face to
face ambulance encounters in the same area. During this time period the indications for the
administration of Naloxone Hydrochloride had not changed and therefore it was reasonable to
assume that the NEAS was seeing more cases of opioid toxicity. However, the figures in
Middlesbrough broadly aligned with similar increases in the use of Naloxone throughout the
North East and there was nothing to suggest in the data that Middlesbrough was a significant
outlier.

The Consultant Paramedic advised that there did appear to be some seasonal variation in the
number of cases, with the summer months seeing greater numbers of cases than winter.
However, with only 3 years' worth of data it was not a large enough sample to draw definitive
conclusions.

The panel was informed that the TS1 and TS3 postcodes had the highest usage of Naloxone
in the Middlesbrough area. It was also advised that whilst NEAS did not hold data on hospital
admissions, this increased activity had certainly resulted in more patients transported to
hospital for overdoses, opioid and none opioid related. The panel heard that demographic
information held by the NEAS was limited but that the majority of patients who received
Naloxone Hydrochloride were men and the largest age bracket was for those aged 31-40.

It was advised that there were two areas of practice from other parts of the world that were
worthy of bringing to the attention of the committee:

1. Information sharing between ambulance services and other public health bodies.

e In some communities, Ambulance services regularly shared data with public health
and law enforcement agencies to help community partners better understand when
unexpected peaks were occurring and put plans in place to address them. This
required information sharing agreements and support from NHS commissioning
colleagues but could provide a very useful early warning when a potentially fatal batch
of drugs were in circulation.

2. Within the US many law enforcement agencies had issued their officers with Naloxone Kkits,
in order to provide immediate treatment model to patients.

e This was being adopted by some police forces elsewhere in the UK. It was stated that
NEAS had no view on this, it was more for information for the committee.

The panel was advised that South Tees CCG was mindful of the current issues in relation to
both high levels of opioid medication prescribing and the high levels of drug related deaths in
Middlesbrough, as well as the Tees area in general. The CCG had been engaging actively
with local authority partners, in particular the Tees Preventing Drug Related Deaths
Co-ordinator; the pain clinic at James Cook Hospital, in particular Professor Eldabe and his
team; and local GP practices, in order to raise awareness amongst all clinicians of high levels
of opioid prescribing in Tees.

In addition the CCG Medicines Optimisation practice team had been working with GP
practices to assist in the identification of patients on particularly high doses of opioid
medication. It was noted that there was a wide variation in both volume and cost of opioid
prescribing by GP practices throughout Middlesbrough, but in both cases, the overall trend
was decreasing. However, it was acknowledged that Middlesbrough practices were still
prescribing at more than double the volume of opioid medication when compared with national
average.

During 19/20 and continuing into 20/21, the CCG is focusing on how we can assist GP
practices to reduce inappropriate prescribing of high dose opioid medication to our population.

Page 224



Health Scrutiny Panel 10 March 2020

It was noted that STCCG had been working closely with South Tees Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust (STHFT) to highlight current high levels of opioid prescribing in primary care. As a result
the Trust was working to both limit the number of patients commencing opioid therapy, but
also assisting patients who needed to reduce their doses of opioid medication.

It was explained that there was a dedicated opioid reduction clinic in the Trust, operating as
part of Prof Eldabe's team, where a specialist Pharmacist is were able to consult with patients
referred by GP practices.

In addition, work had progressed on an opioid specific discharge protocol in order to limit the
amount of opioid medication being given to patients on discharge from James Cook University
Hospital. Clearer advice was included for patients in order to ensure they did not ask for
further medication, unnecessarily, from their GP.

It was highlighted that other CCG led initiatives included:

- The CCG medicines optimisation team were assisting practices in identifying high dose
opioid patients and highlighting these patients to prescribers. GPs were then able to initiate
reduction programmes in appropriate patients, ideally using a structured reduction programme
of gradually decreasing doses. More complex patients were able to be referred to the Trust
clinic

- South Tees CCG was taking part in the CROP (Campaign to Reduce Opioid Prescribing)
initiative. This initiative was being co-ordinated by the Academic Health Science Network
(AHSN), on behalf of all CCGs in the North East & North Cumbria. The initiative consisted of
specific practice information being sent to practices every 2 months, commencing in April
2020. The report contained:-

details of practice opioid prescribing

where the practice featured compared to all practices

age and gender information related to opioid prescribing

national resource's to assist prescribers in reducing the prescribing of opioid
medication

Finally it was noted that more patient focused work would be occurring in 2020/21, when
pharmacist led community opioid/gabapentinoid reduction clinics would be established,
operating at Primary Care Network (PCN) level. The CCG was currently funding a pilot, which
involved the education of 5 Pharmacists to deliver a series of structured patient level opioid
reduction interventions in a primary care setting. The panel was pleased to hear about the
iniatives currently being undertaken and looked forward to hearing more about how these
iniatives progressed in the future.

The Chair thanked the invitees for their informative presentation.

AGREED that the information presented be noted and referenced within the panel's final
report on the topic of Opioid Dependency.

5 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD - UPDATE

The Chair provided a verbal update on the matters that were considered at the Overview and
Scrutiny Board meeting held on 13 February 2020.

Page 225



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes - Health Scrutiny Panel - 21 July 2020
	4 Covid-19 Update
	Briefing note (1) - 21 July 2020
	Presentation (2)

	5 South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Quality Account 2019/20
	Presentation - 22 September 2020

	8 Minutes - Health Scrutiny Panel - 10 March 2020

